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Forward looking statement
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-
looking information to enable investors to 
comprehend our prospects and take investment 
decisions. This report and other statements - 
written and oral - that we periodically make, 
contain forward-looking statements that set out 
anticipated results based on the management's 
plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever 
possible to identify such statements by using 
words such as 'anticipate', 'estimate', 'expects', 
'projects', 'intends', 'plans', 'believes' and words of 
similar substance in connection with any 
discussion of future performance. We cannot 
guarantee that these forward-looking statements 
will be realised, although we believe we have been 
prudent in assumptions. The achievements of 
results are subject to risks, uncertainties and even 
inaccurate assumptions. Should known or 
unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or 
should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, 
actual results could vary materially from those 
anticipated, estimated, or projected, which the 
readers should take note of. We undertake no 
obligation to publicly update any forward-looking 
statements, whether because of new information, 
future events or otherwise.

Where will
you find?

…towards the
next growth trajectory
It was yet another year of landmark performance! 

Scan this QR code from your
smartphone to

access our annual report

Please find our
online version

at www.seml.co.in
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85 Mn Kwh + 3%
Highest ever hydro energy generated

6lakh tonne

1.56 lakh tonne, +15%

Our consistent endeavours towards efficiency improvements, coupled with strong demand, 
led to improved capacity utilisations, better volumes and higher realisations. 

We are now on course to explore the next BIG thing – the emerging opportunity from the 
Hydro Power Business. We are competitively paced to leverage the favourable regulations in 
this segment and look forward to define our next growth trajectory. 

performing and more sustainable company going ahead. 

As we move forward and boldly seize opportunities in a changing market place, we are 
confident that the actions we are taking will result in a stronger, better
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The year 2018-19 was yet another year of strong 
performance for us. A year in which there was delivery and 
growth across all our businesses. We are glad to report 
strong production and operational numbers this year as 
well. 

Ÿ Our revenues strengthened by 2.36% from ` 2,287 
crore to  ̀   2,341crore 

While aiming for an efficient capital structure, we look to 
balance investments to sustain growth and also 
subsequently reward our esteemed shareholders by 
remaining committed to our dividend policy. 

During 2018, India's economic performance was quite 
mixed. While the first half of the year, the economy 
continued to grow at a normal pace, it was in the second 
half that the growth slowed down owing to the challenges 
of rising oil prices, financial market volatility, rupee 
depreciation, slowing investment and consumption 
coupled with weak global economic growth. As a result, 
the GDP in 2018-19 was reported at 6.8%. There were 

Ÿ 0.62% growth in earnings per share from ` 56.01 to 
` 56.36

On a consolidated basis, as against 2017-18, in 2018-19: 

Ÿ EBITDA grew 5.72%, from ̀  472 crore to  ̀  499 crore 

Ÿ PAT strengthened by 1% from ̀  205 crore to ̀  207 crore

strategic policy shifts like 'Make-in-India' initiative to 
episodic disruptions such as demonetization to imple-
mentation of various policy reforms like ease of doing 
business, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), Real 
Estate Regulation Act (RERA) and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). The Government in its earlier term was largely 
focused on repairing the stressed banking system and 
undertaking structural economic assets. 

Despite this, not only has the economy registered high 
growth rates amongst other major economies, but has 
also ensured low inflation and adherence to fiscal 
prudence. Further to this, India improved its ranking on 
the World Bank's 'ease of doing business' report for the 
second straight year, jumping 23 places to the 77th 
position on the back of reforms related to insolvency, 
taxation and other areas. In its new term the Government 
has set an ambitious target of expanding India's economy 
from the current nearly $3 trillion to $5 trillion by 2024, 
owing to shift in consumer behaviour and expenditure 
patterns. With an enormous population, favourable 
demographics and high catch-up potential due to low 
initial GDP per head, India will continue to rise in the global 
GDP league table in the coming decades.

India's crude steel production surpassed 106 MT in 2018-
19, surpassing Japan as the world's second-largest steel 
producing country. The Indian steel industry has 

transformed substantially during 2018-19, with several 
mills changing ownership under IBC & capacity 
commissioning, as well as unveiling of new expansion 
plans by some of the Indian steel giants. Under the 
National Steel Policy 2017, the Government aims to ramp 
up steel-making capacity to 300 MT, while production at 
255 MT and consumption to 160 kg by 2030. Currently, 
India's per-capita consumption stands at only 69 kgs, 
compared with the global average of 214 kgs. Looking at 
the near term view, the Economic Survey 2019 estimates  
the country's steel output to hit 128.6 million tonne (MT) 
by 2021 and consumption of the same to reach 140 MT by 
2023, on the back of investments in infrastructure, 
construction, automobile sectors and increasing focus on 
the rural segment. The industry is heading towards 
consolidation with huge investments in capacity built up 
in order to cater to the underlying consumption potential.

Anticipating the positive industry backdrop, we 
successfully expanded our steel production capacities at 
Raipur. Our pellet capacities achieved the maximum 
permitted limit. We are further awaiting environment 
clearances for additional pellet capacities of 2 lakh MT. 
While this has been our story for few years now, its time we 
start talking about what's the next big thing that the 
Company is now heading to. 

Our foray into hydropower through the commissioning of 
24-megawatt hydropower plant at Gullu, in Chhattisgarh 
and our upcoming 96MW hydroproject in Sikkim will drive 
new venues of value creation. Dramatic changes are 
taking place in the Indian energy sector, particularly in the 
renewable segment. Increasing concerns about lower-
carbon or non-emitting energy sources, such as gas and 
renewables, have increased the importance of hydro 
power. Besides, the Government has approved the 
following changes in the hydro power policy:

2. All new hydro power projects commissioning after 
notification of this policy shall be treated as 
renewable energy projects and power purchased 
from these projects will meet the HPO under the 
relevant regulations.

3. The licence period of the hydropower projects shall 
be increased to 40 year. Escalation of 2% per annum 
shall be granted on the tariff by back loading the tariff.

The 96 MW hydro power project of Madhya Bharat Power 
Corporation Limited– subsidiary of the Company, shall be 

1. A separate hydropower purchase obligation (HPO) is 
proposed for distributors/captive consumer of 
conventional power. Present renewable purchase 
obligation can be met from any of the wind, biomass 
or small hydropower. 

As a closing note, I would simply like to state that we have 
been strategically expanding our ongoing operations and 
scouting for future growth opportunities. I would like to 
acknowledge the efforts of our employees and the 
leadership team for successfully implementing company's 
execution strategies. I also thank the respected Board 
Members for their able guidance. And, lastly, I would like to 
thank our stakeholders for their continuous support and 
belief in us. 

eligible for all above benefits and these policy changes will 
improve its economic viability substantially. This would 
increase our cash flows further and strengthen our hands 
to avail any possible inorganic growth opportunities. 

We strive to create and maintain a safe operating culture 
where safety is a top priority at all our activities. This is not 
only safer for people and the environment – it also 
improves the reliability of our assets. We work to attract, 
motivate, develop and retain the best talent available and 
equip our people with the right skills for the future. Our 
performance and ability to thrive depends on it. Our 
consistent focus on efficiency improvement and cost 
reduction over the past six-seven years has delivered 
positive outcomes. Besides we have also been giving an 
equal attention to the safety and environment, waste 
recycling and improving recoveries,  leading to 
strengthening of margins. 

This is the beginning of the next exciting chapter in the 
Company's success story. While there is much to do, the 
Company has the track record, capabilities and 
determination to deliver. As we progress ahead and boldly 
seize opportunities in a changing marketplace with strong 
operational efficiencies, we are confident that the actions 
we are taking will result in a stronger, better performing 
and more sustainable Enterprise.

As a responsible corporate, we have always given an equal 
attention to the communities residing at our plant's 
vicinity. We have sponsored schools in the tribal areas of 
Chhattisgarh for providing basic education, medical 
facilities and primary healthcare facilities across villages. 
We also operate a well-equipped ambulance with doctors 
and have set up basic first-aid facilities in the villages 
surrounding our iron ore mine. We have extended 
financial assistance for educational purposes including 
infrastructure facilities, salaries to teachers, bus facilities for 
children, etc.

Yours sincerely,

Kamal Kishore Sarda

CMD's Message 

Dear Shareholders,

2 3



The year 2018-19 was yet another year of strong 
performance for us. A year in which there was delivery and 
growth across all our businesses. We are glad to report 
strong production and operational numbers this year as 
well. 

Ÿ Our revenues strengthened by 2.36% from ` 2,287 
crore to  ̀   2,341crore 

While aiming for an efficient capital structure, we look to 
balance investments to sustain growth and also 
subsequently reward our esteemed shareholders by 
remaining committed to our dividend policy. 

During 2018, India's economic performance was quite 
mixed. While the first half of the year, the economy 
continued to grow at a normal pace, it was in the second 
half that the growth slowed down owing to the challenges 
of rising oil prices, financial market volatility, rupee 
depreciation, slowing investment and consumption 
coupled with weak global economic growth. As a result, 
the GDP in 2018-19 was reported at 6.8%. There were 

Ÿ 0.62% growth in earnings per share from ` 56.01 to 
` 56.36

On a consolidated basis, as against 2017-18, in 2018-19: 

Ÿ EBITDA grew 5.72%, from ̀  472 crore to  ̀  499 crore 

Ÿ PAT strengthened by 1% from ̀  205 crore to ̀  207 crore

strategic policy shifts like 'Make-in-India' initiative to 
episodic disruptions such as demonetization to imple-
mentation of various policy reforms like ease of doing 
business, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), Real 
Estate Regulation Act (RERA) and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). The Government in its earlier term was largely 
focused on repairing the stressed banking system and 
undertaking structural economic assets. 

Despite this, not only has the economy registered high 
growth rates amongst other major economies, but has 
also ensured low inflation and adherence to fiscal 
prudence. Further to this, India improved its ranking on 
the World Bank's 'ease of doing business' report for the 
second straight year, jumping 23 places to the 77th 
position on the back of reforms related to insolvency, 
taxation and other areas. In its new term the Government 
has set an ambitious target of expanding India's economy 
from the current nearly $3 trillion to $5 trillion by 2024, 
owing to shift in consumer behaviour and expenditure 
patterns. With an enormous population, favourable 
demographics and high catch-up potential due to low 
initial GDP per head, India will continue to rise in the global 
GDP league table in the coming decades.

India's crude steel production surpassed 106 MT in 2018-
19, surpassing Japan as the world's second-largest steel 
producing country. The Indian steel industry has 

transformed substantially during 2018-19, with several 
mills changing ownership under IBC & capacity 
commissioning, as well as unveiling of new expansion 
plans by some of the Indian steel giants. Under the 
National Steel Policy 2017, the Government aims to ramp 
up steel-making capacity to 300 MT, while production at 
255 MT and consumption to 160 kg by 2030. Currently, 
India's per-capita consumption stands at only 69 kgs, 
compared with the global average of 214 kgs. Looking at 
the near term view, the Economic Survey 2019 estimates  
the country's steel output to hit 128.6 million tonne (MT) 
by 2021 and consumption of the same to reach 140 MT by 
2023, on the back of investments in infrastructure, 
construction, automobile sectors and increasing focus on 
the rural segment. The industry is heading towards 
consolidation with huge investments in capacity built up 
in order to cater to the underlying consumption potential.

Anticipating the positive industry backdrop, we 
successfully expanded our steel production capacities at 
Raipur. Our pellet capacities achieved the maximum 
permitted limit. We are further awaiting environment 
clearances for additional pellet capacities of 2 lakh MT. 
While this has been our story for few years now, its time we 
start talking about what's the next big thing that the 
Company is now heading to. 

Our foray into hydropower through the commissioning of 
24-megawatt hydropower plant at Gullu, in Chhattisgarh 
and our upcoming 96MW hydroproject in Sikkim will drive 
new venues of value creation. Dramatic changes are 
taking place in the Indian energy sector, particularly in the 
renewable segment. Increasing concerns about lower-
carbon or non-emitting energy sources, such as gas and 
renewables, have increased the importance of hydro 
power. Besides, the Government has approved the 
following changes in the hydro power policy:

2. All new hydro power projects commissioning after 
notification of this policy shall be treated as 
renewable energy projects and power purchased 
from these projects will meet the HPO under the 
relevant regulations.

3. The licence period of the hydropower projects shall 
be increased to 40 year. Escalation of 2% per annum 
shall be granted on the tariff by back loading the tariff.

The 96 MW hydro power project of Madhya Bharat Power 
Corporation Limited– subsidiary of the Company, shall be 

1. A separate hydropower purchase obligation (HPO) is 
proposed for distributors/captive consumer of 
conventional power. Present renewable purchase 
obligation can be met from any of the wind, biomass 
or small hydropower. 

As a closing note, I would simply like to state that we have 
been strategically expanding our ongoing operations and 
scouting for future growth opportunities. I would like to 
acknowledge the efforts of our employees and the 
leadership team for successfully implementing company's 
execution strategies. I also thank the respected Board 
Members for their able guidance. And, lastly, I would like to 
thank our stakeholders for their continuous support and 
belief in us. 

eligible for all above benefits and these policy changes will 
improve its economic viability substantially. This would 
increase our cash flows further and strengthen our hands 
to avail any possible inorganic growth opportunities. 

We strive to create and maintain a safe operating culture 
where safety is a top priority at all our activities. This is not 
only safer for people and the environment – it also 
improves the reliability of our assets. We work to attract, 
motivate, develop and retain the best talent available and 
equip our people with the right skills for the future. Our 
performance and ability to thrive depends on it. Our 
consistent focus on efficiency improvement and cost 
reduction over the past six-seven years has delivered 
positive outcomes. Besides we have also been giving an 
equal attention to the safety and environment, waste 
recycling and improving recoveries,  leading to 
strengthening of margins. 

This is the beginning of the next exciting chapter in the 
Company's success story. While there is much to do, the 
Company has the track record, capabilities and 
determination to deliver. As we progress ahead and boldly 
seize opportunities in a changing marketplace with strong 
operational efficiencies, we are confident that the actions 
we are taking will result in a stronger, better performing 
and more sustainable Enterprise.

As a responsible corporate, we have always given an equal 
attention to the communities residing at our plant's 
vicinity. We have sponsored schools in the tribal areas of 
Chhattisgarh for providing basic education, medical 
facilities and primary healthcare facilities across villages. 
We also operate a well-equipped ambulance with doctors 
and have set up basic first-aid facilities in the villages 
surrounding our iron ore mine. We have extended 
financial assistance for educational purposes including 
infrastructure facilities, salaries to teachers, bus facilities for 
children, etc.

Yours sincerely,

Kamal Kishore Sarda

CMD's Message 

Dear Shareholders,

2 3



Board of Directors

Rakesh Mehra
Independent Director

FCWA with over 35 yrs of 
experience in finance & 

accounting. Ex GM, Madhya 
Pradesh Audhyogik Vikas Nigam.

PGDM in Industrial 
Management. Ex DY.MD, IDBI 
Bank, having wide experience 

in the field of Oil & Gas, 
Refineries, Power, Steel, etc.

Independent Director
Jitender BalakrishnanGajinder Singh Sahni

Independent Director
Post Graduate from Cardiff 

University. Retired IAS officer 
from Madhya Pradesh Cadre and 
former MD, MSIDC & MP, Cabinet 

Secretariat, Govt of India.

C K Lakshminarayanan

An Engineer with experience 
spanning across various 

institutions like ST CMS Electric, 
IDBI etc.

Independent Director
Asit Kumar Basu
Independent Director

BME graduate with 41 years of 
experience in the field of 
finance. Ex Chief General 

Manager of IDBI Bank.

Uma Sarda
Director

Arts graduate with specialisation 
in Home Science. Active 

member of NGO that works for 
primary education and 

healthcare of tribal people.

Director and CFO 
CA, CS with a rich experience of 

33 years in the field of 
accounting, finance, taxation, 
costing and corporate laws.

Padam Kumar JainPankaj Sarda
Jt. Managing Director

MS in Industrial Administration 
from Purdue University, USA, 
with industry experience of 

nearly 16 years.

CMD
Mechanical Engineer with 43 
years experience in Iron and 

Steel Industry. He is responsible 
for steering SEML towards the 

path of growth.

Kamal Kishore Sarda

4 5



Board of Directors

Rakesh Mehra
Independent Director

FCWA with over 35 yrs of 
experience in finance & 

accounting. Ex GM, Madhya 
Pradesh Audhyogik Vikas Nigam.

PGDM in Industrial 
Management. Ex DY.MD, IDBI 
Bank, having wide experience 

in the field of Oil & Gas, 
Refineries, Power, Steel, etc.

Independent Director
Jitender BalakrishnanGajinder Singh Sahni

Independent Director
Post Graduate from Cardiff 

University. Retired IAS officer 
from Madhya Pradesh Cadre and 
former MD, MSIDC & MP, Cabinet 

Secretariat, Govt of India.

C K Lakshminarayanan

An Engineer with experience 
spanning across various 

institutions like ST CMS Electric, 
IDBI etc.

Independent Director
Asit Kumar Basu
Independent Director

BME graduate with 41 years of 
experience in the field of 
finance. Ex Chief General 

Manager of IDBI Bank.

Uma Sarda
Director

Arts graduate with specialisation 
in Home Science. Active 

member of NGO that works for 
primary education and 

healthcare of tribal people.

Director and CFO 
CA, CS with a rich experience of 

33 years in the field of 
accounting, finance, taxation, 
costing and corporate laws.

Padam Kumar JainPankaj Sarda
Jt. Managing Director

MS in Industrial Administration 
from Purdue University, USA, 
with industry experience of 

nearly 16 years.

CMD
Mechanical Engineer with 43 
years experience in Iron and 

Steel Industry. He is responsible 
for steering SEML towards the 

path of growth.

Kamal Kishore Sarda

4 5



Consolidated Performance

1903

1606 1571

2217 2324

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

` in crore
Turnover

1210 1223 1358 1576 1778

1756
1537 1702

1768

1816

1.45

1.26 1.25
1.12

1.02

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

0

750

1500

2250

3000

3750

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

TOL/TNW

Net Worth (LHS) Total Outside Liabilities ToL/Networth

` in crore

15 

4

36

56 56

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

EPS
` per share

336 340
377

437

493

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

` per share
Book Value

19

28

25

22

15

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Days Receivables

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

InventoriesDays

0

20

40

60

80

100

50

80

68 69

82

55 13

127
205 207

31
27

23

90 117

120
112

94

97
99

93
75

69

73
76

0
75

150
225
300
375
450
525
600

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

` in crore

Net Pro�t, Interest & Tax and Depreciation

Net Pro�t Tax Interest Depreciation

1210 1223 1358
1576

1778

1010 966

1015
1059 11280.83 0.79

0.75
0.67 0.63

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Net Worth (LHS) Term Loans (LHS) D/E Ratio (RHS)

Term Debt-Equity Ratio
` in crore

6 7



Consolidated Performance

1903

1606 1571

2217 2324

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

` in crore
Turnover

1210 1223 1358 1576 1778

1756
1537 1702

1768

1816

1.45

1.26 1.25
1.12

1.02

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

0

750

1500

2250

3000

3750

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

TOL/TNW

Net Worth (LHS) Total Outside Liabilities ToL/Networth

` in crore

15 

4

36

56 56

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

EPS
` per share

336 340
377

437

493

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

` per share
Book Value

19

28

25

22

15

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Days Receivables

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

InventoriesDays

0

20

40

60

80

100

50

80

68 69

82

55 13

127
205 207

31
27

23

90 117

120
112

94

97
99

93
75

69

73
76

0
75

150
225
300
375
450
525
600

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

` in crore

Net Pro�t, Interest & Tax and Depreciation

Net Pro�t Tax Interest Depreciation

1210 1223 1358
1576

1778

1010 966

1015
1059 11280.83 0.79

0.75
0.67 0.63

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Net Worth (LHS) Term Loans (LHS) D/E Ratio (RHS)

Term Debt-Equity Ratio
` in crore

6 7



Hydro power - 
the next growth trajectory

India's installed hydro capacity at the end 
o f  2 0 1 8  w a s  a r o u n d  4 5 , 4 0 0  M W, 
contributing to just 13% of country's total 
installed capacity. India is blessed with 
immense amount of hydro-electr ic 
potential and ranks 5th in terms of 
exploitable hydro-potential on global 
scenario. As per assessment made by CEA, 
India is endowed with economically 
exploitable hydro-power potential to the 
tune of 148,700 MW of installed capacity.

The industry potential – largely 
untapped

Ÿ With the completion of the 96 MW 
hydro power project in Sikkim, the 
Company will have a bouquet of 
sustainable cash generating hydro-
power assets with a total capacity of 
126 MW

Ÿ The commissioning of the Sikkim 
project will help the Company unlock 
capital for future value creation.

Ÿ Plans to have a total Hydropower 
portfolio in excess of 200 MW in the 
next 5 years. 

How SEML is geared up to utilise 
the hydro power potential 

Ÿ Hydropower helps in diversifying 
revenue stream further and also 
provides more sustainability to Profit 
margins 
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Dear Shareholders,

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the 46th Annual Report on business and operations of your Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2019. 

Financial Performance (` in crore)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Revenue from operations 1,653 1,515 2,324 2,217
Exports 124 68 637 622
EBIDTA 406 361 499 472
Depreciation 50 49 76 73
Finance cost (Net) 35 36 99 97
Exceptional item - (income) /expense - 8 - 8
Profit before tax  321 268 324 294
Provision for tax 106 80 117 90
Net Profit 215 188 207 206

Review of performance

In 2018, global crude steel production reached 1,808.6 MnT, an increase of 4.6% over 2017. This increase is primarily 
due to growth in steel consumption in infrastructure activities. China continued to be the world’s largest crude steel 
producer, contributing to 51.3% of the global crude steel production. Crude steel production in India reached 106.5 
MnT, showing an increase of 4.9% over the previous year, making India the second largest crude steel producing country.

Despite slowdown in global economy, steel demand increased by 2.1% in 2018. The increase over 2017 was mainly 
supported by government stimulus and better than expected economic activity in China. However, growth in developed 
economies slowed to 1.8% in 2018. In 2018 the EU was net importer of steel at 16.9 MnT. Exports from China to the 
rest of the world decreased again in 2018 to 68.8 MnT. Changing trade flows in the global steel market have caused an 
increase in the amount of anti-dumping measures. Growth of steel demand in the global market will be influenced by 
general economic recovery & the impact of trade war. With low debt burden your Company should be able to absorb 
any negative market sentiments.

Steel demand in India is expected to grow at 7% in 2019, driven by growth across sectors such as railways, roadways 
& infrastructure, based on emphasis laid down by Government of India. Industry consolidation through the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, is expected to lead to improved discipline in the market place and stable pricing. 

The year gone by has been historic in terms of achievements. During the year your Company scaled new highs in 
production in most products. The production of other products was also in line with previous year. During the year, 
the Company had the benefit of full year of operation of the new turbine replaced in March, 2018. The Company also 
operated its iron ore mine for the full year. Your Company fulfilled all its financial obligations on time. The Debt-Equity 
ratio of your Company as on 31st March, 2019 stood at 0.08:1 as against 0.10:1 in the previous year. 

During the year, your Company at standalone levels, exported 10,441 MTs of ferro alloys as against 8,578 MTs in 
previous year. During the year, your Company exported 53,790 MTs of iron ore pellets through merchant exporter as 
against 15,195 MTs in the previous year. 

Stakeholders are requested to refer the detailed analysis of the performance given in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report appended hereto.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this Report, which 
affect the financial position of the Company. Further, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company 
during the year. 

Dividend

Your Directors are pleased to recommend dividend of ` 5/- (i.e. 50%) per equity share for the financial year 2018-19 
(last year ` 5/- per equity share). The dividend if approved by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
will be paid as per the applicable provisions.  

Directors'
Report
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During the year under review, your Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves. Further, your 
Company has transferred the unpaid dividend amount in respect of the F.Y. 2010-11 to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund. 

Subsidiaries / Controlled Entities / Joint Ventures

During the year under review -   

 your Company accorded its approval for strike off of two of its subsidiaries, namely, Raipur Fabritech Private Limited 
and Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited, as there was no business in those entities. The strike-off applications 
are pending for approval.  

 due to further allotments to your Company towards its commitment in the project cost, there is a slight increase 
of 1.39% in the stake of your Company in Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited.

A brief on the performance/business operations of subsidiaries/controlled entities/joint ventures consolidated with 
your Company is given hereunder.  

Subsidiaries
 Sarda Energy & Minerals Hongkong Limited, Hongkong (SEMHKL), is a wholly owned subsidiary, functioning as 

global investment arm of your Company. During the year under review, the subsidiary reported a net profit of 
` 7.20 crore as against net profit of ` 14.27 crore in the previous year. The company has paid a dividend of USD 2.60 
Mn during the year (Pr. Year USD 2.25 Mn).

 Sarda Global Venture Pte. Limited, Singapore (SGV), a wholly owned subsidiary, has acquired economic interest 
in coal mines in Indonesia. The company is having JV with Indorama group for the coal mine in Indonesia. During 
the year under review the venture extracted 5,00,004 MTs (PY 1,23,656 MTs) of coal. The subsidiary reported a net 
profit of ` 0.95 crore as against net loss of ` 1.63 crore in the previous year.  

 Sarda Global Trading DMCC, Dubai (SGT), a wholly owned subsidiary, has been incorporated in March, 2018 with 
the object of trading in metal ores and firewood. Your Company has paid the initial capital in SGT during the year 
under review. The Company is yet to start its activities. The subsidiary reported a net loss of ` 1.23 crore. 

 Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited (SMAL), a wholly owned subsidiary, operating 2 x 33 MVA Ferro Alloys plant backed 
by 80 MW captive thermal power plant enjoys a TWO Star Export House status. During the year, power generation 
was 524.28 MU as compared to 499.37 MU in the previous year. The ferro alloys production stood at 79,585 MTs as 
against 83,760 MTs in the previous year. The Ferro Manganese market was subdued because of dumping of cheaper 
imports mainly from countries like South korea. As a result the company did not produce Ferro Manganese in the 
year which requries lesser specific power. This led to the marginal drop in production in the year as compared 
to previous year. However captive consumption of Power was 331.71 MU as against 329.54 MU in previous year 
indicating no drop in operational levels of furnaces. 

 Because of improvement in power demand the company was able to achieve PLF of 74.81% against PLF of 71.26% 
in previous year.

 During the FY 2018-19, the Company exported 69,844 MTs ferro alloys against 77,809 MTs in the previous year and 
achived export of ` 512.91 crore in FY 2018-19 as against ` 554.85 crore in the PY. The drop in exports is mainly 
because of subdued market conditions coupled with the ongoing Trade war.

 During the year, the Company has reported a net profit of ` 5.90 crore as against Profit of ` 16.59 crore in P.Y. The 
fall in the profit was on account of the increased cost of raw material, particularly coal. The company has met all 
its financial obligations to its lenders on time.

 Sarda Energy Limited (SEL), a wholly owned subsidiary was incorporated as an SPV to put-up 1320 MW super 
critical IPP thermal power project in Chhattisgarh. As reported earlier, the company has abandoned the project. 
The funds lying idle with the Company have been invested in Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited as part 
of promoters’ contribution. During the year under review, the subsidiary reported a net profit of ` 0.43 crore as 
against net profit of ` 0.20 crore in the previous year.

 Parvatiya Power Limited (PPL), is operating 4.8 MW Loharkhet Hydro Power project in Bageshwar district of 
Uttarakhand. The Plant is based on River Sarju. The Company has supplied 217.18 lakh KWh (Previous Year 182.67 
lakh KWh) to the state grid. The Plant has achieved second highest generation in F.Y. 2019 which is marginally 
lower than highest recorded generation of 217.88 MU in the F.Y. 2011-12. The plant enjoys debt free operations 
since financial year 2017-18. The capacity of the Plant is being enhanced by installing additional unit of 3 MW. The 

Directors'
Report
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Detailed Project Report has been submitted for approval of Uttarakhand Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited.
 During the year, the Company has earned profit after tax of ` 2.76 crore (Previous Year ` 5.22 crore). The profit 

during the previous year was on higher side on account of reversal of the deferred tax liability. The company has 
made provision of ` 9.96 crore towards impairment in the value of investments. During the year, the Company has 
made investment in M/s Apex Equipments Private Limited resulting into increase in its holding in the Company 
from 6.50% to 16.30%. Your Company continues to hold 51% stake in PPL.

 Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited (MBPCL), is implementing 96 MW (2X48) Rongnichu HEP near Gangtok 
in East Sikkim. It is a run of the river scheme based on the River Rongnichu. It is a CDM registered project. The 
construction works of the project are consistently progressing ahead. 12.60 kms long underground tunnel has 
been fully excavated except 13.39 metres left intentionally to be excavated at the end. Half of the concrete lining 
works is complete. Civil works of Barrage and Power House Complex is largely completed. Hydro-Mechanical works 
of Gates erection and penstock steel lining is underway. Supply and erection of power plant equipments is under 
progress. 24 out of 30 transmission line towers have been erected and stringing work is under progress. The 
project is expected to be operational before onset of next monsoon F.Y. 2021. 

 During year under review, your Company has infused ` 91.02 crore in MBPCL (` 42.04 crore by way of equity 
contribution and ̀  48.98 crore by way of unsecured loan). Your Company holds 79.35% stake in the project (68.31% 
directly and 11.05% through its wholly owned subsidiary Sarda Energy Limited) as compared to 77.96 % in the 
previous financial year. 

 Natural Resources Energy Private Limited (NREPL), is an SPV to carry on the business of development of mines 
and minerals, generation and trading of power and infrastructure development. The company had participated in 
the auction of coal mines as an SPV. The entire share capital of the company is held by SEML and its wholly owned 
subsidiary SMAL.  

Controlled Entities
 Chhattisgarh Hydro Power LLP (CHP LLP), is engaged in implementation of small hydro power projects in the 

State of Chhattisgarh. The State has potential for hydro projects which is largely unexploited. This gives immense 
opportunity to the LLP as it has licenses for implementation of four small hydel power projects with total installed 
capacity of 98.76 MW. 

 The first 24 MW Gullu Small Hydro Electric Project has been commercialized in F.Y. 2017-18. The capacity of the 
Plant has been enhanced from 24 MW to 24.96 MW during the year under review. The Plant has been earning cash 
surplus from the very first year of its operation. It has generated healthy business returns supported by adequate 
fixed feed in tariff. During the year, the Plant has generated and supplied 632.95 lakhs units and has earned profit 
of ` 10.01 crore in its first full year of operations. 

 Amongst other allotted Projects, 24.90 MW Rehar-I SHP is in the most advance stage of take off. Various statutory 
clearances including Second stage (Final) forest clearance is in place. Pre construction activities like construction of 
labour camps, stores and guest house is complete. 

 Your Company holds 60% stake in the LLP as on 31st March, 2019. In the current year (2019-20), subsequent to 
restructuring of the LLP, your Company has increased its stake in the Company to 100% (72% directly and 28% 
through its wholly owned subsidiary, M/s Sarda Energy Limited).

 Sarda Hydro Power LLP (SHP LLP), formerly, M/s Sarda Hydro Power Private Limited has been converted into LLP 
during the year. On its conversion, all the members of the company became the partners of the LLP and your 
Company continues to hold 60% stake in LLP. The LLP is implementing two small hydro projects namely, 24 MW 
Kotaiveera and 9 MW Ganeshpur Both the projects are under planning and development stage.

 Shri Ram Electricity LLP (SRE LLP), was incorporated as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) for setting up a captive 
thermal power plant of 40 MW in the State of Chhattisgarh. In view of the cancellation of coal linkage for the power 
project, the LLP has dropped the project. The entity reported a net profit of ` 0.09 crore in line with the previous 
year. Your Company continues to hold 51% stake in SRE LLP. The firm will be dissolved once coal allocation related 
matters are closed.

Joint Ventures

 Raipur Infrastructure Company Limited (RICL), was operating a private Railway Siding in Mandhar, Raipur. As 
already reported, railways has turned down request of the company for renewal of the existing lease agreement 
in view of requirement of loopline at the station. The company is pursuing with the Railways for getting refund 

Directors'
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of ` 5 crore deposited as security for siding at Odisha. Your Company holds one third share in the Joint Venture. 
During the year 2018-19 the Company had incurred net loss of ` 3.70 crore as against net profit of ` 3.76 crore in 
the previous year. 

 Madanpur South Coal Company Limited (MSCCL), a SPV was allotted Madanpur South Coal Block in consortium. 
The Supreme Court had cancelled all coal block allotments. Consequent to cancellation of coal mines, there is no 
business left in the company and no other activity has been planned. MSCCL holds certain assets, including land, 
acquired for the project. MSCCL would be wound-up after disposal of these assets. Your Company holds 20.13% in 
the Joint Venture.  

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures as per 
the Companies Act, 2013 and their contribution to the overall performance of the company during the period under 
report is provided as part of the Consolidated Financial Statements and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. 
The Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website 
www.seml.co.in under the head corporate governance/policies under the Investors’ section.  

Consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements presented by the Company include financial information of its subsidiaries 
prepared in compliance with applicable Accounting Standards.  
In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited financial statements, including the 
consolidated financial statements and related information of the Company and audited financial statements of each of 
its subsidiaries, are available on our website www.seml.co.in. These documents are also available for inspection during 
business hours at our registered office. 
ESOP Scheme
During the year 2018-19, there were no options outstanding for exercise. Accordingly, the disclosures required to be 
made in the Directors' Report in respect of the aforesaid ESOP Scheme, are not applicable.  
Directors
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Uma Sarda, Director 
of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for 
re-appointment.  
Brief profile of Mrs. Uma Sarda, who is proposed to be appointed / re-appointed, nature of her expertise, names of 
the companies in which she holds directorships and her shareholding in the Company is provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.
During the year under review, the members approved the re-appointment of Mr. Padam Kumar Jain, as Director liable 
to retire by rotation. 
Further, during the year, the members of the Company by way of Special Resolution, through Postal Ballot, have also 
approved the re-appointment of the following Independent Directors for the term given against their respective names: 

 Mr. Asit Kumar Basu – 5 years – w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
 Mr. C.K. Lakshminarayanan – 4 years – w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
 Mr. Gajinder Singh Sahni – 2 years – w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
 Mr. Jitender Balakrishnan – 5 years – w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
 Mr. Rakesh Mehra – 5 years – w.e.f. 1st April, 2019

Further, Mr. P.R. Tripathi, Independent Director has retired w.e.f. 1st April, 2019 consequent to crossing the age of 75 
years. The Board takes on record its deep appreciation of the services rendered by Mr. P.R. Tripathi during his tenure as 
Director. He served on the Board of the company for 16 years.

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet 
the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Companies Act and the Listing Regulations.  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has 
carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, and that of its Committees and individual Directors. The 
performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. 
The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from the Committee Members. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the individual Directors. A 
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separate meeting of Independent Directors was also held to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors; 
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the 
views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out 
without the presence of concerned Director. This was followed by a Board meeting that discussed the performance of 
the Board, its Committees and individual Directors. Key criteria’s for performance evaluation are given in Annexure A 
to directors’ report.  

Your Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management 
Personnel (SMP) and other employees of the Company. The policy is approved by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Company. Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees 
marked as Annexure B to directors’ report.  

Your Company with the approval of Nomination & Remuneration Committee has adopted a policy on Board diversity 
and the recommendation of candidature for Board appointment will be based on merit that complements and expands 
the skills, experience and expertise of the Board as a whole, taking into account gender, age, professional experience 
and qualifications, cultural and educational background, and any other factors that the Board might consider relevant 
and applicable from time to time towards achieving a diverse Board. The criteria for determining Qualification, positive 
attributes and Independence of director is enclosed as Annexure C to directors’ report.  

Familiarization programmes for Board Members

The Familiarization program aims to provide insight to the Independent Directors to understand the business of the 
Company. Upon induction, the Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities. Your 
Company provides information to familiarize the Independent Directors with the strategy, operations and functions of 
the Company. The Board members are also taken to the sites of subsidiaries to understand and review their functions.

At various Board meetings during the year, the Board members are provided with information/ presentations and 
are given the opportunity to interact with the Senior Management of your Company to help them to understand the 
Company’s strategy/policies, business model, operations, products, markets, organization structure, finance, human 
resources, technology, quality, facilities and risk management, changes in the regulatory environment applicable to 
the corporate sector and to the industry in which it operates and such other matters as may arise from time to time. 

Quarterly presentations on operations made to the Board include information on business performance, operations, 
safety, market scenario, financial parameters, working capital management, fund flows, senior management change, 
major litigation, compliances, subsidiary information, donations, regulatory scenario, etc.  

The policy on familiarization programmes for Independent Directors is posted on the website of the Company www.
seml.co.in and can be accessed under the head corporate governance/policies under the Investors’ section. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019, the applicable accounting 
standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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Key managerial personnel

During the year, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel. 

Auditors and Auditors’ Report 

Statutory Auditors

At the Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2013-14 held on 29th September, 2014, M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, Raipur were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion 
of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held in the calendar year 2019. 

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has, subject to the approval of the members 
re-appointed M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co. for a second term of five years from the conclusion of the ensuing 46th AGM 
till the conclusion of the 51st AGM. Accordingly, the Notice convening the ensuing AGM carries the required resolution 
along with the explanatory statement w.r.t. the proposed appointment of M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co. as statutory 
auditors. M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., Statutory Auditors, have confirmed that they are eligible for being appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second term of five years. 

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. During the year 
under review, the Auditors did not report any matter under section 143(12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required 
to be disclosed under section 134(3) (ca) of the Act.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
the cost audit records maintained by the Company, in respect of various manufacturing activities are required to be 
audited.

The cost audit report for the financial year 2017-18 was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. M/s. S.N. & Co., 
Cost and Management Accountants, were appointed as the Company’s Cost Auditor.

Your Directors have, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s. S.N. & Co., Cost and Management 
Accountants, to audit the cost accounts of the Company on a remuneration of ` 1.75 lakh for the year 2018-19. 

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors: 

i) for 2018-19 has been ratified by the members in the Annual General Meeting held on 21.09.2018. 

ii) for 2019-20 is being placed before the members in the ensuing annual general meeting for ratification.  

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s. S.G. Kankani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit 
for the financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 is annexed 
herewith marked as Annexure D to this Report. 

With reference to the comment of the secretarial auditors regarding non-submission of information to Calcutta Stock 
Exchange, your Directors wish to inform that the Company had complied with all requirements for delisting of its shares 
from Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) in February, 2004. The delisting application is still pending on the part of CSE. In 
view of the pendency of delisting application, the Company has stopped sending any information to the Calcutta Stock 
Exchange and has also reported the matter to SEBI.  

Further, in terms of requirement of regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Secretarial Audit Report, for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, in respect of Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited and Madhya Bharat Power 
Corporation Limited, the material subsidiaries of the Company, is annexed to this report, marked as Annexure E and 
Annexure F, respectively. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

With the objective of sustainable development and continual improvement, your Company adopts a voluntary and 
proactive approach to CSR to connect with the society by creating a sense of belonging. Your Company strives for 
sustainable development programs in partnership with the community. 

Directors'
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Members are requested to refer the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this annual report for the composition 
of the CSR Committee. The CSR policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company – www.seml.co.in - 
under the head corporate governance/policies under the Investors’ section. The annual report on the CSR activities is 
annexed as Annexure G to this report. 

The Company’s CSR initiatives usually involve setting the foundation of various programs at a small scale to learn 
from on-ground realities, getting feedback from community and then putting an enhanced sustainable model to 
ensure maximum benefit to the community. During the year, the Company’s spending on CSR has been more than the 
statutorily required. 

Corporate Governance

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, Corporate Governance Report along with the Auditors’ Certificate regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is made a part of the Annual Report.

Disclosures 

Board/Committees/Vigil Mechanism

The Board of Directors met 6 (six) times during the financial year 2018-19. The details of the composition of Board of 
Directors, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Audit Committee, other committees of the Board, meetings of 
the board and committees and attendance of directors at the Board and committee meetings and implementation of 
Vigil Mechanism are given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities provided

Particulars of loans given, investments made and guarantees given are given in note no. 11, 44, 3, 7 and 39 to the 
standalone financial statements. The Company, in its capacity of promoter, has pledged 1,07,18,160 shares of Sarda 
Metals & Alloys Limited and 11,48,35,000 of Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited with the lenders of respective 
companies for loans granted to the them by the lenders. The loans and the guarantees given are utilized by the 
recipients for their business purposes. Members are requested to refer the notes for details which are not repeated 
here for the sake of brevity.  

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties 

During the year, the Company did not have any contracts or arrangements with related parties in terms of Section 188 
(1) of the Act. Also, there were no material related party contracts entered into by the Company and all contracts were 
at arm’s length and in ordinary course of business to further the business interests of the Company. 

Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act along 
with the justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements in Form AOC-2 does not form part of the report.

The Policy on materiality of related party transaction and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the 
Board may be accessed on the Company’s website – www.seml.co.in under the head corporate governance/policies 
under Investor’ section. 

Internal Financial Control

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, 
such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as 
required to be disclosed under the Act, are provided in Annexure H to this Report.

Extract of Annual Return

Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure I to this report. The same is also available 
on the Company’s website at http://seml.co.in/Corporate%20Governance/SEML%20-%20MGT%20-%209%20-%20
2018-19.pdf

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 

Directors'
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and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other particulars of the 
employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules is annexed herewith as Annexure J to 
this Report.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in 
Annexure K to this report.  

Risk Management 

The Risk Management Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in (a) Overseeing 
and approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework; and (b) Overseeing that all the risks 
that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, accident, security, property, IT, legal, 
regulatory, reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed and there is an adequate risk management 
infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. 

A Risk Management Policy and a Hedging Policy as approved by the Board of Directors is in place. The Company 
monitors and manages the risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. 

General 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review - 
1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act;
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;
3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme; 
4. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or 

commission from any of its subsidiaries;
5. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 

concern status and Company’s operations in future;
6. The Company is required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 

section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and such accounts and records are made and maintained;
7. The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable secretarial 

standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively;

8. The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 [14 of 2013].

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The disclosures/information/details disclosed/given elsewhere in the annual report have not been repeated again in 
the directors’ report for the sake of brevity. Members are requested to refer relevant sections for the information. All 
policies/disclosures required to be disclosed on the website are available under the Investors’ section on the website 
of the Company at www.seml.co.in.  

Acknowledgement 

Your Directors place on record their gratitude for the valuable guidance and support rendered by various Government 
departments, Financial Institutions, Banks and various stakeholders, such as, shareholders, surrounding societies, 
customers and suppliers, among others. The Directors also commend the continuing commitment and dedication of 
the employees at all levels, which has been critical for the Company’s success. The Directors look forward to their 
continued support in future.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
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Key Evaluation criteria 

Evaluation of Board  

 Composition of the Board 

 Procedures for Nomination and appointment of Board members and their remuneration  

 Leadership by the Chairman of the Board  

 Receipt of proper and timely information by the Board members 

 Meaningful/active participation at board meetings  

 Consideration of quality and appropriateness of financial accounting and reporting including the transparency of 
disclosures

 Existence and effective working of necessary committees  

Evaluation of Independent Directors

 Understanding of the Company and the external environment in which it operates and contribution to strategic 
direction

 Knowledge about Company’s products/services/activities 
 Attendance and participations in the meetings and timely inputs on the minutes  
 Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of Company and disclosure of non-independence, as and 

when it exists and disclosure of interest
 Raising of valid concerns to the Board and constructive contribution to resolution of issues at meetings
 Interpersonal relations with other directors and management
 Objective evaluation of Board’s performance, rendering independent, unbiased opinion

Evaluation of Non-Independent Directors

 Attendance and participations in the meetings and timely inputs on the minutes  
 Contribution towards growth of the Company  
 Leadership initiative 
 Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of Company
 Team work attributes and supervising & training of staff members 
 Compliance with policies, reporting of frauds, violations, etc. and disclosure of interest 
 Safeguarding of interest of whistle blowers under vigil mechanism and safeguard of confidential information
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Remuneration Policy

I. Preamble

 As per the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of Sarda 
Energy & Minerals Limited (“Company”) has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The 
Committee’s role is to be supported by a policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), 
Senior Management Personnel and other Employees.

 The Policy is designed to attract, motivate, improve productivity and retain manpower, by creating a congenial 
work environment, encouraging initiatives, personal growth and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging 
and involvement, besides offering appropriate remuneration packages and superannuation benefits. The policy 
reflects the Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation for 
stakeholders.

II. Objective

 The objectives of the Policy shall be to:

 1. retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability for retention of talented 
managerial persons and create competitive advantage for the Company.

 2. guide and assist the Board in laying down and administer ESOP Compensation policy in terms of SEBI 
Guidelines, as and when decided.

III. Guiding Principles

 The following principles shall act as guiding factors while designing compensation for Directors, Key managerial 
personnel, senior management and other employees:

 1. Aligning key executive and board remuneration with the long term interests of the Company and its 
shareholders

 2. Minimize complexity and ensure transparency

 3. Link to long term strategy as well as annual business performance of the Company

 4. Promote a culture of meritocracy and is linked to key performance and business drivers

 5. Reflective of line expertise, market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent.

 6. Consideration for living condition, industry practices, pay and employment conditions with peers / elsewhere 
in the competitive market to ensure that pay structures are appropriately aligned and that levels of 
remuneration remain appropriate in this context.

IV. Remuneration

 1. General

  a. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for 
approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the provisions of 
the Act and further subject to prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central 
Government, wherever required.

  b. The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Directors shall be in accordance with 
the approval of the shareholders of the Company and as per the provisions of the Act.

  c. Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board which should be in terms of the approval of the Shareholders in the case of 
Whole-time Director.

  d. Where any insurance is taken by the Company for its Whole-time Director, Key Managerial Personnel and 
any other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance 
shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. 

   Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated 
as part of the remuneration. 
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  e. Leave
   The employees, including directors where applicable, shall be eligible for casual leave, earned leave and 

maternity leave as per prevailing Rules of the Service.
  f. Retirement benefits
   The Company shall extend Provident Fund and Gratuity benefits as per provisions of the applicable law. 

In addition, the Company may extend benefit of Provident Fund to employees drawing higher salary 
and also contribution to superannuation and other pension fund/schemes for selective employees with 
mutual consent. The gratuity, superannuation and pensionary contribution shall be invested in approved 
funds.

  g. Loans to employees
   The Company may extend interest free/ concessional loans to the employees of the Company for meeting 

fund requirement for higher education of children, land purchase, building purchase/ construction/ 
furnishing & repair, marriage of self and family members, medical treatment of self and family members 
and other exigencies. For the purpose Rules shall be framed with authority for exceptions at appropriate 
levels.

 2. Remuneration to Whole-time / Managing Director 
  a. Fixed pay
   The Whole-time Director shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the 

Board on the recommendation of the Committee subject to approval of the shareholders and Central 
Government, wherever required. The breakup of the pay and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees, allowances, severance 
payments, etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/the Person authorized by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee.  

  b. Variable pay
   The Committee may recommend suitable performance related variable payments linked to the 

performance of the Director concerned and of the Company. 
  c. Minimum Remuneration
   If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 

remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and 
if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government.

  d. Provisions for excess remuneration
   If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums 

in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, 
where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold 
it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless 
permitted by the Central Government. 

  e. Stock Options
   The Committee shall determine the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Whole 

Time Directors, subject to prevailing guidelines of SEBI, if any.
 3. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director
  a. Remuneration / Commission
   Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limits 

prescribed in the Act computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act.
  b. Sitting Fees
   The Non- Executive /Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending 

meetings of Board or Committee thereof, as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.  

   Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the amount as may be prescribed by the Central 
Government from time to time. 
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  c. Stock Options
   An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.
  d. Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are of 

professional in nature shall not be considered as remuneration, if the following conditions are satisfied:
   i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and
   ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice 

of that profession.
 4. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
  a. The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management may consist of fixed pay and 

incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the 
Company’s Policy.

  b. The Committee shall determine the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

  c. The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to superannuation fund, 
Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, allowances, bonus, etc. as decided 
from to time, for which Rules shall be framed.

  d. The Incentive pay, if any, shall be decided based on the performance of the Company and the performance 
of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as 
may be considered appropriate.

 5. Other Employees
  a. The remuneration of other employees shall be fixed from time to time as per the guiding principles 

outlined above and considering industry standards and cost of living. In addition to basic salary they 
shall also be provided perquisites and retirement benefits as per schemes of the Company and statutory 
requirements, wherever applicable. Policy of motivation/reward/severance payments are applicable to 
this category of personnel as in the case of those in the management cadre.

  b. The implementation of remuneration policy for other employees is to be ensured by CMD/DMD of the 
Company or any other personnel that the CMD/DMD may deem fit to delegate.

V Remuneration Duties
 The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters shall include: 
 1. considering and determining the remuneration based on such other factors as the Committee shall deem 

appropriate bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate 
talent. 

 2. approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company 
maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company.

 3. professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management.
VI Implementation
 1. The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement 

and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.
 2. The Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.  
VII Policy Review
 The Committee may assess the adequacy of this Policy and suggest any necessary or desirable amendments from 

time to time in the policy to the Board for approval to ensure it remains consistent with the Company’s objectives, 
current laws and best practices. 

VIII Dissemination
 This Remuneration Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s report and shall be placed on the website of the 

company as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
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CRITERIA for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of a Director 

Qualifications 

i) diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender. 

ii) appropriate blend of functional and industry expertise.

iii) Independent Directors (“ID”) ideally should be thought/ practice leaders in their respective functions/ domains.

Positive attributes 

i) compliance with duties as provided in the Companies Act, 2013.

ii) possessing highest standards of ethical and moral qualities, strong interpersonal and communication skills and 
soundness of judgment as are considered eligible for the position.

iii) act in good faith in order to promote the objects of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and 
in the best interests of the Company, its employees, the shareholders, the community and for the protection of 
environment.

iv) exercise duties with due and reasonable care, skill and diligence and exercise independent judgment.

v) IDs are also expected to abide by the Code for Independent Directors as outlined in Schedule IV to section 149(8) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Independence

A director will be considered as an “Independent Director” if the person meets with the criteria for ‘Independent 
Director’ as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 

Annexure 'C' 
to the directors' report
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Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
THE MEMBERS
M/S SARDA ENERGY & MINERALS LIMITED
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617
73-A, CENTRAL AVENUE
NAGPUR 440018 (MS)

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by M/s Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 in compliance of the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

 a) Mines Act, 1952 and the rules made thereunder;

 b) Mines & Minerals (Development & Regulation) Act, 1957 and the rules made thereunder;

 c) Iron Ore Mines, Manganese Ore Mines and Chrome Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1976 and the rules 
made thereunder;

 d) Explosives Act, 1984 and the rules made thereunder;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 & Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.
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We report that, during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations and Guidelines mentioned above except the following:- 

a) The Company has not submitted any information /documents with the Calcutta Stock Exchange. In this regard 
we have been informed that the Company has applied for delisting of its shares from Cochin, Delhi and Calcutta 
Stock Exchanges in February, 2004. The Cochin and Delhi Stock Exchange have delisted the shares of the Company 
but the delisting application with the Calcutta Stock Exchanges is still pending. In view of the pendency of delisting 
application, the Company has stopped sending any information to the Calcutta Stock Exchange and has also 
reported the matter to SEBI. 

We further report that there were no actions/events in pursuance of:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws as 
applicable to the Company, has not been reviewed in this audit, since the same has been subject to review by statutory 
auditor and other designated professionals.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board 
of Directors of the Company during the period under review.

We further report that adequate notice is given to all the directors of the Board Meetings/ Committee meetings, 
agenda alongwith detailed notes thereon were sent as per the provisions of the Act to all the Directors, and a system 
existed for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the 
Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and there were no dissenting views that need to be recorded.    

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral 
part of this report.

For, S. G. KANKANI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(CS KAMLESH OJHA)
PARTNER

Raipur ACS No. :  39476
3rd August, 2019 CP No. : 14660

Annexure 'D' 
to the directors' report
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ANNEXURE-A to Secretarial Audit Report

To,
THE MEMBERS
M/S SARDA ENERGY & MINERALS LIMITED
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617
73-A, CENTRAL AVENUE
NAGPUR 440018 (MS)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3) We have not verified the financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws as applicable to the Company, since the 
same has been subject to review by statutory audit and other designated professionals.

4) Wherever required, we have obtained the representations about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation and 
happening of events etc.  

5) The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis. 

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, S. G. KANKANI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(CS KAMLESH OJHA)
PARTNER

Raipur ACS No. :  39476
3rd August, 2019 CP No. : 14660



26 | Annual Report 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Annexure 'E' 
to the directors' report

Secretarial Audit Report of Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
THE MEMBERS
M/S SARDA METALS & ALLOYS LIMITED
CIN: U51420MH2008PLC187689
125, B-Wing, Mittal Court
Nariman Point, Mumbai - (MH)

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by M/s Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder. We 
also report that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 in compliance of the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(iv) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company as per the representation made by the Company.

We have also examined the compliance of Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that, during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations and Guidelines mentioned above.

We further report that since the Company is a unlisted public limited company, therefore, the desired information 
under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and the regulations and guidelines prescribed thereunder 
and the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder are not applicable to the 
Company.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws as 
applicable to the Company, has not been reviewed in this audit, since the same has been subject to review by statutory 
audit and other designated professionals.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that adequate notice of the Board Meetings/ Committee meetings has been given to all the directors, 
agenda alongwith detailed notes thereon were sent as per the provisions of the Act to all the Directors and a system 
existed for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the 
Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and there were no dissenting views that need to be recorded.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- A and forms an integral 
part of this report.

For, S. G. KANKANI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(CS KAMLESH OJHA)
PARTNER

Raipur ACS No. :  39476
30th July, 2019 CP No. : 14660

Annexure – To Secretarial Audit Report of Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited

To,
The Members
M/S SARDA METALS & ALLOYS LIMITED
CIN: U51420MH2008PLC187689
125, B-Wing, Mittal Court
Nariman Point, Mumbai - (MH)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws as applicable to the Company, since the 
same has been subject to review by statutory audit and other designated professionals.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For, S. G. KANKANI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(CS KAMLESH OJHA)
PARTNER

Raipur ACS No. :  39476
30th July, 2019 CP No. : 14660
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Annexure 'F' 
to the directors' report
Secretarial Audit Report of Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited for the financial year ended 31st, March, 2019

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
THE MEMBERS
M/s MADHYA BHARAT POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 
CIN: U74899DL1994PLC061349
E-585, GROUND FLOOR
GREATER KAILASH -II
NEW DELHI - 110048

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by M/s Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 in compliance of the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iii) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company as per the representation made by the Company.

We have also examined the compliance of Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that, during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations and Guidelines mentioned above. 

We further report that since the Company is a unlisted public limited company, therefore, the desired information 
under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and the regulations and guidelines prescribed thereunder & the 
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder are not applicable to the Company.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws as 
applicable to the Company, has not been reviewed in this audit, since the same has been subject to review by statutory 
audit and other designated professionals.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that adequate notice is given to all the directors of the Board Meetings/ Committee meetings, 
agenda along with detailed notes thereon were sent as per the provisions of the Act to all the Directors, and a system 
existed for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the 
Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and there were no dissenting views that need to be recorded.    

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral 
part of this report.

For, S. G. KANKANI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(CS KAMLESH OJHA)
PARTNER

Raipur ACS No. :  39476
24th May, 2019 CP No. : 14660

Annexure 'F' 
to the directors' report

Annexure – To Secretarial Audit Report of Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited  

TTo,
THE MEMBERS
M/s MADHYA BHARAT POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 
CIN: U74899DL1994PLC061349
E-585, GROUND FLOOR
GREATER KAILASH -II
NEW DELHI – 110048

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws as applicable to the Company, since the 
same has been subject to review by statutory audit and other designated professionals.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For, S. G. KANKANI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(CS KAMLESH OJHA)
PARTNER

Raipur ACS No. :  39476
24th May, 2019 CP No. : 14660
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Annexure 'G' 
to the directors' report
Annual Report on CSR Activities 

Brief Outline of CSR Policy

CSR Policy of SEML shall ensure that all developmental activities/ initiatives undertaken are accessible to the most 
deserving segments such as children, women, elderly and those with disabilities. This would reflect particularly in the 
field of education, healthcare, sanitation, community welfare, skill development, infrastructure development, rural 
development, etc.

The CSR Policy focuses on addressing critical social, environmental and economic needs of the marginalized/
underprivileged sections of the society. SEML adopts an approach that integrates the solutions to these problems into 
the strategies of the Company to benefit the communities at large and create social and environmental impact.

The main objective of CSR Policy is to lay down guidelines to make CSR a key business process for sustainable 
development for the society. It aims at supplementing the program of the Government in enhancing welfare measures 
of the society based on the immediate and long term social and environmental consequences of their activities. The 
focus areas under SEML CSR policy are Education, healthcare, sports, art & culture, rural development programmes, 
social business projects, etc.  

The CSR Policy can be accessed on the Company’s website – www.seml.co.in - under the head corporate governance /
policies under the Investors’ section. 

CSR Committee

As per the requirement, your Company is required to constitute a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee of 
the Board of Directors comprising three or more directors with at least one being independent director. Your Company 
has a Board Committee (CSR Committee) that oversees the execution of CSR Policy to ensure that the CSR objectives 
of the Company are met. The Committee comprises of:  

 Mr. G.S. Sahni, Chairman – Independent Director*

 Mr. K.K. Sarda

 Mr. Pankaj Sarda 

*  W.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Till 31st March, 2019, Mr. P.R. Tripathi (retired w.e.f .1st April, 2019) was the Chairman.  

Financial details

As per the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend at least 2% of the average net profits of the 
company’s three immediately preceding financial years on CSR activities. The relevant details are as hereunder:

Particulars Amount
(` Lakh)

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years 14,377.38
Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of net profit as computed above)
(including unspent amount of 2016-17 - ` 7.00 lakh)

294.55

Details of CSR Expenditure during 2018-19
Total amount to be spent 294.55
Amount spent 294.71
Amount unspent --
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Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2018-19

S.
No.

CSR
Project or

acƟvity
idenƟfied

Sector in 
which the 
project is 

covered (as 
per clauses of 
Schedule VII 

to Companies 
Act, 2013)

Projects
or programs

(1) Local
area or other

(2) Specify the State 
and district

where projects or
Programs was

undertaken

Amount
Outlay

 

Amount
spent on the
projects or
programs
Subheads:
(1)Direct

expenditure
on projects

or programs.
(2)Overheads

CumulaƟve
Expenditure

upto the
reporƟng

period

Amount
Spent Direct
or through

ImplemenƟng
Agency

1 Healthcare Clause (i) Raipur and 
Dongarbore in 
Chhaƫsgarh

50.00 41.17 41.17 Direct/
ImplemenƟng 
agency^

2 EducaƟon Clause (ii) Raipur and 
Dongarbore in 
Chhaƫsgarh

150.00 138.92 138.92 Direct/
ImplemenƟng 
agency*

3 Environment Clause (iv) Raipur in 
Chhaƫsgarh

5.00 1.21 1.21 Direct

4 Empowering 
Women

Clause (iii) Raipur in 
Chhaƫsgarh

5.00 13.56 13.56 ImplemenƟng 
agency@

5 Art & Culture Clause (v) Raipur in 
Chhaƫsgarh

20.00 16.35 16.35 Direct / 
implemenƟng 
agency#

6 Armed Forces 
veterans

Clause (vi) ContribuƟon to 
Bharat Ke Veer 
Corpus Fund

1.00 15.00 15.00 Direct/
ImplemenƟng 
agency$

7 Livelihood 
projects

Clause (ii) Raipur in 
Chhaƫsgarh

2.00 1.26 1.26 Direct

8 Sports Clause (vii) Raipur Chhaƫsgarh 2.00 1.86 1.86 Direct
9 Rural 

development 
projects

Clause (x) Raipur and 
Dongarbore in 
Chhaƫsgarh

50.00 56.33 56.33 Direct

10 AdministraƟve
Expenses

Office Raipur 9.55 9.05 9.05 Direct

Total 294.55 294.71 294.71

^  Shabri Sewa Sansthanam / Manav Seva Sansthan 
*  Friends of Tribal Society / Trusts
@ Female Jaju Trust 
# Mahwshwari Samaj, Kunkuri /Others
$ Bharat Ke Veer Corpus Fund

Responsibility Statement 

We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy, as approved by the Board, has been implemented and the CSR Committee 
monitors the implementation of CSR projects and activities in compliance with CSR objectives.  

 K. K. Sarda G. S. Sahni
 (Chairman & Managing Director) (Chairman – CSR Committee)

Annexure 'G' 
to the directors' report
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ConservaƟon of Energy, Technology AbsorpƟon and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
[Pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. ConservaƟon of energy

i) Steps taken or impact on conservaƟon 
of energy

: PELLET 
i) Medium Voltage drive provided in HA fan 1 Motor (400 KW, 

6.6KV) for speed variaƟon and as a result energy saved 1000 - 
1100 KWH Units per day.

ii) VFD provided in Grizzly pump motor 1 & 2 or speed variaƟon and 
as a result energy saved 300 - 310 KWH Units per day.

SPONGE IRON PLANT
iii) Energy saving LED light fixing in plant at various locaƟons.
iv) 500 TPD Coal Circuit modified only for Fines Coal feeding.
v) 500 TPD PDB Room old viscus filter replaced by new energy 

efficient Cooling system.
POWER PLANT
vi) Replacement of TG- 03 to reduce specific steam consumpƟon.

ii) the steps taken by the company for 
uƟlising alternate sources of energy

: –

iii) the capital investment on energy 
conservaƟon equipments

: ` 5,340.04 lakh

B. Technology absorpƟon

i) The efforts made towards technology 
absorpƟon

: i) EliminaƟon of Hydraulic coupler of HA fan 1 for speed variaƟon 
by introducing Medium Voltage Drive technology.

ii) Up-gradaƟon of Control Systems in Kiln - A, B & C by replacing 
old DCS Systems with Latest Single PLC System of Rockwell 
AutomaƟon for all 03 Kilns at SID.

iii) AutomaƟon of Power Changeover (From Main Power to DG 
Power & Vice-versa) through Auto DG (02 Nos.) SynchronizaƟon 
& Auto OperaƟon of Circuit Breakers (as per pre-defined logic) 
at SID.

iv) InstallaƟon of new electrode column assembly (Make-Cometva) 
in furnace –E to increase the furnace availability at ferro alloys 
plant.

v) InstallaƟon of newly fabricated roll crusher feed hopper at 
pellet Plant.

vi) PneumaƟc conveying system installed & commissioned for 
mixer bag filter dust conveying at Pellet Plant.

vii) Installed & commissioned pellet feeding system in FPC 2 
conveyor at Pellet Plant.

ii) the benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reducƟon, product 
development or import subsƟtuƟon

: Over & under size screen roller (60 Nos) – Indigenous party 
developed for same price with beƩer quality (Hard crome 
plaƟng, 80-90 microns). Geƫng life 1.5 Ɵmes than earlier.
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iii) in case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)-

: -----

a) the details of technology imported : -----
b)  the year of import : -----

c) whether the technology has been 
fully absorbed

: -----

d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorpƟon has not taken place, 
and the reasons thereof; and

: -----

iv) the expenditure incurred on Research 
and Development

: Expenditure on R & D is not specifically accounted for. Internal 
team undertakes the R & D acƟviƟes.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
(` in crore)

a) Foreign exchange earnings

b) Foreign exchange outgo

:

:

` 156.31

` 221.74

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(K. K. Sarda)
Raipur Chairman & Managing Director
3rd August, 2019 DIN: 00008170

Annexure 'H' 
to the directors' report
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FORM No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended 31.03.2019
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. Registration and other details 

CIN L27100MH1973PLC016617
RegistraƟon Date 23.06.1973
Name of the Company Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public company / Limited by shares
Address of the Registered Office and contact details 73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.) 440018

Tel: +91-712-2722407
Whether listed company Yes
Name, address and contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any

Bigshare Services Private Limited
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building
Opp. Basant Oasis, Makwana Road
Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra
Tel: +91-22-6263 8200, Fax: +91-22-6263 8299
E-mail : investor@bigshareonline.com

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company   

 All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated :

SI. 
No.

Name and DescripƟon of main 
Products / Services

NIC Code of the Product / Service % to total turnover of the 
Company

1 Sponge Iron/Ferro Alloys/Billet/
Wire-rod/ Iron ore Pellet

241 - Manufacture of 
basic iron and steel

95.66%

III. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies 

Name and address of the Company CIN / GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary / 

Associate 

% of shares 
held

Applicable
SecƟon

Sarda Energy & Minerals Hongkong Limited NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
5th Floor, Dah Sing Life Bldg.,99-105 Des 
Voeux Road, Central, Hongkong 
Sarda Global Venture Pte. Limited NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
9, Raffles Place, #57-00, Republic Plaza, 
Singapore - 048619
Sarda Global Trading DMCC NA Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
Unit No.1241, DMCC Business Centre, Level 
No.1, Jewellery & Gemplex 3, Dubai, UAE
Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited U51420MH2008PLC187689 Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
125-B Wing, MiƩal Court, Nariman Point, 
Mumbai
Sarda Energy Limited U40102CT2008PLC000406 Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)(ii)
Vanijya Bhawan, 1st Floor, Sai Nagar Devendra 
Nagar Road, Raipur
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to the directors' report

Name and address of the Company CIN / GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary / 

Associate 

% of shares 
held

Applicable
SecƟon

Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited U74899DL1994PLC061349 Subsidiary 68.31% 2(87)(ii)
E-585, Ground Floor, Greater Kailash - II, New 
Delhi
ParvaƟya Power Limited U40101UP1994PLC017151 Subsidiary 51.00% 2(87)(ii)
136 Khari Bazar, Ranikhet, UƩranchal
Sarda Hydro Power LLP# AAO-4263 Subsidiary 60.00% 2(87)(ii)
HIG Duplex House No. -2A Moulshri Vihar, 
Purena Raipur 
Raipur Fabritech Private Limited* U28910MH2011PTC221297 Subsidiary 52.38% 2(87)(ii)
125-B Wing, MiƩal Court, Nariman Point, 
Mumbai
Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited* U40300MH2011PTC224871 Subsidiary 51.00% 2(87)(ii)
125-B Wing, MiƩal Court, Nariman Point, 
Mumbai
Natural Resources Energy Private Limited U40101CT2007PTC020163 Subsidiary 71.55% 2(87)(ii)
JMG House, Near Abhivadan House, 
Panchsheel Nagar, Raipur
Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP AAA-2277 Subsidiary 60.00% 2(87)(ii)
House No.A/02, VIP Road, Moul Shree Vihar, 
Raipur
Shri Ram Electricity LLP AAA-2517 Subsidiary 51.00% 2(87)(ii)
Vanijya Bhawan, 1st Floor, Sai Nagar, 
Devendra Nagar Road, Raipur
Raipur Infrastructure Company Limited U45203CT2004PLC016321 Associate 33.33% 2(6)
Vanijya Bhawan, Sai Nagar Devendra Nagar 
Road, Raipur
Madanpur South Coal Company Limited U10300CT2006PLC020006 Associate 20.13% 2(6)
Vanijya Bhawan, Sai Nagar Devendra Nagar 
Road, Raipur

# Converted into LLP from Sarda Hydro Power Private Limited                                          
* Companies under strike-off.

IV. Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No. of shares held at the end of the year % 
Change

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual / HUF 79,07,397 0 79,07,397 21.93 79,07,397 0 79,07,397 21.93 0.00
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Bodies Corporate 1,79,89,232 0 1,79,89,232 49.90 1,80,79,232 0 1,80,79,232 50.15 0.25
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No. of shares held at the end of the year % 
Change

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
f) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f i) Firm 1,47,731 0 1,47,731 0.41 1,47,731 0 1,47,731 0.41 0.00
Sub-Total (A)(1) : 2,60,44,360 0 2,60,44,360 72.25 2,61,34,360 0 2,61,34,360 72.50 0.25
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Other - 
Individuals

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (A)(2): 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Total Shareholding 
of Promoters (A) =  
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

2,60,44,360 0 2,60,44,360 72.25 2,61,34,360 0 2,61,34,360 72.50 0.25

B. Public 
Shareholding
(1) InsƟtuƟons
a) Mutual Funds 
/ UTI

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Banks / FI 31,570 2,500 34,070 0.09 19,515 2,500 22,015 0.06 (0.03)
c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

f) Insurance 
Companies

0 250 250 0.00 0 250 250 0.00 0.00

g) FIIs 11,220 0 11,220 0.03 0 0 0 0.00 (0.03)
h) Foreign Porƞolio 
Investors

9,81,771 0 9,81,771 2.72 7,87,587 0 7,87,587 2.18 (0.54)

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (B)(1): 10,24,561 2,750 10,27,311 2.85 8,07,102 2,750 8,09,852 2.25 (0.60)
(2) Non-InsƟtuƟons
a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 14,91,703 9,949 15,01,652 4.17 15,58,170 9,949 15,68,119 4.35 0.18
ii) Overseas 16,84,891 0 16,84,891 4.67 6,84,891 0 6,84,891 1.90 (2.77)
b) Individuals
i) Individual Share 
hol- ders holding 
nominal share 
capital upto 
` 1 lakh

34,90,603 3,25,680 38,16,283 10.59 39,86,096 2,96,459 42,82,555 11.88 1.29
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No. of shares held at the end of the year % 
Change

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
i) Individual Share 
hol- ders holding 
nominal share 
capital in excess of 
` 1 lakh

11,86,952 0 11,86,952 3.29 16,93,937 0 16,93,937 4.70 1.41

c) Others (specify)
c i) NRIs 1,88,403 0 1,88,403 0.52 2,05,309 0 2,05,309 0.57 0.05
c ii) Directors & 
RelaƟves 

1,11,219 7,841 1,19,060 0.33 1,12,019 7,841 1,19,860 0.33 0.00

c iii) NBFC’s regd. 
with RBI

3,085 0 3,085 0.01 311 0 311 0.00 (0.01)

c iv) Clearing 
Member

3,49,441 0 3,49,441 0.97 4,06,813 0 4,06,813 1.13 0.16

c v) Trusts 500 0 500 0.00 1,700 0 1,700 0.00 0.00
c vi) IEPF 1,27,297 0 1,27,297 0.35 1,41,528 0 1,41,528 0.39 0.39
Sub-Total (B)(2): 86,34,094 3,43,470 89,77,564 24.90 87,90,774 3,14,249 91,05,023 25.26 0.35
Total Public Share 
holding (B)=(B)
(1)+(B)(2)

96,58,655 3,46,220 1,00,04,875 27.75 95,97,876 3,16,999 99,14,875 27.50 (0.25)

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

3,57,03,015 3,46,220 3,60,49,235 100.00 3,57,32,236 3,16,999 3,60,49,235 100.00 (0.00)

 ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding as on 01.04.2018 Shareholding at on 31.03.2019 % 
changeNo. of

Shares
% of total

shares
of the

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered 
to total shares

1 ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited 1,37,88,760 38.25 0  1,38,78,760 38.50 0 0.250
2 Sarda Agriculture & ProperƟes Private 

Limited
 26,35,150 7.31 0  26,35,150 7.31 0 0.000

3 Prachi Agriculture & ProperƟes Private 
limited 

 15,65,322 4.34 0  15,65,322 4.34 0 0.000

4 G.D. Sarda  13,92,378 3.86 0  13,92,378 3.86 0 0.000
5 Kamal Kishore Sarda  13,09,149 3.63 0  13,09,149 3.63 0 0.000
6 J.K. Sarda  11,72,365 3.25 0  11,72,365 3.25 0 0.000
7 Shakuntala Sarda  10,14,518 2.81 0  10,14,518 2.81 0 0.000
8 ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited 

(Firm)
 1,47,731 0.41 0  1,47,731 0.41 0 0.000

9 Veena Sarda  7,02,350 1.95 0  7,02,350 1.95 0 0.000
10 Pankaj Sarda  6,91,107 1.92 0  6,91,107 1.92 0 0.000
11 Premlata Sarda  4,68,910 1.30 0  4,68,910 1.30 0 0.000
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Sl. 
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding as on 01.04.2018 Shareholding at on 31.03.2019 % 
changeNo. of

Shares
% of total

shares
of the

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged /

encumbered 
to total shares

12 Uma Sarda  4,89,425 1.36 0  4,89,425 1.36 0 0.000
13 Dr. K.K. Rathi  6,000 0.02 0  6,000 0.02 0 0.000
14 Manish Sarda  2,37,570 0.66 0  2,37,570 0.66 0 0.000
15 Aditya Sarda  1,12,840 0.31 0  1,12,840 0.31 0 0.000
16 Raghav Sarda  1,12,840 0.31 0  1,12,840 0.31 0 0.000
17 Neeraj Sarda  98,490 0.27 0  98,490 0.27 0 0.000
18 Anant Sarda  49,140 0.14 0  49,140 0.14 0 0.000
19 J.K. Sarda (HUF)  21,716 0.06 0  21,716 0.06 0 0.000
20 Shashi Rathi  19,467 0.05 0  19,467 0.05 0 0.000
21 AdiƟ Sarda  9,132 0.03 0  9,132 0.03 0 0.000

Total 2,60,44,360 72.247 0  2,61,34,360 72.496 0 0.250

 iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve 
shareholding during 

the year
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

1 ChhaƟsgarh
Investments 
Limited

At the beginning of the year 1,37,88,760 38.25
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

20.06.2018 Puchase  90,000  1,38,78,760 38.50

At the end of the year 1,38,78,760 38.50
2 Sarda 

Agriculture
& 
ProperƟes 
Private
Limited 

At the beginning of the year  26,35,150 7.31
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  26,35,150 7.31
3 Prachi 

Agriculture
& 
ProperƟes 
Private 
Limited

At the beginning of the year  15,65,322 4.34
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  15,65,322 4.34
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Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve 
shareholding during 

the year
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

4 Ghanshyam
Sarda

At the beginning of the year  13,92,378 3.86
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  13,92,378 3.86
5 Kamal 

Kishore
Sarda

At the beginning of the year  13,09,149 3.63
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  13,09,149 3.63
6 J. K. Sarda At the beginning of the year  11,72,365 3.25

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  11,72,365 3.25
7 Shakuntala 

Sarda
At the beginning of the year  10,14,518 2.81

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  10,14,518 2.81
8 ChhaƟsgarh

Investments 
Limited 
(Firm)

At the beginning of the year  1,47,731 0.41
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  1,47,731 0.41
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Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve 
shareholding during 

the year
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

9 Veena 
Sarda

At the beginning of the year  7,02,350 1.95

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  7,02,350 1.95
10 Pankaj 

Sarda
At the beginning of the year  6,91,107 1.92

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  6,91,107 1.92
11 Premlata 

Sarda
At the beginning of the year  4,68,910 1.30

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  4,68,910 1.30
12 Uma Sarda At the beginning of the year  4,89,425 1.36

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  4,89,425 1.36
13 Dr. K.K. 

Rathi
At the beginning of the year  6,000 0.02

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  6,000 0.02
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Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve 
shareholding during 

the year
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

14 Manish 
Sarda

At the beginning of the year  2,37,570 0.66
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  2,37,570 0.66
15 Aditya 

Sarda
At the beginning of the year  1,12,840 0.31
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  1,12,840 0.31
16 Raghav 

Sarda
At the beginning of the year  1,12,840 0.31
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  1,12,840 0.31
17 Neeraj 

Sarda
At the beginning of the year  98,490 0.27
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  98,490 0.27
18 Anant Sarda At the beginning of the year  49,140 0.14

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  49,140 0.14
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Sl. 
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve 
shareholding during 

the year
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

19 J.K. Sarda 
(HUF)

At the beginning of the year  21,716 0.06
Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  21,716 0.06
20 Shashi Rathi At the beginning of the year  19,467 0.05

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  19,467 0.05
21 AdiƟ Sarda At the beginning of the year  9,132 0.03

Datewise Increase/Decrease 
in  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL

At the end of the year  9,132 0.03

 iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 
ADRs)

SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

1 Asia Minerals 
Limited

At the beginning of the year 16,84,891 4.67
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

25.05.2018 Sale   (1,25,000)      15,59,891 4.33
01.06.2018 Sale   (1,35,000)      14,24,891 3.95
08.06.2019 Sale   (3,40,000)      10,84,891 3.01
22.02.2019 Sale   (4,00,000)        6,84,891 1.90

At the end of the year   6,84,891 1.90
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

2 Fortune
Couriers Limited

At the beginning of the year   2,74,528 0.76
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

31.08.2018 Sale      (10,000)        2,64,528 0.73
02.11.2018 Sale        (5,000)        2,59,528 0.72
29.03.2019 Purchase        13,498        2,73,026 0.76

At the end of the year   2,73,026 0.76
3 PraƟbha 

Endeavor 
Private Limited

At the beginning of the year   2,63,861 0.73
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in  Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

22.06.2018 Sale      (90,000)        1,73,861 0.48

At the end of the year   1,73,861 0.48
4 Acadian 

Emerging
Markets Small
Cap Equity Fund
LLC

At the beginning of the year   2,17,272 0.60
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

25.05.2018 Sale        (6,176)        2,11,096 0.59
15.06.2018 Purchase          5,799        2,16,895 0.60

At the end of the year   2,16,895 0.60
5 The Board of 

Regents of the 
University of
Texas System
Acadian Asset
Management

At the beginning of the year   1,67,325 0.46
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

18.05.2018 Sale        (9,182)        1,58,143 0.44
15.06.2018 Purchase          8,481        1,66,624 0.46
22.06.2018 Purchase          7,579        1,74,203 0.48

At the end of the year   1,74,203 0.48
6 Ajay

Natwarlal
Vora*
13015200
00153044

At the beginning of the year   1,38,000 0.38
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

05.10.2018 Purchase          3,000        1,41,000 0.39

At the end of the year   1,41,000 0.39
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

7 Prabhudas 
Liladhar  Private
Limited*

At the beginning of the year   1,20,766 0.34
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

06.04.2018 Sale        (2,003)        1,18,763 0.33
13.04.2018 Sale        (2,243)        1,16,520 0.32
20.04.2018 Purchase          1,887        1,18,407 0.33
27.04.2018 Sale        (2,902)        1,15,505 0.32
04.05.2018 Sale           (490)        1,15,015 0.32
11.05.2018 Sale           (264)        1,14,751 0.32
18.05.2018 Purchase          1,697        1,16,448 0.32
25.05.2018 Purchase          5,125        1,21,573 0.34
01.06.2018 Purchase          2,059        1,23,632 0.34
08.06.2018 Purchase             659        1,24,291 0.34
15.06.2018 Purchase               45        1,24,336 0.34
22.06.2018 Purchase          1,860        1,26,196 0.35
29.06.2018 Purchase          8,251        1,34,447 0.37
06.07.2018 Purchase          1,069        1,35,516 0.38
13.07.2018 Sale           (810)        1,34,706 0.37
20.07.2018 Sale        (1,197)        1,33,509 0.37
27.07.2018 Purchase          4,373        1,37,882 0.38
03.08.2018 Sale        (6,100)        1,31,782 0.37
10.08.2018 Sale        (1,355)        1,30,427 0.36
17.08.2018 Sale        (7,115)        1,23,312 0.34
24.08.2018 Sale      (20,852)        1,02,460 0.28
31.08.2018 Sale        (1,901)        1,00,559 0.28
07.09.2018 Sale        (8,886)           91,673 0.25
14.09.2018 Purchase          2,973           94,646 0.26
21.09.2018 Purchase          2,813           97,459 0.27
28.09.2018 Sale        (3,162)           94,297 0.26
05.10.2018 Sale           (355)           93,942 0.26
12.10.2018 Sale           (294)           93,648 0.26
19.10.2018 Sale           (560)           93,088 0.26
26.10.2018 Purchase          1,050           94,138 0.26
02.11.2018 Sale        (1,075)           93,063 0.26
09.11.2018 Sale        (9,322)           83,741 0.23
16.11.2018 Purchase          1,950           85,691 0.24
23.11.2018 Sale        (6,186)           79,505 0.22
30.11.2018 Sale           (720)           78,785 0.22
07.12.2018 Sale        (3,906)           74,879 0.21
14.12.2018 Purchase          2,013           76,892 0.21
21.12.2018 Sale        (4,072)           72,820 0.20
28.12.2018 Sale        (1,882)           70,938 0.20
31.12.2018 Sale           (922)           70,016 0.19
04.01.2019 Sale        (1,204)           68,812 0.19
11.01.2019 Purchase          3,211           72,023 0.20
18.01.2019 Sale        (4,111)           67,912 0.19
25.01.2019 Sale           (686)           67,226 0.19
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

01.02.2019 Purchase             688           67,914 0.19
08.02.2019 Purchase             727           68,641 0.19
15.02.2019 Sale        (1,793)           66,848 0.19
01.03.2019 Purchase               83           66,931 0.19
08.03.2019 Purchase             787           67,718 0.19
15.03.2019 Purchase          1,450           69,168 0.19
22.03.2019 Sale        (1,850)           67,318 0.19
29.03.2019 Sale        (2,741)           64,577 0.18

At the end of the year 64,577 0.18
8 Pension 

Reserves
Investment
Trust Fund - 
Acadian*

At the beginning of the year   1,06,044 0.29
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

08.06.2018 Purchase          9,831        1,15,875 0.32

At the end of the year   1,15,875 0.32
9 Suresh BhaƟa* At the beginning of the year   1,05,000 0.29

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

25.05.2018 Sale        (5,000)        1,00,000 0.28
08.06.2018 Sale        (1,038)           98,962 0.27
03.08.2018 Sale      (29,998)           68,964 0.19
28.09.2018 Sale        (4,940)           64,024 0.18
05.10.2018 Sale        (1,500)           62,524 0.17
12.10.2018 Sale        (2,500)           60,024 0.17
19.10.2018 Sale      (60,000)                  24 0.00

At the end of the year   24 0.00
10 Prachi Sarda* At the beginning of the year 70,842 0.20 NIL NIL

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):
At the end of the year 70,842 0.20

11 Pace Stock 
Broking
Services Private 
Limited

At the beginning of the year   2,350 0.01
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

20.04.2018 Sale        (2,000)                350 0.00
18.05.2018 Purchase             100                450 0.00
25.05.2018 Purchase          1,000             1,450 0.00
01.06.2018 Sale        (1,000)                450 0.00
15.06.2018 Sale             (22)                428 0.00
22.06.2018 Sale               (3)                425 0.00
13.07.2018 Purchase             702             1,127 0.00
20.07.2018 Sale           (702)                425 0.00
17.08.2018 Sale           (200)                225 0.00
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

07.09.2018 Purchase             550                775 0.00
14.09.2018 Sale             (75)                700 0.00
16.11.2018 Sale           (525)                175 0.00
23.11.2018 Purchase               75                250 0.00
30.11.2018 Purchase             105                355 0.00
07.12.2018 Sale           (105)                250 0.00
21.12.2018 Sale             (50)                200 0.00
18.01.2019 Purchase               25                225 0.00
25.01.2019 Sale             (25)                200 0.00
08.02.2019 Purchase               95                295 0.00
15.02.2019 Sale             (95)                200 0.00
22.02.2019 Purchase     4,00,000        4,00,200 1.11
01.03.2019 Sale   (2,00,000)        2,00,200 0.56
08.03.2019 Purchase               23        2,00,223 0.56
15.03.2019 Sale             (23)        2,00,200 0.56
22.03.2019 Purchase               60        2,00,260 0.56
29.03.2019 Purchase               50        2,00,310 0.56

At the end of the year   2,00,310 0.56
12 Mahima Stocks

Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

01.03.2019 Purchase     2,00,000        2,00,000 0.55

At the end of the year   2,00,000 0.55
13 Pankaj Jalan At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

24.08.2019 Purchase     1,58,928        1,58,928 0.44
19.10.2018 Purchase        26,072        1,85,000 0.51

At the end of the year   1,85,000 0.51
14 ParwaƟ Devi 

Jalan
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

24.08.2018 Purchase     1,30,000        1,30,000 0.36
11.01.2019 Purchase        13,315        1,43,315 0.40
18.01.2019 Purchase        22,334        1,65,649 0.46
25.01.2019 Purchase          5,606        1,71,255 0.48
08.02.2019 Purchase        10,358        1,81,613 0.50

At the end of the year   1,81,613 0.50
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

15 Niraj Jalan At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

24.08.2018 Purchase     1,60,000        1,60,000 0.44

At the end of the year   1,60,000 0.44

*Among top 10 as on 31.03.2018

 v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

1 Kamal Kishore
Sarda

At the beginning of the year 13,09,149 3.63

NA NA

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):
At the end of the year 13,09,149 3.63

2 Pankaj Sarda At the beginning of the year   6,91,107 1.92

NA NA

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):
At the end of the year   6,91,107 1.92

3 Uma Sarda At the beginning of the year   4,89,425 1.36

NA NA

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):
At the end of the year   4,89,425 1.36
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

4 C.K.
Lakshmi
narayanan

At the beginning of the year   8,000 0.02
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year   8,000 0.02
5 A.K. Basu At the beginning of the year   4,000 0.01

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year   4,000 0.01
6 G.S. Sahni At the beginning of the year   3,500 0.01

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year   3,500 0.01
7 J. Balakrishnan At the beginning of the year   1,667 0.00

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in  Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year   1,667 0.00
8 Rakesh Mehra At the beginning of the year   9,737 0.03

Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

24.08.2018 Purchase 650 10387 0.03
31.08.2018 Sale (150) 10237 0.03
07.09.2018 Purchase 300 10537 0.03

At the end of the year 10,537 0.03
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SI.
No.

Name Shareholding 
(Beginning of the year)

TransacƟons during the year CumulaƟve shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Date Reason No. of 
shares

CumulaƟve % of total 
shares

9 P.R. Tripathi* At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year 0 0.00
* reƟred w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
10 P.K. Jain

(WTD & CFO)
At the beginning of the year 10,073 0.03
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year 10,073 0.03
11 Manish Sethi

(CS)
At the beginning of the year   1,680 0.00
Datewise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc):

NA NA

At the end of the year   1,680 0.00
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V. Indebtedness 

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(` in lakh)

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount  28,545.52  4,000.00  -    32,545.52 
ii) Interest due but not paid  -    -    -    -   
iii) Interest accrued but not due  81.79  -    81.79 
Total (i+ii+iii)  28,627.31  4,000.00  -    32,627.31 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
AddiƟon  4,134.49  1,300.00  -    5,434.49 
ReducƟon  (8,538.78)  -    -    (8,538.78)
Net Change  (4,404.29)  1,300.00  -    (3,104.29)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount  24,189.63  5,300.00  -    29,489.63 
ii) Interest due but not paid    -    -  -    -   
iii) Interest accrued but not due  33.39  -    33.39 
Total (i+ii+iii)  24,223.02  5,300.00  -    29,523.02 

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(` in lakh)

SI.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of MD/ WTD/ Manager Total Amount
Mr. K. K. Sarda Mr. Pankaj 

Sarda
Mr. P. K. Jain 
(WTD & CFO)

1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in SecƟon 17(1) 

of the Income Tax Act, 1961
 141.36 65.84 51.06 258.26

(b) Value of perquisites under SecƟon 17(2) Income 
Tax Act, 1961

0.40 0.29 0.29 0.98

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under SecƟon 17(3) Income 
Tax Act, 1961

- - - -

2 Stock OpƟons - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission

a) as % of profit 350.00 100.00 - 450.00
b) others, specify  -  -  -  - 

5 Others, please specify (PF/SuperannuaƟon) 17.34 5.10 4.03 26.47
Total (A) 509.10 171.23 55.38 735.71
Ceiling as per the Act 10% of the net profits of the Company.

Annexure 'I' 
to the directors' report
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B. Remuneration to other Directors :
(` in lakh)

SI.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of Director Total
Mrs. Uma 

Sarda
Mr. C.L. 

Lakshmi-
narayanan

Mr. A.K. 
Basu

Mr. 
Rakesh 
Mehra

Mr. P.R. 
Tripathi

Mr. G.S. 
Sahni

Mr. J.
Bala-

krishnan
1. Independent Directors:
a) Fee for aƩending board /

commiƩee meeƟngs
 -    1.40  2.90  1.20  1.30  1.60  3.40 11.80

b) Commission  -    3.00  3.00  3.00  3.00  3.00  3.00  18.00 
c) Others, please specify (Stock 

opƟon)
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total (1)  -    4.40  5.90  4.20  4.30  4.60  6.40  29.80 
2. Other Non ExecuƟve 

Directors
a) Fee for aƩending board 

commiƩee meeƟngs
1.20 - - - - - - 1.20

b) Commission - - - - - - - -
c) Others, please specify - - - - - - - -

Total (2) 1.20 - - - - - - 1.20
Total (B) = (1+2)  1.20  4.40  5.90  4.20  4.30  4.60  6.40  31.00 
Total Managerial 
RemuneraƟon^

766.71

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 11% of the net profits of the Company

^ Total remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and other Directors (being the total of A and B).

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD :
(` in lakh)

SI.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Key Managerial Personnel $ Total
Company Secretary

1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in SecƟon 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 

1961
13.33 13.33

(b) Value of perquisites under SecƟon 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under SecƟon 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00

2 Stock OpƟons 0.00 0.00
3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00
4 Commission

a) as % of profit 0.00 0.00
b) others, specify…. 0.00 0.00

5 Others, please specify (PF/SuperannuaƟon)  0.46  0.46 
Total  13.79  13.79 

$ Details of remuneration of CFO - Mr. P.K. Jain appears along with the details of remuneration of Wholetime Directors 
as he also is a Whole time Director

Annexure 'I' 
to the directors' report



52 | Annual Report 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

VII. Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences 

Type SecƟon of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
DescripƟon

Details of 
Penalty /

Punishment /
Compounding 

fees
imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT / 

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any

(give details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty

NILPunishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty

NILPunishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

NILPunishment
Compounding

Annexure 'I' 
to the directors' report
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Particulars of employees - Information as per Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 
(i) The percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during 

the financial year 2018-19, raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each Director to the median remuneraƟon of the 
employees of the Company for the financial year 2018-19:

S.
No.

Name of Director / KMP RemuneraƟon
of Director/

KMP for F.Y. 2018-19
(` in lakh)

% increase in 
RemuneraƟon

in the
F.Y. 2018-19

RaƟo of
remuneraƟon of each 

Director to median
remuneraƟon of employees

1 Mr. K. K. Sarda 509.10 14.42 154.70
2 Mr. Pankaj Sarda 171.23 142.74 52.03
3 Mr. P. K. Jain – CFO & WTD 55.38 10.01 16.83
4 Mrs. Uma Sarda 1.20 - 0.36
5 Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan 4.40 (4.35) 1.34
6 Mr. J. Balakrishnan 6.40 20.75 1.94
7 Mr. G. S. Sahni 4.60 - 1.40
8 Mr. P. R. Tripathi* 4.30 (4.44) 1.31
9 Mr. A. K. Basu 5.90 18.00 1.79
10 Mr. Rakesh Mehra 4.20 20.00 1.28
11 Mr. Manish Sethi (CS) 13.79 12.21 N.A.

* ReƟred w.e.f. 1st April, 2019

ii) The median remuneraƟon of employees of the Company during 2018-19 was ` 3.29 lakh.

iii) In 2018-19, there was an increase of 8.58% in the median remuneraƟon of employees.

iv) There were 1,243 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2019.

v) Average % increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year, 
i.e. 2018-19 was 9.35% as against 8.78% in the previous year. There was an increase of 27.66% in the managerial 
remuneraƟon for the same period.

vi) Commission to Chairman & Managing Director and Jt. Managing director is recommended by the NominaƟon 
& RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and approved by the Board of Directors keeping in view the performance of the 
Company. Commission to Non-execuƟve Directors is based on the involvement and contribuƟon towards 
governance pracƟces and discharging fiduciary duƟes.

vii) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneraƟon paid is as per the RemuneraƟon Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other Employees.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(K. K. Sarda)
Raipur Chairman & Managing Director
3rd August, 2019 DIN: 00008170

Annexure 'K' 
to the directors' report
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The operaƟng and financial review is intended to convey the Management’s perspecƟve on the financial and operaƟng 
performance of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 and outlook for the current financial year. This Report 
should be read in conjuncƟon with the Company’s financial statements, the schedules and notes thereto and other 
informaƟon included elsewhere in the Annual Report. This report is an integral part of the Directors’ Report.  

Industry Structure and Development 

Global Economy

The global economy started 2018 with strong, synchronized growth. But as the year progressed, momentum faded 
and growth trends diverged. The US economy accelerated, thanks to fiscal sƟmulus enacted early in the year, while 
the economies of the Eurozone, the UK, Japan and China began to weaken. These divergent trends persist in 2019. The 
global growth is predicted to be deceleraƟng over the next few years.

One major risk in the coming year is the sharp drop-off in world trade growth, which fell from over 5% at the beginning 
of 2018 to nearly zero at the end. With escalaƟon in trade conflicts, a contracƟon in world trade could drag down the 
global economy even more. These risks point to the increasing vulnerability of the global economy to further shocks, 
and the rising probability of a recession in the next couple of years.

Indian Economy

The Indian economy is facing a number of challenges, but with strategic policy shiŌs like ‘Make-in-India’ iniƟaƟve and 
implementaƟon of various policy reforms like ease of doing business, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), Real 
Estate RegulaƟon Act (RERA) and Goods and Services Tax (GST), the Indian economy is expected to rebound.

The Govt. of India has planned expenditure of ` 100 lakh crore over next 5 years on upgradaƟon of infrastructure. This 
aims to achieve beƩer infrastructure which will provide beƩer connecƟvity and hence beƩer growth. Increasing FDI 
is certainly an indicator that even the foreign countries are banking on India as a growing economy. However lack of 
private sector investment, liquidity crisis in NBFCs, an alternate source of investment funding, delay in resoluƟon of 
defaulƟng borrowers and pressure of non-performing Loans on the banks has adversely affected the fresh investment 
and tax revenues. All these factors have affected the GDP growth of the economy.

Iron and Steel

In 2018, global steel demand increased by 2.1%, growing slightly slower than in 2017. This was primarily due to the 
decline in trade and manufacturing acƟvity across most industrial sectors, increased trade tensions among major 
economies, Ɵghtening of financial condiƟons and policy uncertainty in many economies. In 2019 and 2020 growth is 
sƟll expected, but in a less favourable economic environment partly due to uncertainƟes resulƟng from global trade 
tensions and the uncertainƟes about Brexit. 

According to the World Steel AssociaƟon (‘WSA’), global crude steel producƟon reached 1,808.6 MnT in 2018, an 
increase of 4.6% over 2017. This increase is primarily due to growth in steel consumpƟon in infrastructure acƟviƟes. 
China conƟnued to be the world’s largest crude steel producer, contribuƟng to 51.3% of the global crude steel 
producƟon. Steel demand in the European Union (‘EU’) grew by 2.2% in 2018 as against 3.4% in 2017. In 2018 the EU 
was a net importer of steel at 16.9 MnT. Exports from China to the rest of the world decreased again in 2018 to 68.8 
MnT. Changing trade flows in the global steel market have caused an increase in the amount of anƟ-dumping measures. 

India has become the second largest producer of crude steel during 2018. Crude steel producƟon in India, increased to 
106.5 MnT. India’s crude steel producƟon increased by 4.9% over the previous year. Steel demand in the country, in the 
first half of the financial year, was more stable than in the second half. One of the key issues has been the credit flow 
in the system and it is expected that structural policy acƟons will be undertaken to ensure that increased credit flow is 
restored and private investment is encouraged to revive the economy. Recent resoluƟon of some large ailing plants will 
help improved producƟon, capacity uƟlizaƟon and brown field expansion. 

The Govt. of India has envisaged tripling of the country’s capacity to 300 million tonnes with an investment of ` 10 lakh 
crore by 2030. However to achieve this, issues related to land acquisiƟon, raw material availability, high cost of credit 
and logisƟcs, among others, are required to be taken care of.

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code has, triggered a wave of consolidaƟon that is just geƫng over aŌer re-shaping the 
industry. It marks the entry of Arcelor MiƩal, which is the frontrunner to buy Essar Steel, in India, apart from Vedanta, 
which bought Electrosteel last year. Tata Steel bought Bhushan Steel to emerge as the largest steel maker in the country 
in 2018/19. 
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Sponge Iron  

Coal-based sponge iron technology has emerged as economical method to manufacture steel. Environmental clearances 
and costs needed to set up integrated steel plants are substanƟally high. As such sponge iron industry, which uses non 
coking coal, has flourished in the country. India is the world’s largest producer of sponge iron and has over 400 sponge 
iron units. Approximately 35% of the naƟon’s steel producers use sponge iron to produce steel. The coal-based route 
emerged as a key contributor and now accounts for 79% of total sponge iron producƟon in the country. Global output 
of direct reduced iron (DRI) increased by 12% in 2018 as per provisional World Steel AssociaƟon report, driven by India 
(producƟon up by 2.9%) and Iran (producƟon up by 32%) during the year as compared to 2017. Together, the top five 
countries accounted for 86% of the world DRI producƟon during this period and saw their cumulaƟve output rise by 
12.8% as compared to last year.

During 2018-19 sponge iron producƟon was 33 Million Tonnes against 30.51 Million Tonnes in FY 2017-18. (Source: 
SIMA). The sponge iron sector is linked to the naƟons steel sector in such a way that a rise in demand for steel would 
increase the demand for sponge iron. However, the industry faces issues, relaƟng to low availability of non-coking coal 
and rising prices of iron ore, among others. 

Ferro Alloys

Ferro alloys are one of the important inputs in the manufacture of alloys and special steel. Growing demand of different 
grades of steel, due to lack of viable subsƟtutes, in end-user industries including automoƟve, ship building, construcƟon, 
and several other sectors will be an important driver for the global ferro alloy market.  

India has an installed ferro alloys producing capacity of 5 million tonne per annum. The principal ferro alloys are 
chromium, manganese and silicon. Currently, a major porƟon of the ferro alloys produced in India is exported. Iran, 
one of the largest crude steel producer in MENA is currently facing US SancƟons, owing to which its steel industry has 
been adversely affected. Many trade allies of Iran have suspended their trade with Iran.  However, India conƟnued its 
trade with Iran. India is one of the largest exporters of ferro alloys to Iran. US sancƟons on Iran had limited effect on 
ferro alloys import from India. 

Although demand for ferro alloys remained healthy, the industry conƟnued to grapple with raw material shortage 
and high prices of power. The industry is dependent on imports of manganese ore, coke and coal due to insufficient 
availability in the country. The industry is facing tough compeƟƟon from Malaysia where power cost is low.

Power

Power is one of the most criƟcal components of infrastructure crucial for the economic growth and welfare of naƟons. 
The existence and development of adequate infrastructure is essenƟal for sustained growth of the Indian economy.

India’s power sector is one of the most diversified in the world. Sources of power generaƟon range from convenƟonal 
sources such as coal, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuclear power to viable non-convenƟonal sources such as 
wind, solar, and agricultural and domesƟc waste. With the economic development, electricity demand in the country 
is increasing rapidly. As of 31st March, 2019, the total installed capacity of all energy sources put together stood at 
about 356 GW (excluding capƟve power capacity of 51.5 GW), the thermal sector accounted for 226 GW, followed by 
renewables at about 78 GW, hydro at 45 GW and nuclear at about 7 GW.

However, due to un-remuneraƟve pricing, high cost of fuel and funds and over capacity addiƟon the power sector is 
undergoing financial stress and as such witnessed poor capacity addiƟon during 2018-19 aŌer maintaining a strong 
momentum for a few years. While renewables added more capacity than the convenƟonal power segments for the 
second year in a row in 2018-19, both have seen a significant fall in their new capacity addiƟon compared with 2017-
18. The renewable energy sector added a capacity of 8,532 MW to the grid, just about the 55% of its target of 15,602 
MW for 2018-19. Industry experts blamed policy issues and arbitrary cancellaƟons of renewable project tenders for the 
slow-down in the capacity addiƟon in the clean energy sector during 2018-19. 

The Government of India has idenƟfied power sector as a key sector of focus so as to promote sustained industrial 
growth. Some iniƟaƟves by the Government of India to boost the Indian power sector:

• Proposed amendment to Electricity Act, 2003, wherein separaƟon of content & carriage, direct benefit transfer of 
subsidy, 24*7 Power supply is an obligaƟon, penalisaƟon on violaƟon of PPA, seƫng up Smart Meter and Prepaid 
Meters along with regulaƟons related to the same, have been discussed.

• Launched Ujwal Discoms Assurance Yojana (UDAY) to encourage operaƟonal and financial turnaround of State-
owned Power DistribuƟon Companies (DISCOMS), with an aim to reduce Aggregate Technical & Commercial 
(AT&C) losses to 15%.
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• Approved NaƟonal Policy on Bio fuels – 2018, to achieve health benefits, cleaner environment, employment 
generaƟon, reduced import dependency, boost to infrastructural investment in rural areas and addiƟonal income 
to farmers.

• Approved new policy for promoƟon of hydro power projects including financial support, grant of renewable energy 
status, higher repayment period and separate hydropower purchase obligaƟon.

Indian power sector is undergoing a significant change that has redefined the industry outlook. Sustained economic 
growth conƟnues to drive electricity demand in India. The Government of India’s focus on aƩaining ‘Power for all’ 
has accelerated capacity addiƟon in the country. At the same Ɵme, the compeƟƟve intensity is increasing at both the 
market and supply sides (fuel, logisƟcs, finances, and manpower). 

OpportuniƟes and Threats 

OpportuniƟes 

The importance given by Government on affordable housing, roads, Sagarmala projects and other infrastructure 
projects are expected to spur steel demand, which will augur well for sponge iron industry also. As per the NaƟonal 
steel policy craŌed during FY 2017-18, the crude steel producƟon target for India is set at 300 MnT by 2030. Share of 
sponge iron in steel making will be 80 MnT, which will create huge opportunity for sponge iron industry. 

The Company foresees a good opportunity and base for growth in its core area of operaƟons owing to strong 
manufacturing base, developed infrastructure, sufficient land in possession, environmental clearances, strong financials 
and available mineral resources.

Our foray into hydropower through 4.8 MW hydro power project in UƩarakhand, the 24-megawaƩ hydropower plant 
at Gullu, in Chhaƫsgarh and our upcoming 96MW hydro project in Sikkim will drive new avenues of value creaƟon. 
Increasing concerns about lower-carbon or non-emiƫng energy sources, such as gas and renewables, have increased 
the importance of hydro power. Besides, the Government has also approved the following changes in the hydro power 
policy:

 A separate hydropower purchase obligaƟon (HPO) is proposed for distributors / capƟve consumer of convenƟonal 
power. Present renewable purchase obligaƟon can be met from any of the wind, biomass or small hydropower. 

 All new hydro power projects shall be treated as renewable energy projects and power purchased from these 
projects will meet the HPO under the relevant regulaƟons.

 The licence period of the hydropower projects shall be increased to 40 year. EscalaƟon of 2% per annum shall be 
granted on the tariff by back loading the tariff.

Owing to the increasing environmental awareness and Govt. push in the Renewable energy sector, your Company 
having gained experience in this field is well placed to take advantage of emerging opportunity in this field. 

Threats 

Presently there are no visible threats in the short and medium term in the sponge iron industry. Availability of scrap 
and its import will be an issue for steel producƟon and will affect the demand. Iron ore and coal prices will also play a 
key role in profitability as its availability will be an issue if there are instances of mines closure. 

The demand for ferro alloys is dependent on the prospects of the steel industry, which in turn depends on the economic 
climate prevalent across the globe. Global economy, as predicted by experts is expected to slow down considerably 
owing to trade wars and protecƟonist measures adopted by developed naƟons, geo-poliƟcal instability prevailing in 
pockets across the globe. This may affect demand for steel globally. India too, has not had a very posiƟve fiscal. Based 
on key staƟsƟcal data, experts feel that the naƟon could be heading for an economic slow down. This could impact the 
demand for steel. 

Inefficient distribuƟon companies, deterioraƟng financial condiƟon of DISCOMS across India leads to distress for power 
generaƟng companies. The abysmally low returns earned by the power generaƟon companies may affect the expansion 
plans resulƟng in lower power availability and in turn may have an impact on the steel and ferro alloys industry.  Your 
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited have capƟve power generaƟon faciliƟes which 
will ensure power availability for the faciliƟes of your Company and its subsidiary.  

However, the Central Government is aware of these factors and has drawn/is working on plans to spur investment 
driven growth in the country. This, when translates into on-ground reality, will increase the demand for steel and ferro 
alloys.
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Outlook 

With the renewed thrust of the Govt. of India on infrastructure and affordable housing, the outlook for steel sector, 
parƟcularly long products is promising. The Govt. is also taking various steps for increasing exports. That should help 
the ferro alloys industry. The new hydro power policy once noƟfied will be a big boost to the new hydro power projects. 
Low inflaƟon, low interest rates and improved liquidity augurs well for the industry. This will lead to remuneraƟve 
prices and business sustainability.

India conƟnues to be one of the world’s fastest growing major economies, with a 6.81% growth rate in FY 2018-19. 
However the growth has slowed down to 5.8% in Q1CY19 amid weaker consumer demand and fixed investment. The 
country now has a robust macroeconomic policy framework, flexible exchange rate and manageable exposures to 
foreign-currency-denominated debt. Recent structural reforms are further catalyzing domesƟc demand, strengthening 
investment and improving growth prospects.

The country has witnessed a sustained growth in domesƟc demand with nearly 60% of the country’s GDP being 
driven by domesƟc private consumpƟon (Source: Economic Survey of India, 2018-19). The Government of India has 
undertaken mulƟple iniƟaƟves for improving rural infrastructure and livelihoods spending. With forecasts of normal 
monsoons, this will provide a huge impetus to rural growth and demand. The Government of India has released its 
roadmap to achieve 175 GW capacity in renewable energy by 2022.

With the Government focusing on increasing the renewable energy and changes in the hydro power policy, the 
Company with its presence in the hydro power segment through its subsidiaries offers a bright future in this segment. 
The Company believes that with massive spending on infrastructure in the economy being lined up, the outlook for the 
sectors in which the Company operates appears to be stable/posiƟve.

Risks and Concerns 

Risk, which is the manifestaƟon of business uncertainty affecƟng corporate performance and prospects, is an integral 
part of business. The Company follows a well-defined and exhausƟve risk management process, which is integrated 
with its operaƟons. This enables the company to idenƟfy, categorize and prioriƟze operaƟonal, financial and strategic 
business risks. The Company has formed a Risk Management CommiƩee which has the mandate of idenƟfying the 
risks and suggesƟng the ways to miƟgate them. The Company spends significant Ɵme, effort and human resources 
to manage and miƟgate idenƟfied risks. The Company has idenƟfied its risk parameters and planned out miƟgaƟon 
measures to sustain its operaƟons. Some of these include:

Risk Risk-miƟgaƟng factors
Economic/Industrial risk
-Cyclical nature of business
-Unforeseen demand upsurge

- CapƟve mineral resource
- CapƟve power
- Fully integrated process
- Proximity to market
- DiversificaƟon in hydro power providing consistent cash 
flows

Environmental risk
-Discharge of pollutants 
-Compliances

-Adequately equipped with polluƟon-control devices to 
observe norms
-Regular upgradaƟon and maintenance of the equipment to 
avoid discharge of pollutants in the environment
-focus on full waste uƟlisaƟon through waste to wealth 
programme

Financial risk
-Availability of funds for capex and business operaƟons

-Low debt gearing raƟo and efficient financial management. 
CreaƟng cushion for conƟngencies

Currency fluctuaƟon
-unfavourable rupee/foreign currency movement

-SubstanƟal amount of import and export providing natural 
hedge
- Regular review of exposure at highest level
- Forward contracts and bookings
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Input risk
-procurement of raw materials at the right cost and in 
the right Ɵme.

-CapƟve mineral resource
integrated business model makes it possible for the end 
product of one business to be posiƟoned as the raw material 
of another
-creaƟon of a self-feeding ecosystem with minimal inventory, 
cosƟng and logisƟc issues

Regulatory risk
-Compliance with the ever changing applicable statutes 
and guidelines, rules and regulaƟons

-complies with all applicable statutory requirements and has 
systems in place to ensure compliance with the regulatory 
changes, if any.

Safety risk
-Healthy and safe working of workmen 

-Regular health check-ups
-Regular safety audit  by independent team and compliance 
review, prevenƟve maintenance of Machines and equipment 
to avoid any unforeseen accidents
-Adequate arrangements of fire staƟon and dispensaries to 
address emergency situaƟons

Human resources
-retaining talent at various levels is a challenge

-ample opportunity of growth and development of 
individual
-safety and security, moƟvaƟon, performance linked 
remuneraƟon in line with market
- sharing growth through ESOP

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy  

Your Company has in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its size and nature of business. 
The system provides a reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operaƟonal informaƟon, complying 
with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

Your Company has a business planning system to set targets and parameters for operaƟons which are reviewed with 
actual performance to ensure Ɵmely iniƟaƟon of correcƟve acƟon, if required. 

Your Company has availed the services of independent professional firm for Internal Audit, which checks the 
effecƟveness of the internal controls with an objecƟve to provide an independent, objecƟve and reasonable assurance 
of the adequacy and effecƟveness of your Company’s risk management, control and governance processes. 

The Audit CommiƩee seeks the views/opinions of statutory auditors on the adequacy of the internal control systems 
in your Company. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit acƟvity are approved by the Audit CommiƩee. Internal 
Auditor reports directly to the Audit CommiƩee of Board. Audit CommiƩee periodically reviews the Internal Audit 
Reports and issues guidance and advice. Minutes of the Audit CommiƩee are put up to the Board of Directors.

The Company’s Audit CommiƩee reviews adherence to internal control systems, internal audit reports and legal 
compliances. This commiƩee reviews all quarterly and yearly results of your Company and recommends the same to 
Board for its approval.

Product-wise Performance 

The product wise performance matrix (consolidated) for the year 2018-19 is summarized hereunder:

Product ProducƟon (MTs) Sales (MTs) CapƟve consumpƟon (MTs)
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Pellet 5,99,972 5,99,950 4,38,067 3,83,831 1,61,668 2,05,987
Sponge Iron 3,02,243 2,78,147 1,48,130 1,50,415 1,50,642 1,31,285
Steel Billet 1,56,691 1,36,349 33,356 19,633 1,22,319 1,17,148
Wire Rod 1,18,578 1,13,466 97,077 85,567 20,892 28,184
HB Wire 20,572 27,763 20,473 28,615 - --
Ferro Alloys 1,45,064 1,49,258 1,39,048 1,49,316 2,012 1,964
Power (Mn Kwh) 1,161 1084 258 218 807 781
Iron Ore 4,22,700 5,40,620 - - 4,61,480 4,28,094
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Consolidated ProducƟon Performance
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Financial Performance vis a vis OperaƟonal Performance 

Turnover 

During 2018-19, your Company achieved a turnover of ` 1,653 crore on standalone basis as against ` 1,515 crore in the 
previous year registering a growth of 9%. At the consolidated levels, the turnover in 2018-19 stood at ` 2,324 crore as 
against ` 2,217 crore in 2017-18, registering a growth of 5%. On consolidated levels, the turnover for 2018-19 is the 
highest ever Ɵll date, achieved by your Company. 

Breakup of revenue (% Product wise)

Product 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Standalone Consolidated

Ferro Alloys 26.74 30.58 40.58 47.51
Steel – billets, wire rods and HB wire 34.09 28.90 24.26 19.75
Sponge Iron 17.22 17.22 12.25 11.77
Pellet 17.41 13.75 12.36 9.40
Power 0.18 0.09 5.05 4.08
Others (including eco bricks and trading) 4.36 9.46 5.50 7.49

Total 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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Consolidated - Turnover % - 17-18

 Ferro Alloys

 Sponge Iron

 Steel

 Pellet

 Power

 Others

47.51

11.77

19.75

9.4
4.087.49

Consolidated - Turnover % - 18-19

 Ferro Alloys

 Sponge Iron

 Steel

 Pellet

 Power

 Others

40.58

12.25 24.26

12.36

5.05
5.50

Breakup of consolidated revenue (EnƟty wise) (` in crore)

Company 2018-19 2017-18 Product
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 1,570 1,465 Steel, Ferro alloys & Thermal Power
Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited 710 720 Ferro Alloys & Thermal Power
ParvaƟya Power Limited 8 6 Hydro Power
Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP 36 26 Hydro Power

Exports

During 2018-19, ferro alloys exports stood at 80,285 MTs as against 89,092MTs in the previous year. The drop in exports 
is mainly because of subdued market condiƟons. Export markets for ferro alloys are catered mainly from Sarda Metals’ 
plant located near the port. Standalone exports of your Company stood at 10,441 MT (PY 11,283 MT) of ferro alloys 
and 53,790 MT of pellet.
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Exports - Consolidated

# includes 2705 MTs of wire rod * includes 53790 Mts of pellet

(` in Crore)

2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Finance cost
Standalone 35 36 Down by 3% due to repayment of loans
Consolidated 99 97 Increase due to increase in loan in subsidiary
DepreciaƟon
Standalone 50 49
Consolidated 76 73 Apart from standalone, increase due to full year depreciaƟon on 24 

MW Hydro Power Plant. 
Other Expenses
Standalone 183 140 Increase is mainly on account of operaƟonal expenses like Stores 

consumpƟon, material handling and carriage outward being the 
result of increase in operaƟons. Besides, Forex fluctuaƟon expenses 
and CSR expenses have also increased.

Consolidated 261 217 Same reasons as for standalone 
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2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Profitability
EBIDTA - 
Standalone

 406 361 Increase in volume, increased producƟon and beƩer realizaƟons

EBIDTA - 
Consolidated

499 472 Besides standalone, increase in operaƟons of Chhaƫsgarh Hydro 
Power LLP

PBT - Standalone 321 269 Increase in volume, increased producƟon and beƩer realizaƟons
PBT - 
Consolidated

324 294 

PAT – Standalone 215 188 Besides standalone, increase in operaƟons of Chhaƫsgarh Hydro 
Power LLP. Standalone profit includes dividend from subsidiary 
` 18.13 crore, which gets nullified in the consolidated results.

PAT - 
Consolidated

207 205

Non-Current Assets 

2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Property Plant & Equipment
Standalone Gross -762 Gross – 719 CapitalizaƟon of steelmaking capacity

Net - 570 Net - 575
Consolidated Gross -1,620 Gross – 1,571

Net - 1,334 Net - 1,358
Capital work-in-progress
Standalone 27 31 ReducƟon on account of capitalizaƟon 
Consolidated 1,063 783 Increase in CWIP of Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited 
Investments
Standalone 668 619 Increase due to fresh investments in Madhya Bharat Power 

CorporaƟon Limited and Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP
Consolidated 47 55 ReducƟon on account of reducƟon in investments in ParvaƟya 

Power Limited
Other financial assets
Standalone 19 20 Release of security deposits by vendors
Consolidated 29 30
Other non-current assets
Standalone 16 17 ReducƟon in capital advances
Consolidated 51 71

Current assets
2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change

Inventories
Standalone 300 304 ReducƟon in stock of Raw materials
Consolidated 439 411 Increase in stock of finished/semi-finished goods in Sarda Metals 

& Alloys Limited 
Investments
Standalone 52 73 ReducƟon due to Mark–to–Market Loss on equity shares
Consolidated 166 186
Trade receivables
Standalone 39 62 In 2017-18, there was bulk export of wire rod nearly at the end of 

the year. As such, there was an increase in receivables in 2017-18
Consolidated 93 131 Apart, from the reason for standalone, reducƟon of trade 

receivables in Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited 

(` in Crore)

Management Discussion
and Analysis



Annual Report 2018-19|63 

Company Overview Statutory Report Financial Section

Management Discussion
and Analysis

2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Bank and cash balances
Standalone 3 2 Increase mainly due to increase in unpaid dividend
Consolidated 45 68 ReducƟon mainly due to sale of mutual funds investments by 

subsidiary for uƟlizaƟon in project
Loans and advances
Standalone 326 187 Increase due to increase in loan to subsidiaries and others 
Consolidated 313 210 Increase in export incenƟve receivables.
Other current assets
Standalone 58 73 ReducƟon in advances to vendors
Consolidated 86 108

Share Capital

There was no change in the equity share capital in the year 2018-19.  

Non-current LiabiliƟes

2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Borrowings
Standalone 98 110 Repayment of loans
Consolidated 1,064 983 Fresh disbursement in MBPCL for ongoing project

All the loans and the interest payment commitments were met on Ɵme.

CRISIL has upgraded the long term raƟng at CRISIL A+ for long term credit faciliƟes and has retained CRISIL A1 for short 
term credit faciliƟes. Total long term and short faciliƟes rated amounted to ` 735 crore.  

Other long term liabiliƟes

Other long term liabiliƟes stood at the levels of the previous year. 

At the consolidated levels, other long term liabiliƟes stood at ` 14 crore as against ` 15 crore in the previous year.

2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Provisions
Standalone 3 2 Increase on account of Leave encashment provisions
Consolidated 9 8

Current liabiliƟes 

2018-19 2017-18 Reason(s) for change
Short term borrowings
Standalone 175 186 ReducƟon in Buyers’ Credit Facility
Consolidated 268 327
Trade payables
Standalone 89 127 Repayment of LC obligaƟons
Consolidated 181 131 Increase in trade payables in Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited
Other financial liabiliƟes
Standalone 48 62 ReducƟon in balance against Bill discounƟng and reducƟon in 

current maturiƟes of long term debtConsolidated 157 162
Other current liabiliƟes
Standalone 18 20 ReducƟon in advance from customers
Consolidated 22 29
Provisions
Standalone 7 10 ReducƟon in provision for expenses payable
Consolidated 8 11

(` in Crore)
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Material Developments in Human Resource/Industrial RelaƟons 

HR plays an instrumental role in securing the future success of your Company. In doing so, the funcƟon is guided by its 
long term vision of working in partnership to create an environment where every employee comes, thrives and is able 
to deliver sustainable organizaƟonal growth.

The delivery of business consulƟng capabiliƟes and professional HR services is designed to achieve posiƟve impact on 
the business results. This includes bringing HR’s knowledge of human capital trends to support future strategy and to 
provide access to the necessary skills required. We are developing work force management soluƟons to opƟmize the 
balance between supply and demand for capabiliƟes and to manage the cost and employee base more efficiently and 
effecƟvely in the long term.

One of the key aspects is involving employees to develop the skills necessary to take up new roles within the organizaƟon. 
The company supports internal, cross divisional, career mobility by idenƟfying re-deployment opportuniƟes and 
offering Training & Development. In addiƟon to supporƟng the execuƟon of strategic measures, internal mobility 
allows employees to have more diverse and full filling career.

Your Company takes a holisƟc approach to leadership development, which encompasses a strong focus on corporate 
culture in the form of its value and beliefs, individual leadership capabiliƟes, personal factors, a growth mind set and 
scheme based learning. We are conƟnuously evolving and offering for line managers at all level.

Our 6 Quality Circle teams had parƟcipated in CCQC -2018 (Chapter ConvenƟon on Quality Concepts) at Raipur 
(Chhaƫsgarh) and have won “Gold Award”. In NCQC-2018, 2 QC teams have been awarded “Par Excellence” and 4 
teams have bagged “Excellence award”. Around 11,800 parƟcipants from 497 companies had represented the 2048 QC 
team across India. 

Our prime focus is on Health & safety of our employees. The BBS Scheme (Bhai Bandhu Suraksha) is conƟnued to make 
employees & contractual workers aware about organizaƟonal safety. During the year, your company has:

 organised Skill development program, for the community women, imparƟng sewing training to 90 women in 2 
villages. 

 organized blood donaƟon camp within its plant premises in associaƟon with the Red Cross Society of India and had 
collected 237 units of blood. 

 conƟnued to operate and maintain, Mobile Medical Van for providing community health services to around 20 
villages near-by iron ore mines, covering  9,746 paƟents.

 deepened pond in villages for watershed development and has also undertaken a number of acƟviƟes for rain 
water harvesƟng. 

As of 31st March, 2019, the total number of employees stood at 1,243 as compared to 1,223 in the previous year.

CauƟonary Statement 

The above Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objecƟves, projecƟons, esƟmates and 
expectaƟons may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securiƟes laws and regulaƟons. 
Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to 
the company’s operaƟons include external economic condiƟons affecƟng demand/supply influencing price condiƟons 
in the market in which the Company operates, changes in Government regulaƟons, tax laws, and other incidental 
factors.



Annual Report 2018-19|65 

Company Overview Statutory Report Financial Section

Corporate
Governance Report
1. Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

 Good Corporate Governance is essenƟally an integral part of values, ethics and the best business pracƟces 
followed by your Company. Your Company stresses upon the following core values:

  Transparency : We believe in disseminaƟon of informaƟon on Ɵme and in transparent manner.
  ProtecƟng Stakeholders’ interest : As a trustee for various stakeholders, we believe in safeguarding and 

balancing the interest of all stakeholders
  Integrity and ethics : We believe in our commitments and strive to set high ethical standards. 
  Corporate and social responsibility: We believe in caring for environment and surrounding communiƟes.

 Your Company would constantly endeavor to improve these aspects.   

2. Board of Directors

 2.1 ComposiƟon

 The Board of Directors comprises of ten directors, including two wholeƟme promoter directors, one wholeƟme 
professional director, one non-execuƟve women promoter director and six non-execuƟve independent directors. 
The non-execuƟve independent directors are eminent professionals having rich and sound experience in diverse 
fields related to the business of your Company.

 The names and categories of the directors on the board and other relevant informaƟon, as on 31st March, 2019, 
are as under:

Names of the Directors Category
No. of other 
Directorships 

held*

Member/ Chairman 
of other Board 
commiƩees@

No. of 
shares 

held in the 
Company

Mr. K. K. Sarda^ Promoter / ExecuƟve 5 - 13,09,149
Mr. Pankaj Sarda^ Promoter / WholeƟme 9 3 6,91,107
Mr. P. K. Jain Professional / WholeƟme 4 - 10,073
Mrs. Uma Sarda^ Promoter/Non-execuƟve 1 - 4,89,425
Mr. Rakesh Mehra Independent / Non-execuƟve 1 1 10,537
Mr. A. K. Basu Independent /Non-execuƟve 2 3 4,000
Mr. P. R. Tripathi** Independent/ Non-execuƟve 6 6 Nil
Mr. G. S. Sahni Independent/ Non-execuƟve 9 2 3,500
Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan Independent /Non-execuƟve 3 3 8,000
Mr. Jitender Balakrishnan Independent/ Non-execuƟve 9 7 1,667

 * Excluding directorships in foreign companies and the Company.
 ** ReƟred w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
 @  CommiƩee posiƟons only of the Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee in Public 

Companies (including the Company) have been considered.
 ^ Except Mr. K.K. Sarda, Mr. Pankaj Sarda and Mrs. Uma Sarda, who are related to each other, no other director 

is related to any one in any manner. Mr. K.K. Sarda is father of Mr. Pankaj Sarda and spouse of Mrs. Uma 
Sarda. 

 2.2 Board MeeƟngs 

 The members of the Board are provided with the requisite informaƟon menƟoned in the LisƟng RegulaƟons well 
before the Board MeeƟngs. Six meeƟngs of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended 31st March, 
2019 as given hereunder:

i) 26th May, 2018 ii) 11th August, 2018 iii) 21st September, 2018
iv) 3rd November, 2018 v) 2nd February, 2019 vi) 4th March, 2019
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 The aƩendance record of the Directors at the Board MeeƟngs during the year ended on 31st March, 2019 and at 

the last Annual General MeeƟng is as under:-

Names of the DirectorsNames of the Directors No. of Board MeeƟngs aƩendedNo. of Board MeeƟngs aƩended Last AGM aƩendedLast AGM aƩended
Mr. K. K. Sarda 6 Yes
Mr. Pankaj Sarda 4 Yes
Mr. P. K. Jain 6 Yes
Mrs. Uma Sarda 6 Yes
Mr. Rakesh Mehra 4 Yes
Mr. A. K. Basu 4 Yes
Mr. P. R. Tripathi 4 No
Mr. G. S. Sahni 4 Yes
Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan 5 Yes
Mr. Jitender Balakrishnan 6 Yes

 2.3 Details of directorships in other listed companies with category of Company’s directors is as under (as on 
31st March, 2019):

S.No.S.No. NamesNames Name of the CompanyName of the Company DesignaƟonDesignaƟon
1. Mr. K. K. Sarda ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited Director
2. Mrs. Uma Sarda NIL NA
3. Mr. Pankaj Sarda NIL NA
4. Mr. Padam Kumar Jain NIL NA
5. Mr. Asit Kumar Basu NIL NA
6. Mr. ChiƩur Krishnan 

Lakshminarayanan
NIL NA

7. Mr. Gajinder Singh Sahni NIL NA
8. Mr. Jitender Balakrishnan Usha MarƟn Limited Independent Director

Polyplex CorporaƟon Limited Independent Director
India Glycols Limited Independent Director
BharƟ Infratel Limited Independent Director
CG Power and Industrial SoluƟons Limited Independent Director

9. Mr. Rakesh Mehra NIL NA
10. Mr. P. R. Tripathi* Premier Explosives Limited Independent Director

IVRCL Limited Independent Director
IVRCL Assets & Holdings Limited Independent Director

 *ReƟred w.e.f. 1st April, 2019

 2.4 List of Core Skills / ExperƟse / Competencies of directors
 A chart or matrix seƫng out the list of core skills / experƟse / competencies as idenƟfied by the Board of Directors 

as required in the context of its business and sector(s) for it to funcƟon effecƟvely is as under :-

a) Industry i) Experience in and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates
ii) Experience and knowledge of broader industry environment and business 
planning

b) Professional ExperƟse in professional areas such as Technical, AccounƟng, Finance, Legal, Human 
Resources, MarkeƟng, etc.

c) Governance Experience as director of other companies, awareness of their legal, ethical, fiduciary 
and financial responsibiliƟes, Risk Assessment, Corporate Governance

d) Behavioural Knowledge and skills to funcƟon well as team members, effecƟve decision making 
processes, integrity, effecƟve communicaƟon, innovaƟve thinking

 The aforesaid core skills/ experƟse / competencies are available with the Board of the Company.
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 2.5 Governance Policies
 Your Company strives to conduct its business and strengthen relaƟonships in a manner that is dignified, disƟncƟve 

and responsible. Your Company adheres to ethical standards to ensure integrity, transparency, independence and 
accountability in dealing with all stakeholders. Accordingly, your Company has adopted various codes and policies 
to carry out its duƟes in an ethical manner as named hereunder: 

  Code of Conduct
  Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
  Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy
  Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries 
  Code of Conduct for ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading
  Policy for SelecƟon of Directors and determining Directors Independence
  RemuneraƟon Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees
  Policy on Materiality of Related Party TransacƟons and on Dealing with Related Party TransacƟons
 2.6 MeeƟngs of Independent Directors
 Your Company’s Independent Directors met once during the year without the presence of the management. 

Independent Directors discussed maƩers pertaining to the Company’s affairs and shared their views/suggesƟons 
with Chairman & Managing Director and also with the Board of Directors. 

 During the year, various familiarizaƟon programmes were conducted for the Independent Directors. The details of 
the same are available at hƩps://www.seml.co.in/Corporate%20Governance/FamiliarisaƟon%20Programmes.pdf

 2.7 Code of Conduct
 Your Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct (the Code) applicable to the Senior ExecuƟves and 

the Directors. The Code is applicable to Non-execuƟve Directors including Independent Directors to such extent 
as may be applicable to them depending on their roles and responsibiliƟes. The Code gives guidance and support 
needed for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. 

 A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website (www.seml.co.in). The Code has been circulated 
to Directors and Senior ExecuƟves and its compliance is affirmed by them annually. A declaraƟon signed by the 
Chairman & Managing Director is given below:

 “I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and senior execuƟves, 
affirmaƟon that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior ExecuƟves in 
respect of the financial year 2018-19.

 K. K. Sarda
 Chairman & Managing Director”
 2.8 ParƟculars of Directors seeking appointment/reappointment
 Details under RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 

Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons) in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng to be held on 21st September, 2019 are given as under:

1 Name Mrs. Uma Sarda 
2 i) Age 60 years

ii) QualificaƟon Bachelor of Arts in Home Science
iii) Date of appointment 29.09.2014

3 Experience She is aƩached with an NGO named Friends of Tribal Society which 
works for the primary educaƟon of the tribal children and health 
care of tribal people of Chhaƫsgarh. Apart from the above, she is 
associated with various social organizaƟons in and around Raipur.

4 Other Directorships/ Partnerships Rishabh Mining and Transport Company Private Limited
5 Chairman/ Member of CommiƩees –
6 Shareholding in the Company 4,89,425 Equity Shares 
7 RelaƟonship with Directors Wife of Mr. K. K. Sarda and mother of Mr. Pankaj Sarda 



68 | Annual Report 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Corporate
Governance Report
3. CommiƩees of the Board 

 3.1 The details of the Board CommiƩees and other related informaƟon are provided hereunder:

Audit CommiƩee@ NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee#

Mr. A. K. Basu (Chairman) Mr. G. S. Sahni (Chairman)
Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan
Mr. Rakesh Mehra Mr. J. Balakrishnan
Mr. Pankaj Sarda Mr. K. K. Sarda
Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee^
Mr. J. Balakrishnan (Chairman) Mr. G. S. Sahni (Chairman)
Mr. A. K. Basu Mr. K. K. Sarda
Mr. Pankaj Sarda** Mr. Pankaj Sarda
Risk Management CommiƩee$

Mr. K. K. Sarda (Chairman)
Mr. Pankaj Sarda

Mr. P. K. Jain, WTD & CFO

Mr. A. K. Nanda (President)

 @ Re-consƟtuted w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Till 31.03.2019, Mr. G.S. Sahni was also a member. 
 # Re-consƟtuted w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Till 31.03.2019, Mr. P. R. Tripathi was Chairman and Mr. C.K. 

Laskshminarayanan was not a member.
 ** W.e.f. 1st April, 2019.
 ^ Re-consƟtuted w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Till 31.03.2019, Mr. P. R. Tripathi was Chairman.
 $ Non-Mandatory for the Company.
 Mr. Manish Sethi, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary to all the Board CommiƩees. 

 3.2 MeeƟngs of the Board CommiƩees and aƩendance parƟculars of Directors at the meeƟngs

Board CommiƩees Audit 
CommiƩee

NominaƟon & 
RemuneraƟon 

CommiƩee

Stakeholders’ 
RelaƟonship 
CommiƩee

Corporate 
Social 

Responsibility 
CommiƩee

Risk 
Management 

CommiƩee

MeeƟngs held 4 4 18 2 1
AƩendance:
Mr. K. K. Sarda NA 4 NA 2 1
Mr. Pankaj Sarda 3 NA NA 1 1
Mrs. Uma Sarda NA NA NA NA NA
Mr. P. K. Jain NA NA NA NA 1
Mr. A. K. Basu 3 NA 18 NA NA
Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan 4 NA NA NA NA
Mr. G. S. Sahni 4 4 NA NA NA
Mr. J. Balakrishnan NA 4 18 NA NA
Mr. P. R. Tripathi* NA 3 NA 2 NA
Mr. Rakesh Mehra 4 NA NA NA NA

 * ReƟred w.e.f. 1st April, 2019
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 3.3 Procedure at CommiƩee MeeƟngs

 The Company’s procedure relaƟng to Board meeƟngs are applicable to CommiƩee meeƟngs as far as pracƟcable. 
Each CommiƩee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers 
appropriate to assist it in discharge of its duƟes/funcƟon(s). Minutes of the CommiƩee meeƟngs are circulated to 
the directors and placed at the Board meeƟngs for noƟng. 

 3.4 Terms of Reference of Board CommiƩees

  Audit Committee

  The terms of reference of the committee are as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Listing Regulations. 

  As per the requirement/instructions of the Committee, representatives from various business units of the 
Company, Internal Auditors, Cost Auditors, Statutory Auditors, President and such other persons as the 
Committee may feel necessary, also attend the Audit Committee meeting(s) to respond to queries raised at 
the Committee meeting(s).

  NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee
  The NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee is responsible for:  
  a) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees;

  b) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal;

  c) specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual 
directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by 
an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance;

  d) devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
  e) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 

report of performance evaluation of independent directors;
  f) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management;
  g) carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the committee.
 Performance Evaluation: The Company has laid down criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees, 

Independent Directors and other Directors. The said criteria are given as Annexure A to the Director’s Report.

 Remuneration policy: The Company’s Remuneration Policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on 
review of achievements at periodical intervals. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing industry 
practice. The Company’s remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is 
annexed as Annexure B to the Directors’ Report.

 The Executive Directors have been paid remuneration as per terms of their appointment. The Non-Executive 
Directors have been paid sitting fees for meetings of the Board and/or Committees attended by them. Also, 
pursuant to the approval of members, Non-Executive Independent Directors have been paid Commission on the 
net profits of your company for the year 2018-19.

 Details of remuneraƟon to Chairman & Managing Director and WholeƟme Directors are as under: (` in Lakh)

Name of the Director Salary Perquisites & 
Allowances

ReƟral Benefits Commission Total Stock OpƟons 
granted*

Mr. K. K. Sarda 141.36 0.40 17.34 350.00 509.10 NIL
Mr. Pankaj Sarda 62.84 0.29 8.10 100.00 171.23 NIL
Mr. P. K. Jain# 51.06 0.29 4.03 0.00 55.38 NIL

 # Also holds the office of CFO 
 * No stock opƟons were granted during the year.
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 Contract period: 
 Mr. K. K. Sarda, Chairman & Managing Director – Five years from 1st April, 2015  
 Mr. Pankaj sarda, Jt. Managing Director – Five years from 1st November, 2017  
 Severance Fees: CompensaƟon as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
 Note: 
 The above amount does not include contribuƟon to gratuity fund, as separate figures are not available for the 

Chairman & Managing Director and WholeƟme Directors.

 Details of remuneraƟon to Non-ExecuƟve Directors are as under:  (` in Lakh)

Name of the Director Siƫng fees Commission Total
Mr. A. K. Basu 2.90 3.00 5.90
Mr. C. K. Lakshminarayanan 1.40 3.00 4.40
Mr. G. S. Sahni 1.60 3.00 4.60
Mr. J. Balakrishnan 3.40 3.00 6.40
Mr. P. R. Tripathi 1.30 3.00 4.30
Mr. Rakesh Mehra 1.20 3.00 4.20
Mrs. Uma Sarda 1.20 0.00 1.20

 None of the Non-ExecuƟve Directors has any material financial interest in the Company apart from the remuneraƟon 
by way of fees and commission received by them from the Company and /or its subsidiaries during the year. 

 Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee
 The Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee considers and resolves the grievances of security holders of the 

company and also reviews and monitors/approves share transfers/duplicate share issues/share transmissions/
dematerializaƟon process.

 Company Secretary – Mr. Manish Sethi is the Compliance Officer.

The number of complaints received 
during the year

: 21 complaints were received which were aƩended in Ɵme. Apart from 
the above, requests for issue of duplicate shares, share transmissions, 
revalidaƟon of warrants and change in bank account details, were 
also received and were aƩended promptly.

The number of complaints not solved 
to the saƟsfacƟon of shareholders

: NIL

Number of pending complaints : No complaint was pending for redressal as on 31st March, 2019.

 Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee

 The role of the CommiƩee is to: 
 a) formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the 

acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the company in areas or subject, specified in Schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013;

 b) recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the acƟviƟes referred to in clause (a) above; and
 c) monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from Ɵme to Ɵme.
 Risk Management CommiƩee 
 The CommiƩee is non-mandatory for the Company. The role of the CommiƩee is to frame suitable risk management 

policy, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and ensure its implementaƟon. 
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4. General Body MeeƟngs
 The venue, date and Ɵme of the last three Annual General MeeƟngs and the details of Special ResoluƟons passed 

thereat are as under:

Date Time LocaƟon Special ResoluƟon Passed
21st September, 
2018

11.00 a.m. Hotel Pride, Opp. Airport, 
Wardha Road, Nagpur - 440025

Special ResoluƟon to issue
- NCDs upto and aggregate amount not 

exceeding ` 500 crore
- equity shares on qualified insƟtuƟonal 

placement basis upto an aggregate amount 
not exceeding ` 1000 crore were passed.

28th September, 
2017

11.00 a.m. Hotel Pride, Opp. Airport, 
Wardha Road, Nagpur - 440025

Special ResoluƟon to issue NCDs upto 
and aggregate amount not exceeding 
` 500 crore was passed.

30th September, 
2016

11.30 a.m. Hotel Pride, Opp. Airport, 
Wardha Road, Nagpur - 440025 

No Special ResoluƟon was passed in the 
meeƟng.

Special ResoluƟons passed through Postal Ballot

During 2018-19, Special ResoluƟons for re-appointment of Independent Directors were passed through Postal 
Ballot. Mr. Kamlesh Ojha, Partner, S.G. Kankani & Associates, PracƟsing Company Secretaries was appointed as the 
ScruƟnizer for the purpose of scruƟnizing the enƟre voƟng process and ascertaining the results. Detail of voƟng 
paƩern is as under:

Item 
No.

Brief DescripƟon Number of votes cast in 
favour

Number of votes 
cast against

Number of votes 
abstained

Total votes 
cast

No of votes % to total 
votes 
cast

No of 
votes

% to total 
votes 
cast

No of 
votes

% to total 
votes 
cast

i) Re-appointment of Mr. A.K. Basu as an 
Independent Director for second term 
of 5 years w.e.f. 01.04.2019

1,78,76,028 99.6271 66,892 0.3728 10 0.0001 1,79,42,930

ii) Re-appointment of Mr. C.K. 
Lakshminarayanan as an Independent 
Director for second term of 4 years 
w.e.f. 01.04.2019

1,78,75,938 99.6260 67,092 0.3740 - - 1,79,43,030

iii) Re-appointment of Mr. G.S. Sahni as an 
Independent Director for second term 
of 2 years w.e.f. 01.04.2019

1,78,00,363 99.2048 1,42,667 0.7952 - - 1,79,43,030

iv) Re-appointment of Mr. J. Balakrishnan 
as an Independent Director for second 
term of 5 years w.e.f. 01.04.2019

1,78,66,739 99.5748 76,291 0.4252 - - 1,79,43,030

v) Re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Mehra 
as an Independent Director for second 
term of 5 years w.e.f. 01.04.2019

1,72,22,313 95.8765 7,40,707 4.1235 - - 1,79,63,020

No Special ResoluƟon is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot as on the date of this report.
5. Means of communicaƟon
 Quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are submiƩed to the stock exchange in accordance with the LisƟng 

RegulaƟons and published in Indian Express (English) and LoksaƩa (vernacular) newspapers. The financial results 
and other relevant informaƟon are placed simultaneously on your Company’s website - www.seml.co.in. No 
official news releases were made to the insƟtuƟonal investors or to the analysts during the year. During the year, 
presentaƟons have been made to the insƟtuƟonal investors/analysts which have been submiƩed with the Stock 
Exchanges and have also been uploaded on the Company’s website.  
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6. General shareholder informaƟon

Annual General MeeƟng : Date: 21st September, 2019
: Time: 11.00 a.m.
: Venue: Radission Blu Hotel, 7, Airport, Wardha Road, Nagpur 

(M.H.) 440015
Financial calendar for 2018-19 (tentaƟve) :
Financial results for the quarters ended: :

30th June, 2019 : 1st week of August, 2019
30th September, 2019 : 1st week of November, 2019
31st December, 2019 : 1st week of February, 2020
31st March, 2020 : 4th week of May, 2020 (audited)

Annual General MeeƟng (for F.Y. 2019-20) September, 2020

Dividend payment date (for F.Y. 2018-19) Within 5 days from 21st September, 2019
LisƟng on stock exchanges 
Equity shares : The shares of the Company are listed on the following exchanges:

i. BSE Limited, Mumbai (504614)
ii. The NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai 

(SARDAEN)
ISIN no.  NSDL & CDSL - INE385C01013

No Security of the Company has been suspended from trading on 
any of the stock exchanges where they are listed. Your company 
has paid annual lisƟng fees to the BSE Limited and to The NaƟonal 
Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai, for the equity shares for 
the financial year 2019-20.

Registrar and share transfer agents
(for physical and electronic)

: Bigshare Services Private Limited
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road
Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059 (M.H.)

Share transfer system : In view of the SEBI circular, share transfers in physical have been 
stopped from 1st April, 2019. However, share transmission, name 
deleƟon and duplicate share issue acƟviƟes are conƟnuing for 
physical shares.
Since physical shares transfers have been stopped, the member, 
in their own interest, are requested to get their Shareholding 
dematerialized at an early date.

 Market price data: High/low during the year 2018-19

Month
SEML on the BSE (in `) SEML on the NSE (in `)

High Low High Low
Apr, 2018 501.95 426.55 502.50 425.95
May, 2018 478.50 376.00 480.00 372.60
Jun, 2018 445.00 365.00 443.00 364.30
Jul, 2018 416.40 351.80 417.00 350.00
Aug, 2018 438.00 371.25 439.00 372.20
Sep, 2018 438.00 322.35 438.60 317.00
Oct, 2018 343.55 276.30 345.00 277.00
Nov, 2018 320.00 256.45 320.50 256.65
Dec, 2018 277.00 230.55 275.10 226.65
Jan, 2019 275.00 231.85 268.40 231.50
Feb, 2019 277.00 236.10 279.25 232.60
Mar, 2019 331.00 264.90 332.00 263.30
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 Comparison of SEML share price movements on BSE and NSE with CNX Metal Index
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 Shareholding paƩern as on 31st March, 2019

Sl. No. Category No. of shares Percentage
1. Promoter and Promoter Group 2,61,34,360 72.50
2. Banks/MFs /FIs/Ins.Cos. /NBFCs 22,576 0.06
3. Foreign Porƞolio Investors 7,87,587 2.19
4. Overseas Corporate Bodies 6,84,891 1.90
5. Bodies Corporate 15,68,119 4.35
6. Individuals NRIs 2,05,309 0.57
7. Resident Individuals 60,96,352 16.91
8. IEPF Authority 1,41,528 0.39
9. Others 4,08,513 1.13

TOTAL* 3,60,49,235 100.00

 *There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/ConverƟble instruments of the Company.  

 DistribuƟon of shareholding as on 31st March, 2019

Shareholding of nominal value 
(`)

Shareholders Shares 
Number % to total `                                                                                                                        % to total

Up to 5,000 19,966 91.57 2,03,09,140 5.63
5,001 – 10,000 884 4.05 70,80,690 1.96
10,001 – 20,000 467 2.14 70,05,260 1.94
20,001 – 30,000 155 0.71 38,09,770 1.06
30,001 – 40,000 70 0.33 25,04,680 0.69
40,001 – 50,000 48 0.22 22,18,930 0.62
50,001 – 1,00,000 99 0.45 72,66,250 2.02
1,00,001 and above 116 0.53 31,02,97,630 86.08
Total 21,805 100.00 36,04,92,350 100.00
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DematerializaƟon of securiƟes : Your Company has arrangement with the NaƟonal SecuriƟes 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL) for dematerializaƟon of equity shares. As 
on 31st March, 2019, out of the total 3,60,49,235 equity shares 
held by about 21,805 (PY 21,234) shareholders, 3,57,32,236 
(PY 3,57,03,015) equity shares held by 19,062 (PY 18,229) 
shareholders represenƟng 99.12% (PY 99.04%) percent of the 
total paid-up equity capital have been dematerialized.

The Promoters hold their enƟre equity shareholding in the 
Company in dematerialized form.

7. Disclosures 

 a) Related Party TransacƟons

  During the period under review, the Company had not entered into any material significant related party 
transacƟons that may have potenƟal conflict with the interest of the Company.

  None of the transacƟons with any of related parƟes were in conflict with the Company’s interest. AƩenƟon of 
members is drawn to the disclosure of transacƟons with related parƟes set out in Note No. 34 of Standalone 
Financial Statements, forming part of the Annual Report. 

  The Company’s major related party transacƟons are generally with its subsidiaries and associates. The related 
party transacƟons are entered into based on commercial consideraƟons such as synergy in operaƟons, 
sectoral specializaƟon and the Company’s long-term strategy for sectoral investments, opƟmizaƟon of 
market share, profitability, legal requirements, liquidity and capital resources of subsidiaries and Associates. 

  All related party transacƟons are negoƟated on an arms’ length basis and are intended to further the 
company’s interests.

 b) Hedging of Risks

  The Company has in place a Board approved policy which establishes the risk management framework and 
defines the procedures and controls for effecƟve management of risk’s faced by the Company. The Company 
is having exposure to foreign exchange fluctuaƟon risk, however there is natural hedging partly available in 
terms of exports made by the Company and its subsidiaries and assets held in other currencies.

  Currency hedging is guided by the hedging policy adopted by the Board. 

  In respect of price risk of raw materials used for manufacturing purpose, the same is taken care of as per 
industry requirement. The Company’s exposure in none of the commodiƟes, which are sourced for use in its 
business, is material in the context of its overall operaƟons, and also in terms of the ‘Policy on DeterminaƟon 
of Materiality for Disclosures(s)’, as approved by the Board. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements 
prescribed under the SEBI Circular dated 15th November, 2018 are not applicable for the Company.

 c) Credit RaƟngs

  CRISIL has vide its leƩer dated 21st May, 2019, upgraded the long term raƟng at CRISIL A+ for long term 
credit faciliƟes and retained CRISIL A1 for short term credit faciliƟes. Total long term and short faciliƟes rated 
amount to ` 735 crore. 

 d) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalƟes and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any maƩer related to capital markets, during the last three 
years.

  During the last three years, the Company has complied with all applicable Acts and RegulaƟons and there 
was no non-compliance by the Company. No penalƟes, strictures were imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any maƩer related to capital markets except for the year 
2017-18 where due to absence of quorum for the Board meeƟng, the board meeƟng scheduled to be held for 
approval of annual results for 2016-17 was held beyond a period of 60 days from the close of financial year 
(last date specified under SEBI LODR). Consequent to this, the approval of results was delayed by 7 days and 
as such, the Stock Exchanges had levied a fine for delay in announcing the results. The Company’s request for 
not levying the fine was not accepted by the Stock exchanges. The Company had paid the fine. 
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  Except the above, the Company has complied with all applicable Acts and RegulaƟons and there was no non-
compliance by the Company. Except as disclosed above, no other penalƟes, strictures, fines were imposed on 
the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any maƩer related to capital markets. 

  Further, as reported earlier, your Company’s applicaƟon for delisƟng is pending with the CalcuƩa Stock 
Exchange, for long. The maƩer has been reported to SEBI. In view of the pendency of delisƟng applicaƟon 
with the CalcuƩa Stock Exchange, your Company has stopped reporƟng about the same and has also stopped 
sending the informaƟon to the CalcuƩa Stock Exchange. 

 e) Whistle Blower policy
  The Company has put in place a mechanism for reporƟng illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has a 

Vigil mechanism under which the employees are free to report violaƟons of applicable laws and regulaƟons 
and the Code of Conduct. The reportable maƩers may be disclosed to the Head HR or the Compliance Officer 
who report to the Audit CommiƩee. Employees may also report to the Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee. 
During the year under review, no employee was denied access to the Audit CommiƩee.

 f) Material financial & commercial transacƟons by Senior Management
  There were no material financial & commercial transacƟons by Senior Management as defined in RegulaƟon 

26 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons where they have any personal interest that may have a potenƟal conflict with 
the interests of the Company at large requiring disclosure by them to the Board of Directors of the Company.

 g) The Board has adopted all the recommendaƟons of any commiƩee of the board during the year.
 h) Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

auditor and all enƟƟes in the network firm/network enƟty of which the statutory auditor is a part amounts 
to ` 39.18 lakh (net of TDS).

 i) No complaint pertaining to sexual harassment of women employees was received during the year under 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act, 2013.

 j) Compliance
  Financial Statements: The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all 

material respects with the Indian AccounƟng Standards (“Ind AS”) noƟfied under the Companies (AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015.

  LisƟng RegulaƟons: There is no non-compliance of any of the requirements of Corporate Governance Report 
for the year under review as required under the LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

  Apart from the above, the Company has also adopted the discreƟonary requirements of having unqualified 
financial statements and the Internal auditor reporƟng directly to the Audit CommiƩee.

  The Company has also complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in regulaƟon 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulaƟon (2) of regulaƟon 46. 

  Pursuant to the requirement of RegulaƟon 30 of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Company would like to inform 
that no agreement(s) have been entered with media companies and/or their associates which has resulted/ 
will result in any kind of shareholding in the Company and consequently any other related disclosures viz., 
details of nominee(s) of the media companies on the Board of the Company, any management control or 
potenƟal conflict of interest arising out of such agreements, etc. are not applicable. The Company has not 
entered into any other back to back treaƟes/ contracts/agreements/ MoUs or similar instruments with media 
companies and/or their associates.

  Unclaimed Dividend / Transfer of shares to IEPF: In accordance with provisions of SecƟon 124 and 15 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (AccounƟng, audit, Transfer and Refund), 
Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules) dividend not encashed/claimed within seven years from the date of declaraƟon are 
to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF) Authority. 

  The IEPF Rules also mandate companies to transfer shares of Members, whose dividends remain unpaid/
unclaimed for a conƟnuous period of seven years, to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. The Members 
whose dividend/shares are transferred to the IEPF Authority can claim their shares/dividend from the 
Authority.  

Corporate
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  In accordance with above provisions, the Company has transferred the unpaid dividend for the year 2010-
11 to the IEPF. AddiƟonally, as per the requirement and the procedures prescribed under the IEPF Rules, Ɵll 
date, the Company has transferred 1,41,528 shares to IEPF. 

  The details of unpaid dividend lying with the Company and the details of the shares transferred to IEPF 
are available on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and also on the website of the Company. 
All shareholders whose shares have been so transferred can claim their shares and dividend from the IEPF 
Authority by following the prescribed procedure.  

  The Company has appointed Nodal Officer under the provisions of IEPF, the details of which are available on 
the website of the Company – www.seml.co.in.

 k) Web-links

  1. Material Subsidiary Policy
   hƩp://www.seml.co.in/Corporate%20Governance/SEML%20-%20Policy%20for%20determinig%20

Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf

  2. Related Party TransacƟon Policy
   hƩp://www.seml.co.in/Corporate%20Governance/SEML%20-%20Policy%20on%20Related%20

Party%20TransacƟons.pdf

  3. Other Policies
   hƩp://www.seml.co.in/policies.php

 l) CerƟficate from pracƟsing Company secretary

  CerƟficate from Mr. Kamlesh Ojha, Partner M/s. S.G. Kankani & Associates, PracƟsing Company Secretaries 
that none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or conƟnuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or other 
statutory authority is as under:

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

  I, Kamlesh Ojha, Partner of S.G. Kankani & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries do hereby certify that 
none of the directors on the board of Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or from continuing as directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority to the best of my knowledge.

  This certificate is being issued as per Schedule V under Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

For S. G. Kankani & Associates
Sd/- 

Kamlesh Ojha
Place : Raipur Partner
Date : 3rd July, 2019 M.No. 39476

Plant locaƟon : Industrial Growth Centre, Siltara, Raipur (C.G).

Address for correspondence : Regd. Office: 
73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.)
Ph: +91-771-2722407
e-mail: info@seml.co.in
Works:
Industrial Growth Centre, Siltara
Raipur [C.G.] 493 111
Ph: +91-771-2216100 / Fax: +91-771-2216198
e-mail: info@seml.co.in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCEE

To the Members of 
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

1. This cerƟficate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement leƩer dated 29th September, 
2014.

2. We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance by Sarda Energy & Minerals Ltd. 
(‘the Company’) for the year ended on 31st March, 2019, as sƟpulated in RegulaƟons 17 to 27, clauses (b) 
to (i) of RegulaƟon 46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of 
India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (‘LisƟng RegulaƟons’).

Management’s Responsibility

3. The compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. This 
responsibility includes the designing, implemenƟng and maintaining operaƟng effecƟveness of internal 
control to ensure compliance with the condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated in the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, our responsibility is to express a reasonable 
assurance in the form of an opinion as to whether the Company has complied with the condiƟons of 
corporate governance as stated in paragraph 2 above. Our responsibility is limited to examining the 
procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the 
condiƟons of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.

5. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable Generally 
Accepted AudiƟng Standards in India, the Guidance Note on CerƟficaƟon of Corporate Governance issued 
by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and Guidance Note on Reports or CerƟficates 
for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the 
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial InformaƟon and Other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the 
explanaƟons provided to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied, in all material respects, with the 
condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated in the LisƟng RegulaƟons during the year ended 31st 
March 2019.

 We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

RestricƟon on use

8. This cerƟficate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulaƟons and may not be 
suitable for any other purpose.

 
For, O. P. Singhania & Co. 

Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm Reg. No. 002172C)

(Sanjay Singhania)
Raipur Partner 
3rd August, 2019 M.No.076961
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To the Members of
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the informaƟon required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and profit/loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng (SAs) specified under secƟon 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Financial Statements secƟon of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit MaƩers

Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These maƩers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
maƩers.

InformaƟon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informaƟon. The other informaƟon comprises the 
informaƟon included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report and Corporate Governance but does not include standalone financial statements and our auditors report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaƟon and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connecƟon with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informaƟon, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparaƟon of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, including the accounƟng Standards specified under 
secƟon 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds 
and other irregulariƟes; selecƟon  and  applicaƟon  of  appropriate  accounƟng  policies;  making  judgments  and 
esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal 
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financial controls, that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng 
records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and  
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟnue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounƟng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟons, or has no realisƟc 
alternaƟve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporƟng process.

Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepƟcism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecƟng a material misstatement 
resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one resulƟng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal 
omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under SecƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporƟng and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟng and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟons that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the company to conƟnue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or 
condiƟons may cause the Company to cease to conƟnue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transacƟons and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may 
be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve materiality and qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 
work and in evaluaƟng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any idenƟfied misstatements in the 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, the planned scope and 
Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
idenƟfy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟonships and other maƩers that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent
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From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩers that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore key 
audit maƩers in our audit report unless law or regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communicaƟon.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-secƟon (11) of secƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure-A a 
statement on the maƩers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.    As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) we have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b)    in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examinaƟon of those books;

 (c)     the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of 
cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

 (d) in our opinion, the  aforesaid  standalone Ind AS financial  statements  comply  with  the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

 (e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken  on  
record  by  the  Board  of  Directors,  none  of  the  directors  is  disqualified  as  on 31st March, 2019 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”;

 (g) with respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements 
of SecƟon 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the 
remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
SecƟon 197 of the Act; and

 (h) with respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according 
to the explanations given to us:

  i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial position in its standalone Ind 
AS financial statements – Refer Note 39 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

  ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and

  iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI Firm Regn. No.002172C)

Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Singhania
Partner

Raipur, 25th May, 2019 Membership No.076961

Independent
Auditor's Report
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The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019, we report that:

(i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

 (b) As explained to us, all major assets except certain low value items viz furniture & fixtures and office equipment 
have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and 
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were notice.

 (c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 2 on property, plant and Equipments to the 
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company except the immovable properties of merged 
companies which has still carried on the name of erstwhile companies and are yet to be updated in revenue 
records. 

(ii) As explained to us, the physical verificaƟon of inventories have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of the verificaƟon is reasonable. The discrepancies 
noƟced on verificaƟon between the physical stocks and the book records were not material and have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(iii) The company has granted unsecured loan to four companies and one Limited Liability Partnership covered in the 
register maintained under secƟon 189 of the companies Act, 2013 during the year. According to the informaƟon 
and explanaƟons given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that:

 (a) The terms & condiƟons of the grant of such loan are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

 (b) As explained to us the principal amounts are repayable on demand, whereas the interest is payable annually 
at the discreƟon of the Company and the repayments or receipts are regular.

 (c) Since the amount outstanding is not overdue, therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (iii)(c) of the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon & explanaƟons given to us, the Company has compiled with 
the provisions of SecƟon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investment made, and 
guarantees and security provided by it. The Company has not granted any loans and made any investments, or 
provided any guarantees or security to the parƟes covered under SecƟon 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits from public, in terms of the direcƟves issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
SecƟon 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and rules framed thereunder; therefore 
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the 
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under secƟon 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in 
respect of Company’s products to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and records, have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a 
detailed examinaƟon of the records.

(vii) (a) According to the informaƟon & explanaƟons given to us, during the year the Company is regular in deposiƟng 
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods & 
services tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authoriƟes. Further, no 
undisputed amounts of statutory dues as stated above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2019 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (b)   According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service 
tax, goods & services tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute except the following cases:

Annexure A
to the Independent Auditor's Report
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Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount 
(` in Lakh)

Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 20.57 Mar 1986 to Oct 
1988

At M.P. High Court

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 7.62 Mar 1989 to Aug 
1989

Commissioner (Appeals)

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 808.17 2015-16 Customs Excise & Service 
Tax Appellate TribunalPenalty 808.54

Central Sales Tax Act & Sales 
Tax Acts of Various states 
and Entry Tax Act, 1976 

Value Added Tax, 
Central sales tax and 

Entry tax.

922.74 2006-07
to 2012-13

Appellate AuthoriƟes 
upto Commissioner’s 
level

ChhaƟsgarh Upkar 
Adhiniyam, 1981

Energy 
Development Cess

6,079.20 May 2006 to Jan 
2017

Supreme Court

(viii) Based on our audit procedures, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government or 
debenture holders as at the balance sheet date. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt 
instruments). According to the information and explanations given to us, and in our opinion, the term loans have 
been applied progressively for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3(x) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(xi) The Company has provided for managerial remuneration during the year in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Therefore, the provisions 
of clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the 
Company.

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI Firm Regn. No.002172C)

Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Singhania
Partner

Raipur, 25th May, 2019 Membership No.076961

Annexure A
to the Independent Auditor's Report
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Annexure B
to the Independent Auditor's Report
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI Firm Regn. No.002172C)

Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Singhania
Partner

Raipur, 25th May, 2019 Membership No.076961

Annexure B
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(` in Lakh)
Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2019

 Note As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment  52,324.89  53,142.44 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2  1,904.65  2,279.28 
(c) Investment Property  4,363.44  4,033.25 
(d) Other Intangible Assets  311.68  354.17 
(e) Intangible Assets under development  842.79  813.50 
(f) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 3  66,834.61  61,904.44 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 4  1,884.55  1,997.16 

(g) Other Non- current Assets 5  1,575.71  1,664.69 
 1,30,042.32  1,26,188.93 

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6  30,044.14  30,375.67 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 7  5,242.50  7,284.25 
(ii)  Trade receivables 8  3,903.30  6,195.36 
(iii) Bank, Cash & cash equivalents 9  117.59  97.59 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10  149.58  61.59 
(v) Loans 11  32,643.99  18,718.06 

(c) Other Current Assets 12  5,808.27  7,252.53 
 77,909.37  69,985.05 

TOTAL ASSETS  2,07,951.69  1,96,173.98 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity  
(a) Equity Share capital 13  3,604.92  3,604.92 
(b) Other Equity  1,52,960.50  1,33,266.09 

Total Equity  1,56,565.42  1,36,871.01 
LiabiliƟes

(1) Non-current LiabiliƟes :
(a) Financial LiabiliƟes

(i)  Borrowings 14  9,794.58  11,024.47 
(ii)  Other financial liabiliƟes 15  252.78  233.53 

(b) Deferred tax liabiliƟes (Net) 16  6,214.16  6,357.50 
(c) Provisions 17  271.64  236.56 

 16,533.16  17,852.06 
(2) Current LiabiliƟes

(a) Financial LiabiliƟes
(i)  Borrowings 18  17,527.27  18,584.33 
(ii) Trade Payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  136.89  -   
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 

small enterprises  8,817.30  12,741.49 

(iii)  Other financial liabiliƟes 19  4,785.60  6,192.85 
(b) Other current liabiliƟes 20  1,776.77  1,989.96 
(c) Provisions 21  725.82  978.78 
(d) Current tax liabiliƟes (net)  1,083.46  963.50 

 34,853.11  41,450.91 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,07,951.69  1,96,173.98 

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are forming integral part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019
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Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are forming integral part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019

Statement of Profit & Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)

 Note Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

I. Revenue from operaƟons 22  1,65,338.61  1,51,509.35 
II. Other income 23  3,192.36  6,040.50 
III. Total Revenue (I + II)  1,68,530.97  1,57,549.85 
IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 24  99,257.23  86,277.89 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  4,782.87  12,576.51 
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

25  (1,346.83)  (1,390.04)

Excise Duty  –    3,958.98 
Employee benefits expense 26  6,869.61  6,037.28 
Finance costs 28  3,513.17  3,587.80 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense 2  4,996.13  4,858.07 
Other expenses 29  18,328.97  13,990.34 
Total Expenses  1,36,401.15  1,29,896.83 

V. Profit before ExcepƟonal Items and Tax (III - IV)  32,129.82  27,653.02 
VI. ExcepƟonal items (Income) / Expense  –    780.00 
VII. Profit Before Tax (V - VI)  32,129.82  26,873.02 
VIII. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax  10,779.59  6,635.59 
(2) Deferred tax  (134.55)  1,450.52 

IX. Profit for the period (VII - VIII)  21,484.78  18,786.91 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (50.75)  8.21 
Income tax relaƟng to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 17.73  (9.69)

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  54.03 –
Income tax relaƟng to items that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 (8.95) –

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  21,496.84  18,785.43 
X. Earnings per equity share: 31

Basic  59.60  52.27 
Diluted  59.60  52.27 
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a Equity Share Capital
For the year ended 31st March, 2018 Balance at        

April 1, 2017
Changes in equity 

share capital 
during the year

Balance at                  
March 31, 2018

 3,603.04  1.88 3604.92
For the year ended 31st March, 2019 Balance at        

April 1, 2018
Changes in equity 

share capital 
during the year

Balance at                  
March 31, 2019

 3,604.92 – 3,604.92 

b Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus OCI Total other 

equityCapital 
Reserve

SecuriƟes 
Premium

Debenture 
RedempƟon 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Share opƟon 
outstanding 

account

Retained 
Earnings

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Remeasurements 
of the defined 
benefit plans

Balance as of April 1, 2017  404.78  19,379.69  1,043.00  16,139.75  49.80  78,881.97  –    51.79  1,15,950.78 
Transfer to general reserve –  21.65  (1,043.00)  1,043.00 – – –  21.65 
Share based payment to 
employees 

– – – – – –  (1.48)  (1.48)

Other Comprehensive Income – – – –  (49.80) – – –  (49.80)
ESOP OpƟon Added/(lapsed) – – – – –  18,786.921 – –  18,786.91 
Profit for the year – – – – –  (1,441.97) – –  (1,441.97)
Balance as of March 31, 2018  404.78  19,401.34  –    17,182.75 –  96,226.91  –    50.31  1,33,266.09 

Balance as of April 1, 2018  404.78  19,401.34  –    17,182.75 –  96,226.91  –    50.31  1,33,266.09 
Other Comprehensive Income – – – – – –  45.09  (33.01)  12.08 
Profit for the year – – – – –  21,484.78 – –  21,484.78 
Dividends – – – – –  (1,802.45) – –  (1,802.45)
Balance as of March 31, 2019  404.78  19,401.34  –    17,182.75 –  1,15,909.24  45.09  17.30  1,52,960.50 

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)

The accompanying notes are forming integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019
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 Year ended
31.03.2019

 Year ended 
31.03.2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before tax as per statement of Profit & Loss  32,129.82  26,873.02 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated by 
operaƟng acƟviƟes
DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense  4,996.13  4,858.07 
Finance Costs  3,513.17  3,587.80 
Exchange differences on translaƟon of assets and liabiliƟes  (64.94)  (187.42)
Loss pertaining to scraping of assets  72.29  306.12 
AmorƟzaƟon/(Reversal) of Employee Stock OpƟon Cost  –    (49.80)
Allowance/(Reversal) for credit losses on financial assets  (21.14)  106.89 
Interest Income  (2,782.07)  (1,675.93)
Corporate Guarantee Commission  (46.29)  (47.65)
Net (Gain)/Loss on investments pertaining to Fair valuaƟon  2,041.75  (890.92)
Dividend income  (1,843.53)  (1,494.91)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of investments  (1.11)  9.51 
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  136.30  (895.77)
Changes in assets and liabiliƟes
Trade Receivables  2,313.20  (1,294.07)
Inventories  331.52  (5,154.90)
Trade Payables  (3,722.36)  5,353.83 
Loans and advances and other assets  1,676.37  (1,234.03)
LiabiliƟes and provisions  (1,140.43)  (681.55)

 37,588.68  27,488.29 
Income Tax Paid  (10,872.83)  (6,021.54)
NET CASH (USED)/GENERATED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  26,715.85  21,466.75 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
(Increase)/decrease in Property, Plant and equipment including 
Investment Property CWIP & Capital advances

 (4,118.41)  (4,350.61)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  264.03  1,081.42 
Investment (made) liquidated - subsidiaries  (4,246.03)  (10,716.97)
Investment (made) liquidated - Others  (582.71)  17.18
Loan repaid by/(given to) Subsidiaries & other parƟes  (14,072.05)  1,712.83 
Interest received  2,782.07  1,675.93 
Dividend received  1,843.53  1,494.91 
NET CASH (USED)/GENERATED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (18,129.57)  (9,085.31)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from fresh issue of shares  -    23.55 
Proceeds from long term borrowings  1,003.98  2,074.22 
Repayment  of long term borrowings  (3,002.83)  (7,098.50)
Short term borrowings (net)  (1,057.06)  (2,145.60)
Finance cost  (3,707.91)  (3,784.85)
Dividend & dividend tax paid  (1,802.46)  (1,441.97)
NET CASH (USED)/GENERATED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (8,566.28)  (12,373.15)
Increase/( decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents ( A+B+C)  20.00  8.29 
Unrealised Exchange (Gain)/Loss on Cash & Cash Equivalents  -    -   
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  20.00  8.29 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD  97.59  89.30 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD  117.59  97.59 

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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 Year ended
31.03.2019

 Year ended 
31.03.2018

Supplementary InformaƟon:
Restricted Cash Balance  149.58  61.59 
Increase/( decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents  20.00  8.29 
Notes:

(a) Cash and cash equivalent include the following :
Cash on Hand  22.50  24.18 
Balances with Scheduled banks  95.09  73.41 

 117.59  97.59 
(b) Previour Year figures have been recasted / restated wherever necessary 
(c) Figures in brackets represents ouƞlows.

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
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1. Company Overview

 The Company has integrated steel manufacturing facility starting from iron ore mining to the finished steel in 
the form of wire rod and H.B. wire. The Company is also a leading manufacturer and exporter of Ferro Alloys 
enjoying Two Star Export House Status. The manufacturing facilities are backed by captive thermal power plant. 
The Company has also promoted hydropower projects through SPVs.

1.1 Significant Accounting Policies

 Basis of preparation of financial statements

1.2 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2016.

1.3 Basis of Measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on accrual basis except for 
the following:

 • certain financial assets and liabilities including derivative instruments measured at fair value

 • defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

 • Share based payments

 The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees rounded off to nearest lakh.

1.4 Use of estimate

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

1.5 Summary of significant accounting policies

1.5.1 Revenue recognition

 Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of return, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when the 
control over the goods have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the 
associated cost and possible return can be estimated reliably and there is no continuing effective control or 
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount can be measured reliably.

1.5.2 Other income

 Interest income

 For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a 
financial liability.

 Dividend income

 Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is 
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
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 Incentives 

 Revenue is recognized when the right to receive the credits is established and there is no significant uncertainty 
regarding the ultimate collection.

 1.5.3 Property, plant and equipment 

 i)  Recognition and measurement

  Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/ amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Gains and losses on disposal of an 
item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/ 
losses.

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively.

 ii)  Depreciation

  Depreciation has been provided based on life assigned to each asset in accordance with Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Leased assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the 
asset or the remaining period of lease, whichever is earlier. Spare parts procured along with the Plant 
& Machinery or subsequently which are capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item are 
depreciated over the residual useful life of the related plant and machinery or their useful life whichever 
is lower.

  Mining rights and expenditure incurred on development of mines are amortized over useful life of mines 
or lease period, whichever is earlier.

 iii) Subsequent Costs

  Subsequent expenditure including cost of major overhaul and inspection is recognized as an increase in 
the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of replacing 
part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it 
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component recognized as a separated 
component is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in profit or 
loss as incurred.

 iv)  Spare parts

  Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property, 
plant and equipment are capitalized and depreciated  on straight line method on prorata basis at the rates 
specified therein. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognized in the income statement on 
consumption.

1.5.4 Investment properties

 Property that is held for capital appreciation or for earning rentals or both or whose future use is undetermined 
is classified as investment property. Items of investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation / amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Investment 
properties are depreciated on straight line method on prorata basis at the rates specified therein. Subsequent 
expenditure including cost of major overhaul and inspection is recognized as an increase in the carrying 
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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1.5.5 Intangible assets 

 Intangible assets comprising of computer software, mining rights are stated at cost of acquisition/ 
implementation/ development less accumulated amortization. 

 Amortization

 Intangible Assets are amortized over technically useful life of the asset.

1.5.6 Capital work in progress

 Capital work in progress is stated at cost. 

 Expenditure in relation to survey and investigation of the projects is carried as Capital Work in Progress. Such 
expenditure is either capitalized as cost of project on completion of the construction of the project or the same 
is expensed in the year in which it is decided to abandon such project.

1.5.7 Leases  

 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

 As a lessee

 A lease is classified on the inception date as a finance or an operating lease. Leases under which the Company 
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are 
capitalized at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or if lower the present value of the 
minimum lease payments.  Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the 
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability.

 The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 Leases under which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company 
are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a 
straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term except where the lease payments are 
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation.

 As a lessor 

 Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an income on a straight line basis in the statement 
of profit and loss over the lease term except where the lease payments are structured to increase in line 
with expected general inflation. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their 
nature.

1.5.8 “Inventory 

 i)  Stores and Spares are carried at cost (net of CENVAT, VAT & GST credits availed) on moving average basis 
and net realizable value whichever is lower.

 ii)  Raw Materials are carried at cost (net of CENVAT, VAT & GST credits availed) on moving average basis 
and net realizable value whichever is lower. However, raw materials held for use in the production of 
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost.

 iii)  Finished and semi finished products produced or purchased by the Company are carried at lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost includes direct material and labor cost and a proportion of manufacturing 
overheads. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty based on prevailing rate.

 iv) By-Products are valued at net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.
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1.5.9 A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 

equity of another entity.

 Financial asset 

 i)  Initial measurement

  All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) 
are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets 
are recognized on trade date. Financial assets of the Company include investments in equity shares of 
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and other companies, trade and other receivables, loans and 
advances to employees and other parties, deposits etc.

 ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

  For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in the 
following categories:

  1)  financial assets measured at amortized cost

  2)  financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and

  3)  financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss

  The classification of financial assets depends on the objective of the business model. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

  Financial  instruments measured at amortized cost:

  A financial instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

  (a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and

  (b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

    This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 
to trade and other receivables, bank deposits, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee 
and other advances.

  Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

  A financial instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the 
following conditions are met:

  (a)  the objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets

  (b)  the asset’s contractual cash flow represent SPPI

    Financial instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting period at fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value movements are recognized in other 
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses 
& reversals and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the 
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit and loss. 
Interest earned is recognized under the expected interest rate (EIR) model.
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  Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss

  Fair value through profit and loss is the residual category. Any financial instrument which does not meet 
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income is 
classified at FVTPL.

  Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
period at fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value movements are recorded in statement of profit and 
loss. 

  All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify 
the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. Such election is made on an instrument by instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

 iii)  Derecognition of financial assets

  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognized when: 

  •   The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been transferred, or

  •  The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 Financial liability

 i)  Initial measurement

  All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs. The 
Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables etc.

 ii)  Classification and subsequent measurement

  For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities of the Company are classified in the 
following categories:

  1)  financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

  2)  financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss 

 Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

 Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method.

 Offsetting of financial instrument 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.5.10 Investments

 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Investments in subsidiaries, associates 
and joint ventures are measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27. Investments in mutual funds are measured 
at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. Trading instruments are recognized at FVTPL.

1.5.11 Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment using expected credit loss method.
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1.5.12 Loans and borrowings

 Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequently, these 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Amortized cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

1.5.13 Trade and other payables 

 These amount represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the 
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current 
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially 
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR model.

1.5.14 Derivatives
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign 
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which 
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as 
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any 
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

1.5.15 Impairment

 a)  Financial assets

  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

  a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, deposits and trade receivables.

  b) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI e.g. investments.

  Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

  (i)  The 12 months expected credit loss (expected credit losses that result from those defaults events on 
the financial instruments that are possible  within 12 months after the reporting date) ;or 

  (ii) Full time expected credit loss (expected credit loss that results from all possible defaults events over 
the life time of the financial instruments).

  Loss allowance for trade receivable are always measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit 
losses. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

  As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine the impairment loss on its 
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on historically observed default rates and is adjusted for 
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and 
changes in forward looking estimates are analyzed.

 b)  Non-financial assets

  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial 
asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates 
the amount of impairment loss.

  An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable 
amount. Losses are recognized in profit or loss. When the Company considers that there are no realistic 
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment 
loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or 
loss.

  The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value 
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in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets 
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating 
unit”). 

1.5.16 Taxes

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in 
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

 Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

 A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. The Company reviews 
the carrying amount of the MAT credit entitlement at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying 
amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the 
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

1.5.17 Employee benefits

 The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either 
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s only 
obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold 
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. 
The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee 
provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the 
employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company.

 Contribution to Provident fund and Contributory pension fund are accounted for on accrual basis. Provident 
fund contributions are made to a fund administered through statutory fund.

 Actuarial gains or losses on gratuity and leave encashment are recognized in other comprehensive 
income.  Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest 
recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit 
obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below 
the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other 
comprehensive income.
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1.5.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 The   amount   recognized  as  a  provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation.

 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount 
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of 
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the 
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect 
the current management estimate.

1.5.19 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the 
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand 
deposits with banks are considered part of the Company’s cash management system.

1.5.20 Foreign currency transactions

 The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also the functional currency of the Company.

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported 
using the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on 
reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as 
income or expenses in the period in which they arise. 

 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

1.5.21 Borrowing cost 

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets 
are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use or sale.

 When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing 
costs incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of 
obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted 
average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition of the 
qualifying asset.

 Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying 
assets for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity 
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

 All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
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1.5.22 Share Based Payments

 The fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding 
increase in equity, over period in which the options are vested. The increase in equity recognized in connection 
with a share based payment transaction is presented as a separate component of equity. The amount recognized 
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest.

1.5.23 Advance Stripping Cost

 The Company distributes stripping (waste removal) costs incurred during the production phase of its mining 
operations on equitable basis over estimated minable reserves. This calculation requires the use of judgments 
and estimates relating to the expected tons of waste to be removed over the life of the mining area and the 
expected economically recoverable reserves to be extracted as a result. This information is reviewed periodically 
to calculate the average life of mine strip ratio (expected waste to expected mineral reserves ratio). Changes in 
a mine’s life and design will usually result in changes to the average life of mine strip ratio. These changes are 
accounted for prospectively.

1.5.24 Mine Restoration Expense

 An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental 
disturbance is caused by the development or ongoing production of a mining property and the Company is 
liable for environmental damage caused by mining activities.

 These future costs generally include restoration and remediation of land and disturbed areas, mine closure 
costs, including the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of residual materials, and 
mining damages costs.

 Decommissioning of mine sites and land and disturbed areas restoration costs are a normal consequence of 
mining. The majority of mine closure and rehabilitation expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the mine. 
Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain, the Company’s businesses estimate their respective 
costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards and techniques.

 Restoration costs and clean-up of land used for mining activities are liabilities to restore the land to the 
condition it was in prior to the mining activities or as stated in the relevant licenses. These costs are incurred 
during the mining activity and can continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and 
the remediation techniques. The mine closure costs include estimated costs of mine levels and pits closure, and 
capping of pits after removal of the surface construction.

 Provisions for land restoration and mine closure costs are recognized for estimated outflow of economic 
resources to settle the obligation. Provisions are structured as land restoration and mine closure costs provision. 
The total estimate of restoration expenses is apportioned over the life of the mine.

1.5.25 Earnings per share

 Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

 Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that 
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

 Partly paid equity shares are treated as fraction of a equity share to the extent that they are entitled to 
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

1.5.26 Segment Reporting

 i)  Identification of Segments

  The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of 
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets.
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2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross Block DepreciaƟon  Net Block 
As on 

01.04.2018
AddiƟon 

during the 
year

Transfer 
/ Sale / 

Adjustment

As on 
31.03.2019

Up to 
01.04.2018

DepreciaƟon 
for the year

Transfer /
Adjustment

As on 
31.03.2019

 As on 
31.03.2019

As on 
31.03.2018

Freehold Land  845.91  75.32  24.82  896.41  –    –    –    –    896.41  845.91 
Leasehold Land  852.03  –    –    852.03  28.23  9.42  –    37.65  814.38  823.80 
Building  13,597.49  788.75  271.96  14,114.28  2,363.17  755.86  8.63  3,110.40  11,003.88  11,234.32 
Plant & Machinery  50,750.20  3,723.81  615.05  53,858.96  11,262.46  3,878.42  159.60  14,981.28  38,877.68  39,487.74 
Furniture, Fixture & 
Equipment

 452.60  98.81  1.55  549.86  242.99  95.08  1.30  336.77  213.09  209.61 

Vehicles  863.84  201.82  105.27  960.39  322.78  192.54  74.38  440.94  519.45  541.06 
Total  67,362.07  4,888.51  1,018.65  71,231.93  14,219.63  4,931.32  243.91  18,907.04  52,324.89  53,142.44 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Freehold Land-IF  3,114.48  66.26 (24.82)  3,205.576  –    –    –    –    3,205.56  3,114.48 
Admin Bidg- IP  971.63  –   (268.52)  1,240.15  52.86  21.41 (8.00)  82.27  1,157.88  918.77 
Total  4,086.11  66.26 (293.34)  4,445.71  52.86  21.41 (8.00)  82.27  4,363.44  4,033.25 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
SoŌware  186.61  0.92  –    187.53  85.06  24.81  –    109.87  77.66  101.55 
Minig Rights & 
Development

 308.42  –    –    308.42  55.80  18.60  –    74.40  234.02  252.62 

Total  495.03  0.92  –    495.95  140.86  43.41  –    184.27  311.68  354.17 

 ii)  Segment Accounting Policies

  The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

 iii) Inter-Segment Transfers

  The Company generally accounts for intersegment transfers at an agreed transaction value.

 iv)  Unallocated Items

  Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 
business segment.

  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. Refer note 33 for details on segment information presented.

1.5.27 Onerous Contracts

 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The 
provision is measured at lower of the expected cost of terminating/exiting the contract and the expected net 
cost of fulfilling the contract.

1.5.28 Cash Flow Statement

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(` in Lakh)
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2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd.)

Gross Block DepreciaƟon  Net Block 
As on 

01.04.2017
AddiƟon 

during the 
year

Transfer 
/ Sale / 

Adjustment

As on 
31.03.2018

Up to 
01.04.2017

DepreciaƟon 
for the year

Transfer /
Adjustment

As on 
31.03.2018

 As on 
31.03.2018 

As on 
31.03.2017

Freehold Land  845.91  –    –    845.91  –    –    –    –    845.91  845.91 
Leasehold Land  852.03  –    –    852.03  18.82  9.41  –    28.23  823.80  833.21 
Building  13,246.78  350.71  –    13,597.49  1,611.55  751.62  0.00  2,363.17  11,234.32  11,635.22 
Plant & Machinery  47,572.20  3,304.67  126.67  50,750.20  7,425.76  3,862.85  26.15  11,262.46  39,487.73  40,146.41 
Furniture, Fixture & 
Equipment

 340.43  113.19  1.02  452.60  188.87  54.94  0.82  242.99  209.61  151.56 

Vehicles  468.21  414.15  18.52  863.84  216.87  116.11  10.20  322.78  541.06  251.33 
Total  63,325.56  4,182.72  146.21  67,362.07  9,461.87  4,794.93  37.17  14,219.63  53,142.43  53,863.64 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Freehold Land-IF  2,511.36  780.44  177.32  3,114.48  –    –    –    –    3,114.48  2,511.36 
Admin Bidg- IP  971.63  –    –    971.63  35.61  17.37  0.12  52.86  918.77  936.02 
Total  3,482.99  780.44  177.32  4,086.11  35.61  17.37  0.12  52.86  4,033.25  3,447.38 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
SoŌware  116.20  70.41  –    186.61  57.89  27.17  –    85.06  101.55  58.31 
Minig Rights & 
Development

 308.42  –    –    308.42  37.20  18.60  –    55.80  252.62  271.22 

Total  424.62  70.41  –    495.03  95.09  45.77  –    140.86  354.17  329.53 

3 NON CURRENT  INVESTMENTS - FINANCIAL ASSET 

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                     

A. Investments in Equity Instruments
Subsidiary Companies - Unquoted (at cost)

(a) 10,00,000 (P.Y. 10,00,000) Equity Shares of Sarda Energy & Minerals 
HongKong Limited of HK$ 1.00 each

 55.83  55.83 

(b) 10,85,100 (P.Y. 10,85,100) Equity Shares of Sarda Global Venture Pte Limited 
of US$ 1.00 each

 660.88  660.88 

(c) 7,16,307 (P.Y. 7,16,307) Equity Shares of Sarda Energy Limited  7,460.34  7,460.34 
(d) 2,10,16,000(P.Y. 2,10,16,000) Equity Shares of Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited  21,141.22  21,089.29 
(e) 12,36,64,040 (P.Y. 10,68,48,040) Equity Shares of Madhya Bharat Power 

Corporation Limited
 30,409.01  26,205.01 

(f) 7,83,182 (P.Y. 7,83,182) Equity Shares of Parvatiya Power Private Limited  783.52  783.52 
(g) NIL (P.Y. 1,64,700) Equity Shares of Sarda Hydropower Private Limited  –    21.49 
(h) NIL (P.Y. 11,000) Equity Shares of Raipur Fabritech Private Limited  –    1.10 
(i) NIL (P.Y. 5,100) Equity Shares of Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited  –    0.51 
(j) 7,155 (P.Y. 7,155) Equity Shares of Natural Resources Energy Private Limited  0.72  0.72 
(k) 200 (P.Y. NIL) Equity Shares of Sarda Gobal Trading DMCC of AED 1,000 each  36.40  –   

In Joint Ventures (at cost)
(a) 1,30,800 (P.Y. 1,30,800) Equity Shares of Raipur Infrastructure Company  

Private Limited
 210.70  210.70 

(b) 1,30,742 (P.Y. 1,30,742) Equity Shares of Madanpur South Coal Company 
Limited

 182.71  182.71 
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3 NON CURRENT  INVESTMENTS - FINANCIAL ASSET 

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                     

B Other  Investments
C Investments in LLP (at cost)
(a) Shri Ram Electricty LLP  352.60  351.88 
(b) Chattisgarh Hydro Power LLP  5,352.67  4,752.24 
(c) Sarda Hydro Power LLP  30.29  –   
D In Other companies-Carried at FVTOCI 

4,85,000 (P.Y. 4,85,000) Equity Shares of Chhattisgarh Ispat Bhumi Limited  141.32  87.30 
E Investments in Mutual Funds; (Carried at FVTPL)

1,49,990 units (P.Y. 3,99,980 units) of KBC Mutual Fund  16.40  40.92 
 66,834.61  61,904.44 

Agrgregate amount of quoted investment and market value thereof-
Aggregate book value of quoted investments  16.40  40.92 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  16.40  40.92 
Aggregate value of unquoted investments  66,818.20  61,863.52 
Investment carried at cost  66,676.88  61,776.22 
Investment carried at fair value through OCI  141.32  87.30 
Investment carried at fair value through Profit & Loss  16.40  40.92 

(i) The Company, in its capacity as promoter, has pledged 11,48,35,000 shares of Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon 
Limited and 1,07,18,160 shares of Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited as security for loans availed by the enƟƟes. 

(ii) Raipur Fabritech Private Limited and Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited are under sƟke off.

4 OTHER  FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                   

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good  1,884.55  1,997.16 

 1,884.55  1,997.16 

5 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                       

(a) Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good  695.11  1,023.91 

(b) Advances other than capital advances
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good  69.55  70.36 
(ii) Other loans and advances
Advance income tax  453.37  240.19 
Prepaid expenses  23.61  30.71 
Balances with Revenue Authorities  334.07  299.52 

 1,575.71  1,664.69 
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6 INVENTORIES (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                        

(a) Raw Material  14,057.52  15,927.73 
(b) Finished / semi finished goods  13,376.71  11,314.53 
(c) Stock-in-Trade  4.13  719.48 
(d) Stores and spares  2,605.78  2,004.70 
(e) Material in Transit  -    409.23 

 30,044.14  30,375.67 

7 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ INVESTMENTS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                         

Investments in Equity Instruments-Carried at FVTPL
In Other Companies
32,813 (P.Y. 32,813) Equity Shares of Abhishek Mills Limited  0.21  0.92 
15,00,000 (P.Y. 15,00,000) Equity Shares of Canfin Homes Limited  5,232.75  7,267.50 
3,688 (P.Y. 3,688) Equity Shares of Indian Metals & Ferro Alloys 
Limited

 9.54  15.83 

 5,242.50  7,284.25 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof; 5,242.50 7,284.25

The Company has pledged 12,75,000 Shares of Canfin Homes Limited for loans availed from Financial Institutions.

8 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                         

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured  3,903.30  6,195.37 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  256.06  252.41 
Trade receivable - credit impaired  14.86  36.00 
Less: Provision for trade receivables considered good which have 
significant credit risk and credit impaired

 (270.92)  (288.42)

 3,903.30  6,195.36 

9 CURRENT ASSESTS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSET ͳ BANK, CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Balances with banks
In current accounts  95.09  73.41 

Cash on hand  22.50  24.18 

 117.59  97.59 

 For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018                         
Balances with banks
 - In current accounts  95.09  73.41 
Cash on hand  22.50  24.18 
Total  117.59  97.59 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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10 CURRENT ASSESTS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSET  ͳ OTHER BANK BALANCES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Unpaid dividend  149.58  61.59 
 149.58  61.59 

11 CURRENT ASSESTS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSET  ͳ LOANS 

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Loans and advances to related parties  26,392.03  10,271.04 
Unsecured,considered good

(b) Other loans 
Unsecured,considered good
(i) Earnest money deposit  195.97  510.88 
(ii) Loans to employees  9.75  9.51 
(iii) Loans and advances to other parties 5,703.92 7,752.86
(iv) Claims & recoverables  342.32  173.77 

 32,643.99  18,718.06 

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Advances other than capital advances
(a) Other Advances

(i) Employee Advance  3.61  4.52 
(ii) Advances to vendors  5,341.11  7,044.32 

(b) Other Advances
(i) Advance royalty paid  341.44  38.54 
(ii)  Prepaid expenses  60.57  91.86 
(iii) Balances with tax authorities  60.73  60.73 
(iv) Others  0.81  12.56 

 5,808.27  7,252.53 

13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                        

 No.  ` in lakh  No.  ` in lakh 
A Authorized

Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  5,00,00,000  5,000.00  5,00,00,000  5,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,49,235  3,604.92 

 3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,49,235  3,604.92 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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B Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 
are as given below:

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

 No.  ` in lakh  No.  ` in lakh 
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period  3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,30,398  3,603.04 
Add: On account of ESOP  –    18,837  1.88 
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period  3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,49,235  3,604.92 

C Terms/rights attached to equity shares

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 
to receive the sales proceeds of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferential 
amounts. The distribution shall be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

D Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                        

Name of the shareholder Number 
of shares 

 % Number 
of shares 

 % 

Chhatisgarh Investments Limited  1,38,78,760 38.50%  1,37,88,760 38.25%
Sarda Agriculture & Properties Private Limited  26,35,150 7.31%  26,35,150 7.31%

E In the period of five years immediately preceding 31st March, 2019, the Company has neither issued bonus shares, 
bought back any equity shares nor has allotted any equity shares as fully paid up without payment being received 
in cash except 1,99,235 options given to employees under ESOP for subscription of shares @ ` 125/ per share.

F There are no shares reserved for issue under options and there are no contracts or commitments for the sale of 
shares or disinvestment.

G. SEML ESOP Scheme 2012
 a. The Company has established an Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in accordance with the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999, which has been approved by the Board of Directors and the shareholders. Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the Company administers the ESOPs. All options under the ESOPs are exercisable for equity 
shares. The Company plans to grant upto 7,17,000 options to eligible employees and directors of the Company 
and subsidiaries of the Company.

 b. The options Granted under the SEML ESOP Scheme 2012 shall vest as under:

  i) 1/3 rd at the end of one year from the date of Grant.

  ii) 1/3 rd at the end of two years from the date of Grant.

  iii) 1/3 rd at the end of three years from the date of Grant.

 c. The Grantees have a period of 2 years to exercise the Options from the date of vesting, after which unexercised 
options will lapse.

 d. Options in respect of the Shares vested at each vesting date can be exercised in maximum four tranches 
subject to the exercise period of 2 years from the date of vesting. Each option is exercisable for one equity 
share of ` 10 each fully paid up on payment of exercise price of share determined with respect to the date of 
grant.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
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 e. The movement in the scheme is set out as under:

SEML ESOP Scheme 2012 – Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

OpƟons Weighted Average 
exercise price

OpƟons Weighted Average 
exercise price

Number Amount (in `) Number Amount (in `)
Outstanding at the beginning of year NIL NIL 26,464 125.00
Granted during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Exercised during the year NIL NIL 18,837 125.00
Forfeited during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Expired during the year NIL NIL 7,627 NIL
Outstanding at the end of the year NIL NIL NIL 125.00
Exercisable at the end of the year 
(OpƟons which have vested)

NIL NIL NIL 125.00

Number of Equity Shares of `10/- 
each fully paid up to be issued on 
exercise of opƟon

NIL NIL 3,33,360 125.00

Exercise price at the date of exercise N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Weighted average remaining 
contractual life (months) (including 
exercise period)

--- --- --- ---

 f. Proforma accounting for stock option grants

  The Company has applied the intrinsic value-based method of accounting for determining compensation cost 
for its ESOP Plan. Had the compensation cost been determined using fair value approach, the Company’s net 
income and basic/diluted earnings per share as reported would have changed to the proforma amounts as 
indicated:

(` in Lakh)

S.No. ParƟculars Year Ended
31st March, 2019

Year Ended
31st March, 2018

1 Net Profit as reported --           18,786.91
2 Add : Stock based employee compensaƟon expense debited to 

statement of profit and loss
-- 49.80

3 Less : Stock based employee compensaƟon expense based on fair 
value

-- --

4 Difference between (2) & (3) -- --
5 Adjusted pro forma profit -- 18,786.91
6 Difference between (1) & (5) -- 49.80
7 Basic earnings per share as reported - 52.27
8 Proforma earnings per share - 52.27
9 Diluted earnings per share as reported - 52.27

10 Proforma Diluted earnings per share - 52.27

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
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g. The fair value of the options, calculated by an independent consultant was estimated on the date of grant using the 
Black-Scholes model with the following significant assumptions:

ParƟculars AssumpƟons
Risk free interest rate (in %) 8%
Expected life (in months) 41
VolaƟlity (in %) 8%
Dividend yield (in %) 30%

 The volatility of the options is based on the historical volatility of the share price for the last one year as on the date 
of grant.  

h. Details of weighted average exercise price and fair value of the stock options granted at price below market price 
(on the date of grant):

ParƟculars
Total opƟons granted 3,33,360
Weighted average exercise price (in `) 125.00
Weighted average fair value (in `) 126.43

Note: As on 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2018, no ESOP were pending for exercise. All granted ESOPs have either 
been exercised or have been lapsed.

14 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ BORROWINGS (` in Lakh)

Non-Current 
portion

 Current Maturities 

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
` ` ` `

Term loans (Secured)
from banks 
Indian Rupee Loan 9,794.58 11,024.47  2,167.78  2,936.73 

9,794.58 11,024.47  2,167.78  2,936.73 

1) Nature of security :
 a) Term Loans from Bank are secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable assets 

of the Company situated at Industrial Growth Centre, Siltara, Raipur subject to prior charge on current assets 
in favour of Working Capital Bankers and by way of joint equitable mortgage of immovable properties of the 
Company situated at Industrial Growth Centre, Siltara, Raipur and Urkura, Raipur.

 b) Term Loan of ` 5,000 lakh which is secured by way of mortgage of immovable properties of related companies 
[Present outstanding is NIL (P.Y. ` 1,000 lakh)].

 c) Besides this, the Term Loan from Banks are also secured by unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantees 
of Mr. K. K. Sarda, Mr. Manish Sarda & Mr. Pankaj Sarda.     

2) Repayment terms :
 a)  Rupee term loan of ` 14,797 lakh (Present Outstanding ` 9,254.80 lakh) from Banks is payable in 32 equal 

quarterly installments starting from June, 2016.    
 b) Rupee term loan -II of ` 3,691 lakh (Present Outstanding ` 2,855.95 lakh) from Banks is payable in 28 equal 

quarterly installments starting from December, 2018.    

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019



108 | Annual Report 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

15 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Security Deposit Received
Deposits from Vendors 234.96 226.53
Other payables 17.82 7.00

 252.78  233.53 

16 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES ΈNETΉ

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred tax liability / (assets) at the beginning of the year 6,357.50 5,090.16
Deferred tax liability / (assets) during the year on account of timing difference (143.34)  1,267.34 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / ASSETS at the end of the year  6,214.16  6,357.50 

17 PROVISIONS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Provision for employee benefits
      Provision for Leave encashment 271.64 236.56

 271.64  236.56 

18 CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ BORROWINGS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Secured
From Banks (Secured)
Working capital loans (repayable on demand) 12,227.27 8,730.91
Working capital Buyers Credit loans  –   5,853.42

 12,227.27  14,584.33 
From Banks and Financial Institutions (Unsecured)
From banks 2,000.00 2,000.00
From Others 3,300.00 2,000.00

 5,300.00  4,000.00 
 17,527.27  18,584.33 

Terms of repayment

a) Short term loan from Bank ` 2,000 Lakh is payable in September, 2019 and ` 3,300 Lakh from others is payable in 
February, 2020.   

Security 
a) Working Capital loans from banks are secured by first pari-passu charge on stocks & book debts and second pari-

passu charge on all present and future movable Plant & Machinery and second charge by way of joint equitable 
mortgage of immovable properties located at Industrial Growth Centre, Siltara, Raipur and land located at Urkura 
Raipur. These facilities are also secured by irrevocable personal guarantees of Mr. K.K.Sarda, Mr. Pankaj Sarda and 
Mr. Manish Sarda.   

b) Short term loan from others is secured by pledge of shares belonging to the Company and belonging to related 
companies.   

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)



Annual Report 2018-19|109 

Company Overview Statutory Report Financial Section

19 CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (` in Lakh)

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Current maturities of long term debt 2,167.78 2,936.73
(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 33.39 81.79
(c) Deposits from customers 3.73 0.90
(d) Expenses payable 384.78 230.18
(e) Salary & reimbursements 1,342.44 1,033.63
(f) Bill discounting 703.90 1,845.48
(g) INR payable to bank in forex account -  2.55 
(h) Unpaid Dividends 149.58 61.59

 4,785.60  6,192.85 

20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Others -
Indirect taxes payable 996.25 397.54

(b) Deposit from Employees 125.39 91.76
(c) Advances from customers 541.53 1,374.28
(d) TDS payables 113.60 126.38

 1,776.77  1,989.96 

21 PROVISIONS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Provision for employee benefits
(a) Provision for gratuity 226.75 176.16
(b) Provision for Leave encashment  24.08 18.56
Provision for expenses 474.99 784.06

 725.82  978.78 

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

2018-19 2017-18
Sale of products

Sponge Iron  28,475.90 26,082.96
Ferro Alloys  44,211.59 46,340.93
Steel Billets  11,052.89 5,596.84
Wire Rod / HB Wire  45,314.17 38,191.46
Pellet  28,787.57 20,830.09
Power  295.63 133.70
Others  6,884.69 13,858.40

Other operating revenues  316.17 474.97
Revenue from Operations (Gross)  1,65,338.61  1,51,509.35 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
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23 OTHER INCOME

2018-19 2017-18
Interest Income 2,828.36 1,723.58
Dividend Income

From Subsidiaries 1,812.98 1,464.54
From Others 30.55 30.38

Corporate guarantee commission 46.29 47.65
Fair value gain on Financial Instruments at FVTPL (2,041.75) 890.92
Other non-operating income
(net of expenses directly attributable to such income)

515.93 1,883.43

3,192.36 6,040.50

24 COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

2018-19 2017-18
Iron Ore  29,643.05 18,787.66
Mn Ore  20,671.20 19,371.63
Coal  40,258.93 40,925.15
Scrap  6,853.31 5,100.92
Other Material  1,830.74 2,092.53

 99,257.23  86,277.89 

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, SEMIͳFINISHED GOODS AND STOCKͳINͳTRADE

2018-19 2017-18
Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods / Semi-finished goods 13,376.71 11,314.53
Trading Goods  4.13 719.48

 13,380.84  12,034.01 
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods / Semi-finished goods  11,314.53  10,643.97 
Trading Goods  719.48  –   

 12,034.01  10,643.97 
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 1,346.83  1,390.04 

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

2018-19 2017-18
Salaries, incentives & Managerial Remuneration 6,266.87 5,472.15
Contributions to -

Provident fund 327.09 302.68
Superannuation scheme 18.30 17.24
Gratuity fund 131.08 119.47

Staff welfare expenses 126.27 125.74
 6,869.61  6,037.28 
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27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) The results of the actuarial study for the obligation for employee benefits as computed by the actuary are shown 
below:

Gratuity Leave Encashment
31st March, 

2019
31st March, 

2018
31st March, 

2019
31st March, 

2018
Actuarial study analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.70% 7.75% 7.70% 7.50%
Range of compensation increase 9.50% 9.50% 9.50% 9.50%
Attrition rate:
Age 21 - 44 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Age 45 - 59 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.70% 7.75% N/A N/A
Plan duration  58.00  58.00  58.00  58.00 
Components of statement of income statement charge
Current service cost  115.87  102.30  25.02  18.12 
Interest cost  12.28  15.79  19.55  19.22 
Recognition of past service cost  –    –    –    –   
Settlement/curtailment/termination loss  –    –    –    –   
Total charged to statement of profit or loss  128.15  118.09  44.57  37.34 
Movements in net liability/(asset) 
Net liability at the beginning of the year  176.16  216.94  255.12  250.24 
Employer contributions (129.91) (178.66) (2.36) (4.46)
Total expense recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss

 128.15  118.09  44.57  37.34 

Total amount recognized in OCI  52.35 19.80 (1.60) (28.00)
Net liability at the end of the year  226.75  176.17  295.73  255.12 
Reconciliation of benefit obligations
Obligation at start of the year  1,104.70  937.39  255.11  250.24 
Current service cost  115.87  102.30  25.02  18.12 
Interest cost  83.78  71.63  19.55  19.22 
Benefits paid directly by the Company (33.39) (26.36) (2.36) (4.46)
Extra payments or expenses/(income)
Obligation of past service cost  52.08  19.75 (1.61) (28.01)
Actuarial loss
Defined benefits obligations at the end of the year 1,323.04 1,104.71  295.71  255.11 
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to changes in financial assumptions 7.67 (25.71) 1.47 (6.65)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on account of experience adjustments 44.41 45.51 (3.08) (21.36)
Total actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in OCI  52.08 19.80 (1.61) (28.01)
Change in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  928.55  720.46  –    –   
Interest on plan assets  71.49  55.84  –    –   
Contributions made  129.91  178.66  2.36  4.46 
Benefits paid (33.39) (26.36) (2.36) (4.46)
Actuarial (loss)/gain on plan assets (0.26) (0.05)  –    –   
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,096.30  928.55  –    –   
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b) Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions
 The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption, holding other 

assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the 
relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably possible at the reporting date.  

31st March, 
2019

31st March, 
2018

31st March, 
2019

31st March, 
2018

Discount rate
+ 1% discount rate 1,208.28 1,008.08  268.16  230.92 
- 1% discount rate 1,445.59 1,217.34  328.03  283.55 
Salary increase
+ 1% salary growth 1,455.21 1,215.68  328.40  283.92 
- 1% salary growth 1,207.57 1,007.97  267.36  230.16 

c) Experience adjustments

31st March, 
2019

31st March, 
2018

31st March, 
2019

31st March, 
2018

Defined benefit obligation 1,323.04 1,104.70 295.71 255.11
Fair value of plan assets 1,096.30 928.55 – –
(Surplus)/deficit in plan assets 226.74 176.15 295.71 255.11
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 44.41 45.51 (3.08) (21.36)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.26) (0.05) – –

 The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors.

28 FINANCE COSTS

2018-19 2017-18
Interest expense 3,002.29 3,009.60
Other borrowing costs 463.76 486.19
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to 
borrowing costs

47.12 92.01

 3,513.17  3,587.80 

The capitalization rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalized is the weighted average 
interest rate applicable to the entity’s general borrowings during the year, in this case 9.83% (PY: 9.55%). 

29 OTHER EXPENSES

2018-19 2017-18
Stores & Spares Consumption 4,899.26 4,147.81
Power 467.30 1,186.19
Manufacturing Expenses

Plant process & services 1,508.58 1,384.60
Material handling Expenses 2,662.58 1,941.18
Other Manufacturing Expenses 14.04 17.77

Increase/ (Decrease) of excise duty on inventory – (641.80)
Repairs & Maintenance

Building 368.90 157.13
Plant & Machinery 765.10 778.97
Others 577.54 302.86
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29 OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)

2018-19 2017-18
Rent 113.79 114.36
Rates & Taxes 1,371.93 1,440.94
Insurance Charges 148.95 137.45
Miscellaneous Expenses

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 404.74 393.34
Legal & Professional Expenses 562.39 618.66
Administrative Expenses 954.92 562.89
Other Expenses 49.53 207.73

Selling Expenses
Carriage Outward 1,552.07 1,184.79
Selling Commission & Brokerage 415.88 432.41
Other Selling Expenses 21.19 36.38

Exchange differences (net)  1,450.39  (443.83)
Payment to Auditors 21.00 21.00
Gains/Loss on sale of investments  (1.11)  9.51 

 18,328.97  13,990.34 

30 PAYMENTS TO THE AUDITOR

2018-19 2017-18
As auditor:

Audit fee 18.00 18.00
Tax audit fee 3.00 3.00

 21.00  21.00 

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE ΈEPSΉ

2018-19 2017-18
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to 
Equity Shareholders (` in Lakh)

 21,484.78  18,786.91

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (`)  10  10 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 
calculating basic EPS

 360.49  360.49 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 
calculating Diluted EPS

 360.49  360.49 

Basic (`)  59.60  52.27 
Diluted (`)  59.60  52.27 

32 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (50.75)  8.21 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  17.73 (9.69)

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair valuation of unquoted investments 54.03  –   
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  (8.95)  –   
Total Other Comprehensive Income  12.06  (1.48)
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33 SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information has been prepared in confirmity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and  
presenting the financial statements of the Company.        
As part of secondary reporting , the Company has no geographical segment by location.

A) Business Segment Primary

2018-19 2017-18
Steel Ferro Power Total Steel Ferro Power Total

Revenue
Sales & other income 1,14,926.96 48,908.96 329.56 1,64,165.48 92,337.28 57,869.45 277.45 1,50,484.18 
Inter segment sales 1,225.92 21,339.84 22,565.76 1,086.70 17,774.71 18,861.41 
Others Unallocated 1,173.13 1,025.17 
Less:Inter Segment sales 12,25.92 21,339.84 22,565.76 1,086.70 17,774.71 18,861.41
Total Revenue 1,14,926.96 48,908.96 329.56 1,65,338.61 92,337.28 57,869.45 277.45 1,51,509.35 
Result
Segment Result 34,976.18 5,222.42 (438.67) 39,759.93 23,369.06 7,309.32 473.86 31,152.24 
Unallocated Expenses net off 
unallocated income

(2,666.54) (1,135.25)

OperaƟng Profit 37,093.39 30,016.99 
Interest & Forex FluctuaƟon Loss 
(Net)

(4,963.57) (3,143.97)

Profit Before Tax & 
Extraordinary Item

32,129.82 26,873.02 

Provision for taxaƟon
For Current Year (10,779.59) (6,635.59)
For Deffered TaxaƟon 134.55 (1,450.52)
Profit AŌer TaxaƟon 21,484.78 18,786.91 
Other InformaƟon
Segment Assets 70,265.67 15,788.212 14,067.79 1,00,121.68 65,685.75 23,352.59 16,003.95 1,05,042.29 
Unallocated Assets 1,07,830.01 91,131.69 
Total Assets 2,07,951.69 1,96,173.98 
Segment LiabiliƟes 14,530.15 1,766.88 4,846.68 21,143.71 12,126.84 11,017.90 3,485.25 26,629.99 
Unallocated LiabiliƟes 30,242.56 32,672.96 
Total LiabiliƟes 51,386.27 59,302.95 
Capital Expenditure 2,261.73 625.97 391.25 3,278.95 2,641.83 107.82 1,794.08 4,543.73 
DepreciaƟon / AmorƟzaƟon 2,764.46 363.82 1,138.90 4,267.18 3,234.44 398.98 695.94 4,329.36 
Unallocated DepreciaƟon 728.95 528.70 
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34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

a) Names of related parƟes and descripƟon of relaƟonship

S.No. RelaƟonship Name of Related ParƟes
1 Subsidiaries Sarda Energy & Minerals Hongkong Limited, Hongkong

Sarda Global Ventures Pte Limited, Singapore
Sarda Global Trading DMCC, Dubai
Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited
Sarda Energy Limited
Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited
ParvaƟya Power Limited
Raipur Fabritech Private Limited*
Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited*
Natural Resources Energy Private Limited

2 Controlled EnƟƟes Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP
Sarda Hydro Power LLP ( Eartswhile Sarda Hydro Power 
Private Limited)
Shri Ram Electricity LLP

3 Joint Ventures Raipur Infrastructure Company Limited
Madanpur South Coal Company Limited

4 Related Enterprises where interest of the Company/ ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited
directors exists GeschaŌ Formulae India Private Limited (Formerly 

known as Sarda SoluƟon and Technologies Private 
Limited)
Rishabh Mining & Transport Company Private Limited
Sarda Dairy & Food Products Limited
Goldenlife Financial Services Private Limited
Earth Stahl & Alloys Private Limited
Chhaƫsgarh Metaliks & Alloys Private Limited
Jai Balaji Enterprises

5 Director / Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Kamal Kishore Sarda
Mrs. Uma Sarda
Mr. Pankaj Sarda
Mr. Padam Kumar Jain (WTD & CFO)
Mr. Prabhakar Ram Tripathi
Mr. Gajinder Singh Sahni
Mr. Jitender Balakrishnan
Mr. C.K. Lakshminarayanan
Mr. Asit Kumar Basu
Mr. Rakesh Mehra
Mr. Manish Sethi (CS)

6 RelaƟves of Directors / KMP’s Mrs. Veena Sarda
Mr. Satyanarayan Khator
Mr. Mahesh Khator
Mr. Anant Sarda
Ms. Niharika Jain

* Companies are under strike off.
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b) Material Transactions with Related Parties 

Subsidiaries Controlled 
EnƟƟes

Joint 
Ventures 

Related Enterprises 
where interest of the 
Company /directors 

exists

Director / 
KMP

RelaƟves of 
Directors / 

KMP’s

Loans/Advances Given  26,322.60  3,883.00  –    24,840.50  –    –   
 (32,288.02)  (2,768.00)  –    (27,409.91)  –    –   

Loans/Advances Received Back  21,795.00  3,870.00  –    15,142.03  –    –   
 (34,573.72)  (2,403.00)  –    (26,936.12)  –    –   

Material Transferred/Sold  6,596.83  0.17  –    183.71  –    –   
 (5,407.69)  (5.68)  (0.03)  (1,172.24)  (1.33)  –   

Materials Purchased  2,444.10  –    4.73  984.33  –    –   
 (916.12)  (47.10)  –    (852.82)  –    –   

Interest Received  538.94  57.10  –    1,468.96  –    –   
 (353.08)  (97.37)  –    (322.57)  –    –   

Interest Paid  –    –    –    0.12  –    1.44 
 –    –    –    (41.77)  –    (1.44)

Commission Paid  –    –    –    –    –    14.08 
 –    –    –    –  –    (8.30)

Dividend Income  1,812.98  –    –    –    –    –   
 (1,464.54)  –    –    –    –    –   

RemuneraƟon  –    –    –    –    780.50  17.79 
 –    –    –    –    (606.80)  (7.84)

Rent Paid  –    –    –    120.01  –    2.40 
 –    –    –    (120.01)  –    (2.40)

Services Offered  54.62  –    3.54  –    –    –   
 (54.12)  –    (3.54)  –    –    –   

Services Received  –    –    –    239.43  –    –   
 –    –    –    (161.35)  –    –   

Corporate Guarantee Given /
(received back)

 (17.50)  –    –    –    –    –   
 –    –    –    –    –    –   

Investments made/Share 
applicaƟon money

 4,292.32  708.96  –    –    –    –   
 (10,394.63)  (370.05)  –    –    –    –   

Investments Buyback  –    –    –    –    –    –   
 –    –    (60.49)  –    –    –   

Investments wriƩen off  1.61  –    –    –    –    –   
 –    –    –    –    –    –   

Note: Figures in bracket represents previous year’s figures.
Outstanding as at 31.03.2019
Receivable  8,393.48  517.03  –    17,528.60  0.61  –   

 (3,386.95)  (452.63)  –    (6,613.57)  (3.61)  (0.09)
Corporate Guarantee 
Outstanding

 6,170.09  –    –    –    –    –   
 (6,187.59)  –    –    –    –    –   

Investments  60,547.91  5,834.57  393.41  –    –    –   
 (56,257.20)  (5,125.61)  (393.41)  –    –    –   

Payables  –    –    –    2.07  464.31  23.02 
 –    –    –    (107.99)  (312.56)  (20.59)
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Out of the above items, transactions and outstanding in excess of 10% of the total related party transactions are as 
under:

2018-19 2017-18
Loans/Advances given
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  21,426.72  29,941.02 
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited  24,840.50  26,959.80 
Loans/Advances Received Back
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  20,995.00  33,020.72 
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited  15,118.61  26,936.00 
Materials Transferred/Sold
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  6,520.42  5,407.69 
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited  –   1070.42
Materials Received/Purchased
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  2,399.12  898.30 
Earth Stahl & Alloys Private Limited  718.37  69.77 
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited  1.93  742.75 
Interest Received
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  195.79  186.94 
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited  1,468.96  320.03 
ParvaƟya Power Limited  184.31  166.14 
Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP  57.10  97.37 
Interest Paid
Satyanarayan Khator  0.36  0.36 
Mr. Mahesh Khator  1.08  1.08 
Goldenlife Financial Services Private Limited  –    41.65 
Commission paid
Satyanarayan Khator  14.08  8.30 
RemuneraƟon Paid
Mr. Kamal Kishore Sarda  509.09  444.94 
Mr. Pankaj Sarda  171.23  70.54 
Dividend Income
Sarda Energy & Minerals Hongkong Limited  1,812.98  1,464.54 
Rent Paid
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited               73.66                          73.66 
Rishabh Mining & Transport Company Private Limited             46.35 46.35
Services Offered
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  54.62  54.12 
Services Received
GeschaŌ Formulae India Private Limited  239.43  161.35 
Corporate Guarantee Received back
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  17.50  –   
Investment Made including Share ApplicaƟon
Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited  4,204.00  10,340.51 
Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP  695.83  370.05 
Investment Bought Back
Madanpur South Coal Company Limited  –    60.49 
Investment WriƩen Off
Raipur Fabritech Private Limited  1.10  –   
Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited  0.51  –   
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Outstanding as on

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Investments
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  21,141.22  21,089.29 
Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited  30,409.01  26,205.01 
Sarda Energy Limited  7,460.34  7,460.34 
Receivables
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  1,774.87  1,166.94 
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited  17,486.14  6,460.81 
Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited  4,891.62  –   
ParvaƟya Power Limited  1,712.98  2,206.23 
Corporate Guarantee 
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited  6,170.09  6,187.59 
Payables
Mr. K.K. Sarda (RemuneraƟon)  356.03  305.87 
Mr. Pankaj Sarda (RemuneraƟon)  104.46  2.84 
GeschaŌ Formulae India Private Limited  –    64.08 

35 COMMITMENTS

a.  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advance given and not provided 
for as at 31st March, 2019 is ` 511.05 Lakh (31st March, 2018: ` 899.15 Lakh).    

b.  Company has commitment of ` NIL as at 31st March, 2019 (31st March, 2018: ` 1092.73 Lakh) in Madhya Bharat 
Power Corporation Limited.

 c.  Company has commitment for remittance of AED 800,000 (equivalent to INR 150.96 Lakh) towards equity 
contribution in wholly owned subsidiary, M/s Sarda Global Trading DMCC as at 31st March, 2019.

36 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at 
least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and 
culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development 
projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a 
corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is ` 294.55 Lakh.
b) Amount spent during the year on:

Sl. No. Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid Total
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset  –    –    –   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 294.71  –   294.71

37 DUE TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED ACT, 2006

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSME Act are as follows:
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As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
each supplier at the end of each accounƟng year
 - Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise  136.89  –   
 - Interest due on above  0.05  –   
(ii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of SecƟon 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the period.
 - Payment made beyond the Appointed date  –    –   
 - Interest paid beyond the Appointed date  –    –   
(iii) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) 
but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Act, 2006

 –    –   

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounƟng year

 –    –   

(v) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unƟl 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprises.

 –    –   

38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Guarantees given by Company’s bankers  3,172.72  3,375.07 
Guarantees given to DGFT on behalf of wholly owned subsidiary for 
meeƟng export obligaƟon

 98.88  98.88 

Guarantees given to Assistant Commissioner of Customs on behalf of 
wholly owned subsidiary

 71.21  88.71 

Bills discounted with the Company’s bankers under LeƩers of Credit  703.91  1,972.13 
Corporate Guarantee given to Axis Trustee Services Limited for 
disbursement of term loan to Sarda Metals & Alloys Ltd. (SMAL), wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Company 

 6,000.00  6,000.00 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt & disputed in 
appeals

 642.39  688.54 

Excise Duty & Service Tax Demand  1,644.90  1,720.63 
VAT, CST & Entry Tax  922.74  724.42 
Energy Development Cess  6,079.20  5,543.80 

i) Guarantee given to Director General of Foreign Trade ` 98.88 lakh (P.Y. ` 98.88 lakh) and Assistant Commissioner 
of Customs ` 71.21 lakh (P.Y. ` 88.71 lakh) on behalf of Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of 
the Company for fulfillment of Export Obligation against import of capital goods under Export Promotion Capital 
Goods Scheme.

ii) Excise Duty & Service Tax

 a Excise duty demand of ` 21.62 lakh (P.Y. ` 20.57 lakh)  raised  on account of Cenvat credit availed, which  the  
Company  has  disputed  in  High  Court, Jabalpur (MP).  

 b ` NIL (P.Y. ` 6.97 lakh) on account of duty on VAT Collected by the Company against which the Company has 
filed an appeal before the High Court, Bilaspur (CG).   
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 c Excise Duty demand of ` NIL (P.Y. ` 54.78 lakh) raised on account of Cenvat credit availed which the Company 
has disputed and has filed appeal before the Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT). 

 d Excise Duty demand of ` NIL (P.Y. ` 13.99 lakh) raised on account of Cenvat credit availed has been disputed 
before Commissioner (Appeals), Raipur.  

 e Excise Duty demand of ̀  7.62 lakh (P.Y. ̀  7.62 lakh) raised on account of Cenvat credit availed has been disputed 
before Commissioner (Appeals), Raipur.  

 f Service Tax demand of ` 1,616.70 lakh (P.Y. ` 1,616.70 lakh) raised on account of Service Tax on amount 
received in an internation arbitration case settled out of court, which the Company has disputed and has filed 
appeal before Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT).  

iii) Value Added Tax/Central Sales Tax/Entry Tax

 Value Added Tax/Central Sales Tax/ Entry Tax demands of ` 922.74 (P.Y. ` 724.42 lakh) are pending in appeal against 
assessment of various years.  

iv) Energy Development Cess of ` 6,079.20 lakh (P.Y. ` 5,543.80 lakh) net of amount deposited ` 294.34 lakh (P.Y. 
` 294.34 lakh) demanded by the Chief Electrical Inspector, Govt. of Chhattisgarh for the period May 2006 to 
February 2019. The Honorable High Court of Chhattisgarh has held the levy of Energy Development Cess as 
unconstitutional vide its Order dated 20th June, 2008. The State Govt. has filed a Special Leave Petition before the 
Honorable Supreme Court.

v) Disputed in appeals includes a claim against SEML for ` 44.68 lakh. Against this, SEML has filed a counter claim of 
` 453.34 lakh. 

vi) Bank Guarantee of ` 500.00 lakh (P.Y. ` 500.00 lakh) given as security deposit against contract for disposal of 
old power project awarded to the Company was invoked by Ms/. West Bengal Power Development Corporation 
Limited. The Company has challenged the wrongful invocation in the High court of Kolkata. WBPDCL has on the 
orders of the Hon’ble High Court deposited the amount of bank guarantee with the Court. The Company has been 
legally advised that it has a strong case in its favour, hence no liability provided.   

39 CONTINGENT ASSET

i) Company has various pending insurance claims in lieu of machine break down adding up to ` 190.16 Lakh as on 
31st March, 2019.  

ii) Consequent to the deallocation of the coal block Gare Palma IV/7, the Company had filed a writ petition before 
the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi challenging the compensation amount and exclusion of washary from the mine 
infrastructure.  Following the order of Hon’ble High Court of Delhi dated 09.03.2017, Ministry of Coal, Govt. of India 
had asked for resubmitting the compenasation claim. Accordingly the Company has resubmitted compensation 
claim of ` 17,651.85 Lakh. This includes compensation of ` 2,641.44 Lakh already received by the Company in 
FY 2016-17. This matter is still pending with Ministry of Coal, Govt. of India.   

40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings in foreign as well as domestic currency, 
trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. 
The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Company also enters into derivative contracts.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk     

- Market Risk     

 - Interest rate risk     

 - Currency risk     

 - Price risk

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
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The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Comopany’s risk 
management framework. This note presents information about the risks associated with its financial instruments, the 
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of 
capital. 

CREDIT RISK      

The Company is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties non performance or default on their 
obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk primarily relates to investments, accounts receivable and cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company monitors and limits its exposure to credit risk on a continuous basis. The Company’s 
credit risk associated with accounts receivable is primarily related to party not able to settle their obloigation as agreed. 
To manage this the Company periodically reviews the finanial reliability of its customers, taking into account the 
financial condition, current economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables.

Trade receivables     

Trade receivables represent the most significant exposure to credit risk and are stated after an allowance for impairment 
and expected credit loss.

Loans and Advances     

Financial assets in the form of loans and advances are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery. 
Where recoveries are made, these are recognize as income in the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures 
the expected credit loss of dues based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which 
the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on historical data, loss 
on collection of dues is not material hence no additional provisions considered.

Cash and cash equivalents     

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits which are readily convertible to cash. These are subject 
to insignificant risk of change in value or credit risk.     

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporting date was:          (` in Lakh)

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Trade and other receivables  3,903.30  6,195.36 
Loans and advances  34,528.54  20,715.23 
Cash and cash equivalents  117.59  97.59 

Impairment losses

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Trade and other receivables (measured under life Ɵme excepted credit 
loss model) 
Opening balance  288.43  295.82 
Provided during the year  (17.51)  (7.39)
Closing balance  270.92  288.43 

Ageing analysis

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Upto 3 months  3,728.43  5,988.14 
3-6 months  3.14  119.08 
More than 6 months  442.65  376.58 

 4,174.22  6,483.80 

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period.
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LIQUIDITY RISK

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligations as they become due. The Company 
monitors and manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial 
requirements. The Company has access to credit facilities and debt capital markets and monitors cash balances daily. 
In relation to the Company’s liquidity risk, the Company’s policy is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions as they fall due while 
minimizing finance costs, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Financing arrangements

The Company has access to following undrawn borrowing facilities and liquid investments at the end of the reporting 
period:

(` in Lakh)

ParƟculars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Term Loan - Union Bank of India-TG3  612.78  1,616.78 
Cash Credit facility  6,539.61  4,769.00 
Current investments  5,242.50  7,284.25 

Maturities of financial liabilities

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities are as follows:

As at 31st March, 2019 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings  19,695.04  9,794.59  –  29,489.63 
Trade payables  8,954.19  –  –  8,954.19 
Security deposits  3.73  252.78  –  256.51 
Other financial liabilities  2,614.09  –  –  2,614.09 

31,267.05  10,047.37  – 41,314.42

As at 31st March, 2018 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings  21,521.06  8,522.06  2,502.41  32,545.53 
Trade payables  12,741.49  – –  12,741.49 
Security deposits  0.90  233.53 –  234.43 
Other financial liabilities  3,255.22  – –  3,255.22 

37,518.67  8,755.59  2,502.41 48,776.67

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversley effect the borrowing cost 
of the company. The Company is exposed to long term and short-term borrowings, Commercial Paper Program. The 
Company manages interest rate risk by monitoring its mix of fixed and floating rate instruments, and taking action as 
necessary to maintain an appropriate balance.     

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

MARKET RISK
a) Interest rate risk exposure                                                                                                                                       

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Variable rate borrowings  22,499.15  16,692.11 
Fixed rate borrowings  6,990.60  15,853.42 
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b) Sensitivity analysis

 Profit or loss estimate to higher/lower interest rate expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest 
rates.

Impact on profit aŌer tax
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Interest rates - increase by 70 basis points  (164.80)  (179.43)
Interest rates - decrease by 70 basis points  164.80  179.43 

CURRENCY RISK      

The Company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently 
the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases from overseas suppliers 
in various foreign currencies.

Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods in the respective currencies.

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and the Company follows 
established risk management policies,including the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge 
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Currency in Lakh

Currency 2018-19 2017-18
Borrowings USD  –    89.81 
Trade Payables USD  48.46  109.19 
Trade Receivables USD  –    (20.74)

Profit or loss estimate to higher/lower as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates-

Impact on profit aŌer tax
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Foreign exchange rates - increase by 1%  (33.49)  (116.18)
Foreign exchange rates - decrease by 1%  33.49  116.18 

PRICE RISK

The entity is exposed to equity price risk, which arised out from FVTPL quoted equity shares & mutual funds and FVTOCI 
unquoted equity shares. The management monitors the proportion of equity securities in its investment portfolio 
based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and 
sell decisions are approved by the management. The primary goal of the entity’s investment strategy is to maximize 
investments returns.      

Sensitivity Analysis for Price Risk:

Equity Investments carried at FVTOCI are not listed on the stock exchange. For equity investments and mutual funds 
classified as at FVTPL, the impact of a 2 % in the index at the reporting date on profit & loss would have been an 
increase of ` 105.18 lakh (2017-18 : ` 146.50 lakh); an equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased 
profit and loss. For equity investments classified as at FVTOCI, the impact of a 2 % in the index at the reporting date 
on profit & loss would have been an increase of ` 2.83 lakh (2017-18: ` 1.75 lakh); an equal change in the opposite 
direction would have decreased profit and loss. 

41 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

“The Company’s main objectives when managing capital are to:
- ensure sufficient liquidity is available (either through cash and cash equivalents, investments or committed credit 

facilities) to meet the needs of the business;
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- ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities and secured debentures; and
- minimize finance costs while taking into consideration current and future industry, market and economic risks and 

conditions.
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
- to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity funding thus achieving an optimal capital structure and cost of 

capital.   
The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of 
capital through prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international 
financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the 
business.    
For the purpose of Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. 
The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the 
requirements of the financial covenants.     
The Company manages its capital on the basis of net debt to equity ratio which is net debt (total borrowings net of cash 
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity.

(` in Lakh)

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Total liabiliƟes  11,962.36  13,961.19 
Less : Cash and cash equivalent  117.59  97.59 
Net debt  11,844.77  13,863.60 
Total equity  1,56,565.42  1,36,871.02 
Net debt to equity raƟo  0.08  0.10 

The Company has complied with the covenants as per the terms of the major borrowing facilities throughout the 
reporting period.    

42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A. Accounting classification and fair values

31st March, 2019 Carrying amount Total Fair value Total
FVTPL FVTOCI AmoƟzed 

Cost*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 
Bank, Cash and cash 
equivalents

 –    –    267.16  267.16 –

Non-current investments  –    –    –   
Unquoted Equity Investments 141.33 66,676.88 66,818.21 141.33 141.33
Quoted Mutual Funds 16.40  16.40   16.40 16.40

Current investments  –    –    –   
Quoted Equity Investments  5,242.50  5,242.50  5,242.50  5,242.50 

Financial Asset: Loans & Others  –    34,378.07 34,378.07  –   
Trade and other receivables  –    3,903.30  3,903.30  –   

5,258.90 141.33  1,05,225.41 1,10,625.64 5,258.90 141.33  –   5,400.23
Financial LiabiliƟes

Long term borrowings  9,794.58  9,794.58 – –
Short term borrowings  17,527.27  17,527.27 – –
Trade and other payables  8,954.19  8,954.19 – –
Other financial liabiliƟes  –    5,038.38  5,038.38  –   – –

 –    –    41,314.42  41,314.42  –    –   – –
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31st March, 2018 Carrying amount Total Fair value Total
FVTPL FVTOCI AmoƟzed 

Cost*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 
Bank, Cash and cash 
equivalents

 –    –    159.18  159.18 

Non-current investments  –    –    –   
Unquoted Equity Investments  –    87.30  61,776.22 61,863.52 87.30 87.30
Quoted Mutual Funds  40.92    –    40.92    40.92    40.92   

Current investments  –    –    –    –   
Quoted Equity Investments  7,284.25  –    –    7,284.25  7,284.25  7,284.25 

Financial Asset: Loans & Others  –    20,715.22 20,715.22  –    –   
Trade and other receivables  6,195.36  6,195.36  –   

7,325.17 87.30  88,845.98 96,258.45 7,325.17 87.30  –   7,412.47
Financial liabiliƟes 
Long term borrowings  11,024.47 11,024.47 – –
Short term borrowings  18,584.33 18,584.33 – –
Trade and other payables  12,741.48 12,741.48 – –
Other financial liabiliƟes  6,426.39  6,426.39 – –

 –    –    48,776.67 48,776.67  –    –   – –

* The carrying value and the fair value approximates.

B. Measurement of fair values

 The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.  The different 
levels have been defined below:

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

C. Valuation techniques

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

 1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities, 
short term borrowing from banks and other financial institutions and other similar items approximate their 
carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

 2) Long-term receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, 
specific country risk factors, individual credit worthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the 
financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of 
these receivables.         

 3) The fair values of the quoted instruments and mutual funds are based on price quotations at the reporting 
date. The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, obligations under 
finance leases, as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows 
using rates currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

 4) The fair values of the unquoted equity shares designated at FVTOCI hase been estimated by using the most 
recent purchase price of such shares. (level 2)   

(` in Lakh)
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43 INCOME TAX EXPENSE                                                                                                                                        (` in Lakh)

i) Income tax recognized in profit or loss
 a. Current tax expense

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Current year  11,013.86  6,678.88 
Adjustment for prior periods  (234.27)  (43.29)

 –    –   
Deferred tax expense  –    –   
OriginaƟon and reversal of temporary differences  (134.55)  1,450.52 
Total income tax expense  10,645.04  8,086.11 

ii) Income tax recognized in OCI

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair valuaƟon of Equity 
Instruments

 8.78  (9.69)

Total income tax expense relaƟng to OCI items  8.78  (9.69)

 b)  Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
AccounƟng profit before tax from conƟnuing operaƟons  32,129.82  26,873.02
AccounƟng profit before tax from disconƟnued operaƟons
AccounƟng profit before tax  32,129.82  26,873.02 
Expected Tax Rate 34.94% 34.61%
Tax using the Company’s domesƟc tax rate (Current year 34.94% and 
Previous Year 34.61%)

 11,227.45  9,300.21 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years  (234.27)  (43.29)
ExcepƟonal item not considered for tax purpose  166.68  126.08 
Expense Allowable  for tax purpose  (3,063.91)  (3,464.15)
Expense not allowed for tax purpose  2,782.53  1,756.76 
DeducƟon under Chapter VIA  (419.03)  (416.09)
Income not considered for tax purpose other than PGBP  2.02  13.39 
Income Taxable at special rate of tax  316.76  253.42 
Income Taxable at special rate of tax  1.35  133.63 
Mat Credit used  –    (1,024.38)
Other temporary differences  (134.55)  1,450.52 
EffecƟve income tax rate 33.13% 30.09%
At the effecƟve income tax rate of 18.85% (31st March, 2016: 
32.70%)
Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss  10,645.03  8,086.11 
Income tax aƩributed to disconƟnued operaƟons  –    –   
Total  10,645.04  8,086.11 
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 c)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities
  Deferred tax relates to the following:

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Accelerated depreciaƟon for tax purposes  81.86  437.81 
Expenses allowed on payment basis  (12.14)  (4.56)
DTA impact on indexaƟo of land  (28.56)  (14.64)
DTA impact on  net movement , ValuaƟon & others  (184.49)  (86.78)
MAT Credit Adjusted  –    1,128.39 
Total  (143.33)  1,460.22 

 d)  Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ Liabilities 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Opening balance as at 1st April  6,357.50  5,090.16 
Tax income/expense during the period recognized in profit or loss –  1,460.22 
MAT Credit Adjusted  –    (192.88)
Closing balance 6357.50  6,357.50 

44 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34Έ3Ή AND PARA A OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI ΈLODRΉ, 
REGULATIONS, 2015

Loan and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries, associates and others

Name of the enƟƟes 2018-19
RelaƟonship Amount 

outstanding as at 
31.03.2019

Maximum amount 
outstanding 

during the year

Investment by the 
loanee in the shares 

of the  Company
` in Lakh ` in Lakh No. of shares

Loans where there is no repayment 
schedule:
Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited Subsidiary 1,774.87 2,466.94
ParvaƟya Power Limited Subsidiary 1,712.98 2,206.23
Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon 
Limited

Subsidiary 4,897.95 4,897.95

Mosh Varaya Infrastructure Limited Others 3,474.36 4,350.55
Kamal Trading Company Others 0.10 0.10
ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited Others 17,486.14 18,183.17  1,38,78,760 
Sarda Power & Steel Limited Others 1,208.21 2,022.49
Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP Controlled 

EnƟty
517.03 1,823.63

Orient Press Limited Others 0.00 100.21
Manees Pipes Private Limited Others 566.45 800.00
Simplex Prefab Infrastructure (India) 
Pvt. Ltd.

Others 42.39 42.39

Earth Sthal & Alloys Private Limited Others 0.00 23.42
Shiv Trading Company Others 110.80 110.80
K K Vyas Others 0.28 0.28

(` in Lakh)
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Name of the enƟƟes 2018-19
RelaƟonship Amount 

outstanding as at 
31.03.2019

Maximum amount 
outstanding 

during the year

Investment by the 
loanee in the shares 

of the  Company
` in Lakh ` in Lakh No. of shares

G R Mining and LogisƟcs Private 
Limited

Others 0.00 66.02

Shabro Metallic Private Limited Others 0.00 103.68
Neha Devcon Private Limited Others 55.92 67.31
AarƟ Sponge And Power Limited Others 85.92 108.78
Subh Raipur Vyapar Vihar Developers 
LLP

Others 0.00 35.40

Aryan Infra Services Others 10.49 21.67
Arihant Infrastructure Others 21.00 65.99
Loans where there no repayment 
schedule and no interest is charged:
Natural Resources Energy Private 
Limited

Subsidiary 3.06 3.06

The above loans were given for the business acƟviƟes of the recipients and have been so uƟlized by them.

45 PREVIOUS YEAR’S FIGURES HAVE BEEN RECASTED/REGROUPED/RESTATED, WHEREVER NECESSARY TO 
MAKE THEM COMPARABLE.

(` in Lakh)

As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019
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To the Members of
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred 
to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as 
at 31st March, 2019, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, of consolidated profit/loss, consolidated changes in equity and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of the reports 
of the other auditors on seperate financial statements/consolidated financial statements and on the other Financial 
Information of the subsidiaries, associates and Jointventures, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key Audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report and Corporate Governance but does not include consolidated financial statements and our auditors report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including 
its Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

Independent
Auditor's Report
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including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of 
its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates  and  jointly  controlled  
entities  are  responsible  for  overseeing  the  financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and jointly 
controlled entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Group has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for 
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the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore key 
audit matters in our audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of eight subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 
` 2,14,059.43 Lakh as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of ` 72,433.30 Lakh, and net cash flows amounting to 
` 746.79 Lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These 
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of 
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.

(b) The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit/(loss) of (` 5.02) Lakh and the 
Group’s share of total comprehensive income/(loss) of (` 37.03) Lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associates and one joint ventures, whose 
financial statements / financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements/informations 
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) 
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the 
reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of 
the other auditors.
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(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors 
of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of 
the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in 
India is disqualified as  on 31st  March, 2019 from  being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-A.

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in with accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Act; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

 i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities– Refer Note 37 to the consolidated financial 
statements.

 ii. The Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

 iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly 
controlled companies incorporated in India.

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI Firm Regn. No.002172C)

Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Singhania
Partner

Raipur, 25th May, 2019 Membership No.076961
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended 31st March, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sarda Energy & 
Minerals Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on  Auditing,  issued  by ICAI and  
deemed  to be prescribed  under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Annexure A
to the Independent Auditor's Report
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI Firm Regn. No.002172C)

Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Singhania
Partner

Raipur, 25th May, 2019 Membership No.076961

Annexure A
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(` in Lakh)
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2019

 Note As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03.2018
ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment  1,24,887.86  1,27,499.77 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2  1,05,449.26  77,499.66 
(c) Investment Property  5,198.92  4,868.73 
(d) Other Intangible Assets  3,266.93  3,481.31 
(e) Intangible Assets under development  878.26  845.97 
(f) Investment in associates and Joint Ventures 3 2,990.62 2,859.64
(g) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 3 1,700.96 2,619.42
(ii) Other Financial Assets 4  2,914.68  3,008.30 

(h) Other Non- current Assets 5  5,111.26  7,100.33 
 2,52,398.75  2,29,783.13 

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6  43,949.14  41,125.62 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 7  16,601.08  18,592.23 
(ii)  Trade receivables 8  9,255.70  13,123.68 
(iii) Bank, Cash & cash equivalents 9  4,349.38  6,763.85 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10  149.58  61.59 
(v) Loans 11  31,254.08  20,971.85 

(c) Current tax assets (net)  -    40.92 
(d) Other Current Assets 12  8,589.92  10,798.44 

 1,14,148.88  1,11,478.18 
TOTAL ASSETS  3,66,547.63  3,41,261.31 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity  
(a) Equity Share capital 13  3,604.92  3,604.92 
(b) Other Equity  1,74,196.53  1,54,041.62 

Equity AƩributable to owners of the Company  1,77,801.45  1,57,646.54 
Non Controlling Interests  8,155.28  8,847.85 
Total Equity  1,85,956.73  1,66,494.39 

LiabiliƟes
(1) Non-current LiabiliƟes

(a) Financial LiabiliƟes
(i)  Borrowings 14  1,06,403.64  98,320.25 
(ii)  Other financial liabiliƟes 15  1,429.38  1,521.48 

(b) Deferred tax liabiliƟes (Net) 16 7,102.64 6,808.89
(c) Provisions 17  870.80  776.16 

 1,15,806.46  1,07,426.78 
(2) Current LiabiliƟes

(a) Financial LiabiliƟes
(i)  Borrowings 18  26,762.29  32,672.35 
(ii) Trade Payables

 (a)Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  287.85  -   
 (b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 

small enterprises  17,772.70  13,079.44 

(iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 19  15,691.87  16,227.74 
(b) Other current liabiliƟes 20  2,177.75  2,889.47 
(c) Provisions 21  815.95  1,079.83 
(d) Current tax liabiliƟes (net)  1,276.03  1,391.31 

 64,784.44  67,340.14 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  3,66,547.63  3,41,261.31 

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are forming integral part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019
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Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are forming integral part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)

 Note Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Year Ended 
31.03.2018

I. Revenue from operaƟons 22  2,32,388.96  2,21,658.91 
II. Other income 23  1,684.99  7,033.21 
III. Total Revenue (I + II)  2,34,073.95  2,28,692.12 
IV. Expense

Cost of materials consumed 24  1,43,061.40  1,31,509.26 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  10,094.06  15,663.31 
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

25  (3,837.64)  606.91 

Excise Duty  –    4,288.50 
Employee benefits expense 26  8,735.08  7,711.99 
Finance costs 27  9,895.62  9,668.20 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense 2  7,647.18  7,317.91 
Other expenses 28  26,109.23  21,717.24 
Total Expenses  2,01,704.93  1,98,483.32 

V. Profit before ExcepƟonal Items and Tax (III - IV)  32,369.02  30,208.80 
VI. ExcepƟonal items (Income) / Expense  –    780.00 
VII. Profit Before Tax (V - VI)  32,369.02  29,428.80 
VIII. Tax expense

(1) Current tax  11,069.45  7,250.13 
(2) Deferred tax  580.63  1,701.55 

IX. Profit for the period (VII - VIII)  20,718.94  20,477.12 
X. Add: Share of Profit of Joint Ventures & Associates  (5.82)  44.00 
XI. Profit for the period (IX - X)  20,713.12  20,521.12 
XII. Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 29

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (52.15)  28.56 
Income tax relaƟng to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 28.61  (38.13)

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  (980.16)  (663.39)
Income tax relaƟng to items that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 241.69  285.74 

XIII. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  19,951.11  20,133.90 
XIV. Net Profit /(loss) aƩributable to 

a) Owner of the Company  20,317.70  20,249.19 
b) Non Controlling Interest  395.42  271.93 

XV. Total Comprehensive income /(loss) aƩributable to 
a) Owner of the Company  19,922.23  20,080.39 
b) Non Controlling Interest  28.88  53.51 

XVI. Earnings per equity share: 30
Basic  56.36  56.01 
Diluted  56.36  56.01 
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a Equity Share Capital
For the year ended 31st March, 2018 Balance at        

April 1, 2017
Changes in equity 

share capital 
during the year

Balance at                  
March 31, 2018

 3,603.04  1.88 3604.92
For the year ended 31st March, 2019 Balance at        

April 1, 2018
Changes in equity 

share capital 
during the year

Balance at                  
March 31, 2019

 3,604.92 – 3,604.92 

b Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus OCI Foreign 

Currency 
TranslaƟon 

Reserve

Total other 
equityCapital 

Reserve
SecuriƟes 
Premium 
Reserve

Debenture 
RedempƟon 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Share opƟon 
outstanding 

account

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurements 
of the defined 
benefit plans

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income
 Balance as of April 1, 2017  842.21  19,381.55  1,043.00  16,139.75  49.80  94,781.52  74.98  108.70  (265.67) 1,32,155.84 
 Transfer to general reserve  (1,043.00)  1,043.00  -   
 Other Comprehensive Income  59.41  (228.21)  (168.80)
 ESOP OpƟon Added/(lapsed)  (49.80)  (49.80)
 AddiƟon during the year  (437.43)  21.66  453.62  37.85 
 Profit for the year  20,249.19  20,249.19 
 Changes in control   3,259.31  3,259.31 
 Dividends & Tax thereof  (1,441.97)  -    -    (1,441.97)
 Balance as of March 31, 2018  404.78  19,403.21  -   17,182.75  -   1,16,848.05  134.39  (119.51)  187.95 1,54,041.62 

 Balance as of April 1, 2018  404.78  19,403.21  -    17,182.75  -   1,16,848.05  134.39  (119.51)  187.95  1,54,041.62 
 Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - -  (60.52)  (334.95) -  (395.47)
 AddiƟon during the year  -    -   - - - - - -  881.63  881.63 
 Profit for the year - - - - -  20,317.70 - - -  20,317.70 
 Final Dividend & Tax - - - - -  (1,802.46) - - -  (1,802.46)
 Changes in control  - - - - -  1,153.51 - - -  1,153.51 
Balance as of March 31, 2019  404.78  19,403.21  -   17,182.75  -   1,36,516.80  73.87  (454.46)  1,069.58  1,74,196.53 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)

The accompanying notes are forming integral part of Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019
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 Year ended
31.03.2019

 Year ended 
31.03.2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before tax as per statement of Profit & Loss  32,369.02  29,428.80 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated by 
operaƟng acƟviƟes
DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense  7,647.18  7,317.91 
Finance Costs  9,895.62  9,668.20 
AmorƟzaƟon/(Reversal) of Employee Stock OpƟon Cost  –  (49.80)
Exchange differences on translaƟon of assets & liabiliƟes  (640.95)  (187.42)
Net (Gain)/Loss on investments pertaining to Fair valuaƟon  2,472.68  (1,339.05)
Interest Income  (3,231.74)  (2,290.51)
Dividend income  (127.80)  (278.59)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of investments  (343.00)  (29.93)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  135.35  (902.52)
Effect of exchange difference on translaƟon of subsidiaries  881.63  453.62 
Changes in assets and liabiliƟes
Trade Receivables  3,895.14  (2,561.64)
Inventories  (2,823.52)  (6,863.63)
Trade Payables  5,477.32  2,176.85 
Loans and advances and other assets  998.91  1,473.88 
LiabiliƟes and provisions  (610.20)  320.08 

55,995.64 36,336.25
Income Tax Paid  (11,384.54)  (6,286.54)
NET CASH (USED)/GENERATED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 44,611.10 30,049.71

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
(Increase)/decrease in Property, Plant and equipment including CWIP 
& Capital advances

 (31,043.85)  (26,207.28)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 266.49  1,098.24 
Investment made in Joint Venture, MFs & Others  (789.89) (4,190.67)
Investment liquidated in Joint Venture, MFs & Others 1,618.90 6,723.22
Loan repaid by/(given to) related parƟes & others  (9,067.59)  4,317.87 
Interest received  3,231.74  2,290.51 
Dividend received  127.80  278.59 
Change in non-controlling interest  (722.76) 48.60
NET CASH (USED)/GENERATED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (36,379.16)  (15,640.92)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)



140 | Annual Report 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

 Year ended
31.03.2019

 Year ended 
31.03.2018

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from fresh issue of shares –  23.55 
Proceeds from long term borrowings 16,440.62  25,916.25 
Repayment  of long term borrowings  (9,550.08)  (21,487.51)
Short term borrowings (net)  (5,769.06)  (2,201.09)
Interest Paid  (9,965.44)  (9,459.21)
Dividend & dividend tax paid  (1,802.45)  (1,441.94)
Capital Subsidy received  –  5.00 
NET CASH (USED)/GENERATED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (10,646.41)  (8,644.95)
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (2,414.47)  5,763.84 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD  6,763.85  1,000.01 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD  4,349.38  6,763.85 

Supplementary InformaƟon:
Restricted Cash Balance  149.58  61.59 
Notes:

(a) Cash and cash equivalent include the following :
Cash on Hand 33.29 32.12
Balances with banks 4,316.09 6,731.73

 4,349.38  6,763.85 
(b) Previous year figures have been recasted/restated wherever necessary
(c) Figures in brackets represented ouƞlows.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board

For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019

(` in Lakh)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
1.1 Basis of Preparation of consolidated financial statements:

 The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards(“Ind AS”), 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act”), as applicable and guidelines issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India(“SEBI”). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

1.2 Basis of Consolidation

 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise individual financial statements of Sarda Energy & Minerals 
Limited, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities as on 31st March, 2019. Control exists when 
the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated 
through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the 
entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases. 
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

i) The consolidation of accounts of the Company with its subsidiaries has been prepared in accordance with (Ind 
AS) 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries are 
combined on a line by line basis and intra group balances, intra group transactions and unrealized profits or losses 
are fully eliminated. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of 
profits and losses resulting from intra group transactions. The consolidated financial statements are prepared 
by adopting uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are 
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the parent company’s separate financial statements 
unless stated otherwise. 

 The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at year end exchange rates and all other items 
in Statement of Profit and Loss are translated at average annual rate. The resultant gains and losses are shown 
separately as Foreign Currency Translation Reserve under the head Other Equity in the consolidated financial 
statements.

 The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each 
subsidiary are eliminated.

ii) The excess of cost to the Group of its investment in subsidiaries, on the acquisition dates over and above 
the Group’s share of equity in the subsidiaries, is recognized as ‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the consolidated 
financial statements. On the other hand, where the share of equity in subsidiaries as on the date of investment 
is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognized as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head 
Other Equity in the consolidated financial statements.

iii) Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures have been accounted under the equity method as per Ind AS 28 - 
Investments in Joint Ventures.

 Under the equity method, an investment in Associates and Joint Ventures are initially recognized at cost on 
the date of the investment, and inclusive of any goodwill/capital reserve embedded in the cost, in the Balance 
Sheet. The proportionate share of the Group in the net profits / losses as also in the other comprehensive 
income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the carrying value of the investment is adjusted by 
a like amount. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is 
not tested for impairment individually.

 Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joint ventures are eliminated 
to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

iv) The Audited financial statements of the subsidiaries and the jointly controlled entities  used in the consolidation 
are drawn up to the same reporting date as of the Holding Company i.e. up to 31st March, 2019. The financial 
statement of associate has been audited up to 31st December, 2018 and the period from 1st January to 
31st March, 2019 was unaudited considered in the consolidated financial statement.

v) Non Controlling Interest’s share of profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted 
against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
vi) Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and is presented in the 

consolidated Balance Sheet separately within equity. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated 
subsidiaries consists of:

 (a)The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in a subsidiary 
is made; and

 (b)The non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship 
came into existence

1.3 Other significant accounting policies

i) Land-Right to use will be amortized over a period of 35 years from the date of commercial operation of the 
project in line with CERC Tariff Regulations notified for tariff fixation.

ii) Service Concession Agreement

 Specific Hydro Power Project of the Group recognizes an intangible asset arising from Service concession 
agreements to the extent it has a right to charge for use of concession infrastructure as per Appendix A of IND 
AS 11. Such intangible asset is measured at cost less any accumulated amortization. 

iii) Revenue- Service Concession Arrangements

 Revenue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized 
based on the stage of completion of the work performed. Operation or service revenue is recognized in the 
period the services are rendered by the group.

iv) Free of Cost Materials issued to the Contractor

 Materials for the purpose of being used in specific Hydro Power project of the Group are recognized at purchase 
cost by the Company. Since they are to be used in the project construction, they are immediately issued at cost 
to Contractor. Therefore no materials stock is separately disclosed in the Financial statements on the reporting 
date, as their cost forms part of the carrying value of Capital Work in Progress as soon as they are procured 
and issued. Materials issued to the Contractor and lying with it are reconciled periodically and differences 
identified, if any, are recovered from the Contractor or recognized appropriately according to the nature of 
difference and as per contractual obligations.

 The rest of the Accounting Policies followed by the Group are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as 
given in the Parent Company’s standalone financial statements.
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2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross Block DepreciaƟon  Net Block 
As on 

01.04.2018
AddiƟon 

during the 
year

Transfer 
/ Sale / 

Adjustment

As on 
31.03.2019

Up to 
01.04.2018

DepreciaƟon 
for the year

Transfer /
Adjustment

As on 
31.03.2019

 As on 
31.03.2019

As on 
31.03.2018

Freehold Land  2,852.51  75.32  24.82  2,903.01  –    –    –    2,903.01  2,852.51 
Leasehold Land  1,036.63  –    –    1,036.63  34.31  12.09  (1.82)  48.22  988.41  1,002.32 
Building  25,628.50  1,115.11  271.96  26,471.65  3,794.61  1,166.21  8.58  4,952.24  21,519.41  21,833.89 
Plant & Machinery 1,16,991.83  4,141.71  646.02 1,20,487.52  16,265.10  5,983.79  186.89  22,062.00  98,425.52 1,00,726.73 
Furniture, Fixture & 
Equipment

 734.62  112.75  1.55  845.82  359.57  136.46  1.29  494.74  351.08  375.05 

Vehicles  1,061.72  261.32  115.06  1,207.98  352.45  237.74  82.64  507.55  700.43  709.27 
Total 1,48,305.81  5,706.21  1,059.41 1,52,952.61  20,806.04  7,536.29  277.58  28,064.75 1,24,887.86 1,27,499.77 
DepreciaƟon taken to 
PreoperaƟve Expenses

 37.77 

Net DepreciaƟon during 
the year 

 7,498.52 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Freehold Land-IF  3,949.95  66.26  (24.82)  4,041.03  –    –    –    –    4,041.03  3,949.95 
 Building - IP  971.63  –    (268.53)  1,240.16  52.86  21.41  (8.00)  82.27  1,157.89  918.78 
Total  4,921.58  66.26  (293.35)  5,281.19  52.86  21.41  (8.00)  82.27  5,198.92  4,868.73 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Goodwill  131.25  –    131.25  –    –    –    –    –    –    131.25 
 Computer SoŌware  186.62  0.92  –    187.54  85.07  24.81  –    109.88  77.66  101.55 
 Minig Rights & 
Development 

 308.42  –    –    308.42  55.80  18.60  –    74.40  234.02  252.62 

 Rights to use land  3,239.05  43.20  –    3,282.25  243.16  83.84  –    327.00  2,955.25  2,995.89 
Total  3,865.34  44.12  131.25  3,778.21  384.03  127.25  –    511.28  3,266.93  3,481.31 

2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross Block DepreciaƟon  Net Block 
 As on 

01.04.2017 
 AddiƟon 

during the 
year 

 Transfer 
/ Sale / 

Adjustment 

 As on 
31.03.2018 

 Up to 
01.04.2017 

 DepreciaƟon 
for the year 

 Transfer /
Adjustment 

 As on 
31.03.2018 

 As on 
31.03.2018 

 As on 
31.03.2017 

Freehold Land  2,852.51  -    -    2,852.51  -    -    -    -    2,852.51  2,852.51 
Leasehold Land  980.95  55.68  -    1,036.63  21.36  12.95  -    34.31  1,002.32  974.39 
Building  23,287.02  2,341.48  -    25,628.50  2,653.51  1,141.10  -    3,794.61  21,833.89  20,631.31 
Plant & Machinery  95,758.79  21,738.53  505.49  116,991.83  10,804.11  5,817.93  356.94  16,265.10 1,00,726.73  84,941.08 
Furniture, Fixture & 
Equipment

 537.46  200.56  3.40  734.62  282.31  78.19  0.93  359.57  375.05  255.15 

Vehicles  585.23  548.37  71.88  1,061.72  262.21  142.95  52.71  352.45  709.27  323.02 
 124,001.96  24,884.62  580.77  148,305.81  14,023.50  7,193.12  410.58  20,806.04  127,499.77  109,977.46 

DepreciaƟon taken to 
PreoperaƟve Expenses

 20.50 

Net DepreciaƟon during 
the year 

 7,172.62 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)

2 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd.)

Gross Block DepreciaƟon  Net Block 
 As on 

01.04.2017 
 AddiƟon 

during the 
year 

 Transfer 
/ Sale / 

Adjustment 

 As on 
31.03.2018 

 Up to 
01.04.2017 

 DepreciaƟon 
for the year 

 Transfer /
Adjustment 

 As on 
31.03.2018 

 As on 
31.03.2018 

 As on 
31.03.2017 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Freehold Land-IF  3,346.90  644.87  41.82  3,949.95  -    -    -    -    3,949.95  3,346.90 
 Building - IP  971.63  -    -    971.63  35.61  17.37  0.12  52.86  918.78  936.02 
Total  4,318.53  644.87  41.82  4,921.58  35.61  17.37  0.12  52.86  4,868.73  4,282.93 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Goodwill  383.03  0.11  251.89  131.25  -    -    -    -    131.25  383.03 
 Computer SoŌware  116.21  70.41  -    186.62  57.90  27.17  -    85.07  101.55  58.31 
 Minig Rights & 
Development 

 308.42  -    -    308.42  37.20  18.60  -    55.80  252.62  271.22 

 Rights to use land  3,239.05  -    -    3,239.05  149.86  82.15  (11.15)  243.16  2,995.89  3,089.19 
Total  4,046.71  70.52  251.89  3,865.34  244.96  127.92  (11.15)  384.03  3,481.31  3,801.75 

3 NON CURRENT ASSETS - FINANCIAL ASSET - INVESTMENTS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                   

(a) Investment in Joint Ventures and Associates
Using equity method  2,990.62  2,859.64 

(b) Carried at FVTOCI 
Investments in other companies in Unquoted Equity Instruments  1,684.56  2,578.50 

(c) Carried at FVTPL
Investment in Mutual Fund  16.40  40.92 
1,49,990 units (P.Y.3,99,980 units) of KBC Mutual Fund

 4,691.58  5,479.06

4 NON CURRENT ASSETS - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                   

(a) Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good  2,058.79  2,151.10 

(b) Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Other advances  855.89  857.20 

 2,914.68  3,008.30 
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5 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                       

(a) Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good  2,650.04  4,917.17 

(b) Advances other than capital advances
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Security Deposits  13.89  314.67 
Unsecured, considered good
(ii) Other loans and advances  1,290.22  704.27 
Prepaid expenses  1,157.11  1,164.22 

 5,111.26  7,100.33 

6 INVENTORIES (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                        

(a) Raw Material  21,219.63  22,652.83 
(b) Finished / semi finished goods  19,371.84  14,818.84 
(c) Stock-in-Trade  4.13  719.48 
(d) Stores and spares  3,353.54  2,525.24 
(e) Material in Transit  –    409.23 

 43,949.14  41,125.62 

7 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ INVESTMENTS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                         

Carried at FVTPL
(i) Investments in Equity Instruments in other Companies (quoted) 5,542.50 7,284.25
(ii) Investment held for trading 11,358.58 11,307.98 

 16,601.08  18,592.23 

8 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                         

Trade receivables considered good - Secured  1,369.12  4,075.06 
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured  7,825.93  9,048.63 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  316.71  252.41 
Trade receivable - credit impaired  14.86  36.00 
Less: Provision for trade receivables considered good which have 
significant credit risk and credit impaired

 (270.92)  (288.42)

 9,255.70  13,123.68 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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9 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ BANK, CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Balances with banks
In current accounts  1,173.36  1,056.97 
FDR with Bank (Bank Deposits with original maturity up to 3 
months)

 2,442.14  1,013.02 

Liquid Mutual Fund Investment  700.59  4,661.74 
Cash on hand  33.29  32.12 

 4,349.38  6,763.85 

10 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ OTHER BANK BALANCES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Unpaid dividend  149.58  61.59 
 149.58  61.59 

11 CURRENT ASSETS ͳ FINANCIAL ASSETS ͳ LOANS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Loans and advances to related parties
Considered good - Unsecured 17,506.92  8,939.43 

(b) Other loans 
Unsecured,considered good
(i) Earnest money deposit  197.62  510.96 
(ii) Loans to employees  23.89  23.57 
(iii) Loans and advances to other parties 11,076.79  10,576.69 
(iv) Claims & recoverables  2,448.86  921.20 

 31,254.08  20,971.85 

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Advances other than capital advances
(a) Other Advances

Unsecured,considered good
(i) Employee Advance  3.61  4.52 
(ii) Advances to vendors  6,054.54  7,895.14 
(iii) Advance royalty paid  341.44  38.54 
(iv)Prepaid expenses  375.58  300.88 
(v) Balances with tax authorities  1,800.64  1,368.87 
(vi) Others  14.11  1,190.49 

 8,589.92  10,798.44 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                        

 No.  ` in lakh  No.  ` in lakh 
A Authorized

Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  5,00,00,000  5,000.00  5,00,00,000  5,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,49,235  3,604.92 

 3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,49,235  3,604.92 

B. Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 
are as given below:

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

 No.  ` in lakh  No.  ` in lakh 
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period  3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,30,398  3,603.04 
Add: Increased during the year  –    –    18,837  1.88 
Less: Decreased during the year  –    –    –    –   
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period  3,60,49,235  3,604.92  3,60,49,235  3,604.92 

C Terms/rights attached to equity shares

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 
to receive the sales proceeds of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferential 
amounts. The distribution shall be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

D Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                        

Name of the shareholder Number 
of shares 

 % Number 
of shares 

 % 

Chhatisgarh Investments Limited  1,38,78,760 38.50%  1,37,88,760 38.25%
Sarda Agriculture & Properties Private Limited  26,35,150 7.31%  26,35,150 7.31%

14 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ BORROWINGS

Non-Current 
portion

 Current Maturities 

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
` ` ` `

Term loans (Secured)
from banks 

Indian Rupee Loan 56,228.81 61,411.72 6,354.36  7,558.62 
from other parties

Indian rupee loan from Financial institutions  50,151.50  36,873.78  –    –   
Hire purchase loans  23.33  34.75  11.42  –   

 1,06,403.64  98,320.25  6,365.78  7,558.62 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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15 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Security Deposit Received
Deposits from Vendors 1,171.56 1,269.48
Other payables 257.82 252.00

 1,429.38  1,521.48 

16 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES ΈNETΉ

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred tax liability / (assets) at the beginning of the year 6,808.84 5,567.21
Deferred tax liability / (assets) during the year on account of timing 
difference & unabsorbed depreciation

600.38 293.86

Deferred Tax MAT Credit (306.63) 947.82
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / ASSETS at the end of the year  7,102.64  6,808.89 

17 PROVISIONS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Provision for employee benefits
      Provision for Leave encashment 486.99 395.38
(b) Others 
      Statutory liabilities 9.81 6.78
      Site restoration expenses 374.00 374.00

 870.80  776.16 

18 CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ BORROWINGS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Secured
From Banks (Secured)
Short term loans 1,683.98  818.82 
Working capital loans (repayable on demand) 16,898.76  8,730.91 
Working capital Buyers Credit loans  2,879.55  18,848.99 

 21,462.29  28,398.72 
From Banks and Financial Institutions (Unsecured)
From banks 2,000.00 2,273.13
From Others 3,300.00 2,000.00
Other loans and advances 
Loans from Other Parties  –    0.50 

 5,300.00  4,273.63 
 26,762.29  32,672.35 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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19 CURRENT LIABILITIES ͳ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ͳ OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Current maturities of long term debt 6,365.78 7,558.62
(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1,647.20 1,493.21
(c) Deposits from customers 410.22 454.41
(d) Expenses payable 4,771.84 2,197.62
(e) Salary & reimbursements 1,526.49 1,211.34
(f) Bill discounting (backed by LCs) 703.91 2,517.16
(g) INR payable to bank in forex account-on Financial Instruments at FVTPL-Level 1 – 2.55
(h) Unpaid Dividends 149.58 61.59
(i) Others 116.85 731.24

 15,691.87  16,227.74 

20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

(a) Others -
Indirect taxes payable 1,125.63 531.37
Others 16.52  70.32 

(b) Deposit from Employees 125.39  91.76 
(c) Advances from customers 695.10  1,960.54 
(d) TDS payables 165.26  179.21 
(e) Open access UI charges payable  24.10  56.27 
(f) Other expenses payable  25.75  –   

 2,177.75  2,889.47 

21 PROVISIONS

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018                          

Provision for employee benefits
(a) Provision for gratuity 236.27 193.98
(b) Provision for Leave 39.18 36.84
Provision for expenses 540.50 849.01

 815.95  1,079.83 

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

2018-19 2017-18
Sale of products

Sponge Iron  28,475.90 26,082.96
Ferro Alloys  94,321.20 1,05,324.98
Steel Billets  11,053.08 5,596.84
Wire Rod / HB Wire  45,314.17 38,191.46
Pellet  28,721.68 20,830.09
Power  11,726.93 9,035.37
Others  9,742.04 14,438.47

Other operating revenues  3,033.96  2,158.74 
Revenue from Operations (Gross)  2,32,388.96  2,21,658.91 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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(` in Lakh)

23 OTHER INCOME

2018-19 2017-18
Interest Income 3,231.74 2,290.51
Dividend Income

From Others 127.80 278.59
Net gain on sale of investments 343.00 222.86
Fair value gain on Financial Instruments at FVTPL  (2,460.16) 1,339.05
Other non-operating income
(net of expenses directly attributable to such income)

442.61 2,902.20

 1,684.99  7,033.21 

24 COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

2018-19 2017-18
Iron Ore  29,643.05 18,787.66
Mn Ore  33,588.95 40,903.89
Coal  59,329.16 56,414.56
Scrap  6,813.28 5,100.92
Other Material  13,686.96 10,302.23

 1,43,061.40  1,31,509.26 

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, SEMIͳFINISHED GOODS AND STOCKͳINͳTRADE

2018-19 2017-18
Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods / Semi-finished goods 19,371.84 14,818.84
Trading Goods  4.12 719.48

 19,375.96  15,538.32 
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods / Semi-finished goods  14,818.84  16,145.23 
Trading Goods  719.48  –   

 15,538.32  16,145.23 
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories  3,837.64  (606.91)

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

2018-19 2017-18
Salaries, incentives & Managerial Remuneration 7,949.03 7,001.51
Contributions to -

Provident fund 381.97 351.52
Superannuation scheme 18.30 17.24
Gratuity fund 169.59 148.19

Staff welfare expenses 216.19 193.53
 8,735.08  7,711.99 
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27 FINANCE COSTS

2018-19 2017-18
Interest expense 8,530.16 8,256.54
Other borrowing costs 992.70 1,319.64
Amortization of ancillary borrowing cost 77.50
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to 
borrowing costs

295.26 92.02

 9,895.62  9,668.20 

28 OTHER EXPENSES

2018-19 2017-18
Stores & Spares Consumption 7,076.09 5,895.50
Power 814.60 1,195.53
Manufacturing Expenses-
  Plant process & services 2,327.45 2,201.47
  Material handling Expenses 3,590.01 2,852.29
  Other Manufacturing Expenses 31.36 49.42
Increase/ (Decrease) of excise duty on inventory  –    (1,166.03)
Repairs & Maintenance

Building 376.32 163.37
Plant & Machinery 1,063.22 1,037.84
Others 793.87 488.38

Rent 235.37 261.06
Rates & Taxes 1,588.99 1,700.51
Insurance Charges 356.55 374.07
Miscellaneous Expenses
  Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 622.87 619.80
  Legal & Professional Expenses 1,294.87 895.52
  Administrative Expenses 1,124.24 677.49
Other Expenses 499.40 1,098.44
Selling Expenses
  Carriage Outward 2,606.10 2,369.00
  Selling Commission & Brokerage 415.88 435.26
  Other Selling Expenses 213.08 710.93
Exchange differences (net) 1,031.56  (185.73)
Payment to Auditors 47.40 43.12

 26,109.23  21,717.24 

29 PARTICULARS

2018-19 2017-18
  (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  (52.15)  28.56 
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  28.61  (38.13)

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair value of investment  (941.76)  (733.21)
Share of other comprehensive income in associates & joint ventures 
to the extent to the classified into profit or loss

 (38.40)  69.82 

Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 241.69  285.74 
Total Other Comprehensive Income  (762.01)  (387.22)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)



152 | Annual Report 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE ΈEPSΉ

2018-19 2017-18
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to 
Equity Shareholders (` in Lakh)

 20,317.70  20,249.19 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (`)  10  10 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 
calculating basic EPS

 360.49  360.49 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 
calculating Diluted EPS

 360.49  360.49 

Basic  56.36  56.01 
Diluted  56.36  56.01 

31 SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information has been prepared in confirmity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting 
the financial statements of the Company.      
As part of secondary reporting, the Company has no geographical segment by location.
A) Business Segment Primary

(` in Lakh)

2018-19 2017-18
Steel Ferro Power Total Steel Ferro Power Total

Revenue
Sales & other income  1,14,796.32  1,04,980.33  11,830.55  2,31,607.20  92,337.28  92,656.84  35,706.97  2,20,701.09 
Inter segment sales  1,225.92  35,652.61  36,878.53  1,086.70  30,927.29  32,013.99 
Others Unallocated  781.76  957.82 
Less: Inter segment sales  1,225.92  35,652.61  36,878.53  1,086.70  30,927.29  32,013.99 
Total Revenue  1,14,796.32  1,04,980.33  11,830.55  2,32,388.96  92,337.28  92,656.84  35,706.97  2,21,658.91
Result
Segment Result  34,976.18  11,692.41  2,432.21  49,100.80  23,369.06  15,251.35  307.31  38,927.72 
Unallocated Expenses net off 
unallocated income

(5,803.50) (434.95)

OperaƟng Profit  43,297.30  38,492.77 
Interest & Forex FluctuaƟon Loss (Net) (10,928.28) (9,063.97)
Profit Before Tax & 
Extraordinary Item

 32,369.02  29,428.80 

Provision for taxaƟon
For Current Year (11,069.45) (7,250.13)
For Deferred TaxaƟon (580.63) (1,701.55)
Profit AŌer TaxaƟon  20,718.94  20,477.12 
Other InformaƟon
Segment Assets  70,265.68  52,166.58  1,12,499.92  2,34,932.18  65,685.75  58,687.89  1,02,620.07  2,26,993.71 
Unallocated Assets  1,31,615.45  1,14,267.60 
Total Assets  3,66,547.63  3,41,261.31 
Segment LiabiliƟes  14,530.15  7,202.22  94,113.81  1,15,846.18  12,126.84  13,532.26  53,269.87  78,928.97 
Unallocated LiabiliƟes  64,744.72  95,837.95 
Total LiabiliƟes  1,80,590.90  1,74,766.92 
Capital Expenditure  2,261.73  1,377.87  28,431.30  32,070.90  2,641.83  283.69  20,553.04  23,478.56 
Unallocated Capital Expenditure  20.79 (143.35)
DepreciaƟon / AmorƟzaƟon  2,764.46  1,211.75  2,791.54  6,767.75  3,234.44  1,232.38  2,213.62  6,680.44 
Unallocated DepreciaƟon  879.44 637.47 
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(` in Lakh)

32 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The financial statements of the following subsidiaries have been considered in consolidation:

Name of  Subsidiaries Country of Origin ProporƟon of ownership interest
As at 31st March (%)

2019 2018
Sarda Energy & Minerals Hong Kong Limited HongKong 100.00 100.00
Sarda Global Ventures Pte Limited Singapore 100.00 100.00
Sarda Global Trading DMCC, Dubai Dubai 100.00 –
Sarda Metals and Alloys Limited India 100.00 100.00
Sarda Energy Limited India 100.00 100.00
Chhaƫsgarh Hydro Power LLP India 60.00 60.00
ParvaƟya Power Limited India 51.00 51.00
Madhya Bharat Power CorporaƟon Limited India 79.68 77.96
Shri Ram Electricity LLP India 51.00 51.00
Sarda Hydro Power LLP India 60.00 60.00
Raipur Fabritech Private Limited* India – 52.38
Raipur Industrial Gases Private Limited* India – 51.00
Natural Resources Energy Private Limited India 100.00 100.00

* under strike off.

33 ΈAΉ INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The financial statements of the following Joint Ventures have been considered in consolidation:

Name of the Company Country of Origin ProporƟon of ownership interest
As at 31st March (%)

2019 2018
Raipur Infrastructure Company  Limited India 33.33% 33.33%
Madanpur South Coal Company Limited India 20.13% 20.13%

33 ΈBΉ INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The financial statements of the following Associate has been considered in consolidation:

Name of the Company Country of Origin ProporƟon of ownership interest
As at 31st March (%)

2019 2018
PT. Tigadaya Minergy Indonesia 49.00% 49.00%

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
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34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

a) Names of related parƟes and descripƟon of relaƟonship

S.No. RelaƟonship Name of Related ParƟes
1. Related Enterprises where significant influence exist ChhaƟsgarh Investments Limited

GeschaŌ Formulae India Private Limited (Formerly known 
as Sarda SoluƟon and Technologies Private Limited)
Goldenlife Financial Services Private Limited
Rishabh Mining & Transport Company Private Limited
Sarda Dairy & Food Products Limited
Jai Balaji Enterprises
Vikas Associates
Kashmirilal ConstrucƟons Private Limited
Apex Equipment Private Limited
R. R. Sarda  & Co
Chhaƫsgarh Metaliks & Alloys Private Limited
Earth Stahl Alloys Private Limited

2. Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Kamal Kishore Sarda
Mr. Pankaj Sarda
Mrs. Uma Sarda
Mr. Padam Kumar Jain
Mr. Prabhakar Ram Tripathi
Mr. Gajinder Singh Sahni
Mr. Jitender Balakrishnan
Mr. C.K. Lakshminarayanan
Mr. Asit Kumar Basu
Mr. Rakesh Mehra
Mr. Manish Sethi
Mr.Kashmirilal Agarwal
Mr. Manish Sarda
Mr. Neeraj Sarda
Mrs. Sonal Sarda
Mr. Gaurav Thakkar
Mr. P. S. DuƩagupta
Ms. Shilpa Rathod
Mr. Gaurishankar Patra (POWER FIN. COP. LTD )
Mrs. Vipula Sarda
Mr.Praharsh Agarwal 
Mr. Sanjay Sabat
Mr. Dinesh Kumar LahoƟ
Mr. MarƟn Victor ALVA 

3. RelaƟves of KMP’s Mrs. Veena Sarda
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Khator
Mr. Satya Narayan Khator
Mr. Anant Sarda
Miss. Niharika Jain
Mr. Vikas Agarwal

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
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b) Material Transactions with Related Parties 

Related Enterprises 
where significant 
influence exists

Key Management 
Personnel

RelaƟves of Key 
Management 

Personnel
RemuneraƟon  -    1,161.04  17.79 

 -    (942.98)  (7.84)
Rent Paid  148.27  -    2.48 

 (165.83)  -    (2.40)
Loans Granted  24,840.50  -    -   

 (26,959.80)  -    -   
Loans Received Back  15,166.67  -    -   

 (27,874.96)  -    -   
Loans Taken  -    -    -   

 (0.62)  -    -   
Loans Repaid  -    -    -   

 (450.12)  -    -   
Interest Paid  0.12  -    1.44 

 (41.77)  -    (1.44)
Interest Received  1,523.01  -    -   

 (391.13)  -    -   
Sale of Goods  192.88  -    -   

 (1,172.24)  (1.33)  -   
Purchase of Goods  1,994.82  -    -   

 (1,211.56)  -    -   
Services Received  275.44  -    -   

 (199.36)  -    -   
Commission Paid  -    -    14.08 

 -    -    (8.30)
Investment made  47.83  -    -   

 (1,865.00)  -    -   
Outstanding as on 31st March
Receivables  53.76  0.61  -   

 (401.44)  (3.61)  (0.09)
Loans Receivable  18,126.61  -    -   

 (7,082.07)  -    -   
Loans Payable  -    -    -   

 -    (1.50)  -   
Payables  166.58  464.31  23.02 

 (157.38)  (312.56)  (20.59)

35 COMMITMENTS

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account for the Group, net of advance given 
and not provided for as at 31st March, 2019 is ` 14,862.98 lakh (31st March, 2018: ` 22,638.29 lakh).

b. Parent Company has commitments of AED 8,00,000 (equivalent to INR 150.96 lakh) as at 31st March, 2019 (31st 
March, 2018: ` 36.40 lakh) towards equity contribution in wholly owned subsidiary, Ms Sarda Global Trading 
DMCC and ` NIL as at 31st March, 2019 (31st March, 2018: ` 1,092.73 lakh) in Madhya Bharat Power Corporation 
Limited.     

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
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36 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

i) Income tax recognized in profit or loss

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
a) Current tax expense

Current year  11,303.72  7,293.42 
Adjustment for prior periods  (234.27)  (43.29)

 -    -   
Deferred tax expense  -    -   
OriginaƟon and reversal of temporary differences  580.63  1,701.55 
Total income tax expense  11,650.08  8,951.68 

ii) Income tax recognized in OCI

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
That will not be reclassified to profit or loss  28.61  (38.13)
That will be reclassified to profit or loss  241.69  285.74 
Total income tax expense relaƟng to OCI items  270.30  247.61 

 b)  Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
AccounƟng profit before tax from conƟnuing operaƟons  32,369.02  26,873.01 
AccounƟng profit before tax  32,369.02  26,873.01 
Expected Tax Rate 34.94% 34.61%
Tax using the Company’s domesƟc tax rate (Current year 34.94% and 
Previous Year 34.61%)

 11,311.03  9,300.21 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years  (234.27)  (43.29)
ExcepƟonal item not considered for tax purpose  166.68  126.08 
Expense Allowable  for tax purpose  (3,374.56)  (2,748.52)
Expense not allowed for tax purpose  2,717.07  1,756.76 
DeducƟon under Chapter VIA  232.01  (757.66)
Income not considered for tax purpose other than PGBP  2.03  13.40 
Effect of different overseas rates  251.65  493.90 
Income Taxable at special rate of tax  1.35  133.63 
Mat Credit used  (3.54)  (1,024.38)
Other temporary differences  580.63  1,701.55 
EffecƟve income tax rate 35.99% 33.31%
Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss  11,650.08  8,951.68 

 11,650.08  8,951.68 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)



Annual Report 2018-19|157 

Company Overview Statutory Report Financial Section

 c)  Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ Liabilities 
  Deferred tax relates to the following:

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Opening balance as at 1st April  6,808.89  5,567.21 
Accelerated depreciaƟon for tax purposes  1,630.16  1,218.53 
Expenses allowed on payment basis  (17.23)  (9.31)
DTA impact on IndexaƟon of land  (56.69)  (14.64)
DTA impact on  net movement , ValuaƟon & others  (955.85)  (900.72)
MAT Credit Adjusted  (306.63)  947.82 
Closing balance as at 31st March  7,102.65  6,808.89 

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Guarantees given by group’s bankers  4,036.32  5,501.93 
Guarantees given to DGFT on behalf of wholly owned subsidiary for 
meeƟng export obligaƟon

 98.88  98.88 

Guarantees given to Assistant Commissioner of Customs on behalf of 
wholly owned subsidiary

 151.12  221.33 

Bills discounted with the group’s bankers under LeƩers of Credit  703.91  1,972.13 
Claims against the group not acknowledged as debt & disputed in appeals  6,805.20  5,099.01 
Excise Duty & Service Tax Demand  1,644.90  1,720.63 
VAT, CST & Entry Tax  1,085.46  724.42 
Income Tax  176.59  174.08 
Electricity Duty  883.73  776.94 
Energy Development Cess  6,079.20  5,543.80 

 21,665.31  21,833.15 

i) Guarantee given to Director General of Foreign Trade ` 98.88 lakh (P.Y. `98.88 lakh) and Assistant Commissioner of 
Customs ` 151.12 Lakh (P.Y. ` 221.33 Lakh) on behalf of Sarda Metal & Alloys Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of 
the Company for fulfillment of Export Obligation against import of capital goods under Export Promotion Capital 
Goods Scheme.

ii) Claim against the group not acknowledged as debt comprises of:

 a. Suspension and damages claimed from Madhya Bharat Power Corporation Limited by erstwhile Electro 
Mechanical Contractor M/s. Voith Hydro Private Limited which is presently under arbitration and idle time 
claimed by main Civil Contractor M/s. SEW Infrastructures Limited which is presently under litigation in High 
Court amounting to ` 5,739.21 Lakh (P.Y.` 3,986.87 Lakh) as on the Balance Sheet date. However, the Company 
has given advance to the M/s. Voith Hydro Private Limited which has been reduced from the gross claim 
amount in pursuance of Contractual terms and the Company is contesting the demand by counter claim on 
M/s. SEW Infrastructures Limited for breach of settlement agreement. 

 b. Commercial Tax demand from Sarda Metals & Alloys Limited for ` 423.61 Lakh (PY `423.61 Lakh) on account 
of disallowance of Input Tax credit of ` 338.88 Lakh  on equipments of Power Plant and Penalty of ` 84.72 
Lakh. The company has filed appeal challenging disallowance of input tax credit with Appellate Tribunal. The 
Company has filed a writ petition for stay of recovery proceedings of penalty with the Hon’ble High court of AP.

 c. Besides this disputed claims of ` 642.39 Lakh (P.Y. ` 688.54 Lakh) are pending in various courts of law.
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iii) Excise Duty & Service Tax 

 a. Excise duty demand of ` 21.62 lakh (P.Y. ` 20.57 Lakh)  raised  on account of Cenvat credit availed, which  the  
Company  has  disputed  in  High  Court, Jabalpur (MP).

 b. `NIL (P.Y. `6.97 Lakh) on account of duty on VAT Collected by the Company against which the Company has 
filed an appeal before the High Court, Bilaspur (CG).

 c. Excise Duty demand of ` NIL (P.Y. ` 54.78 Lakh) raised on account of Cenvat credit availed which the Company 
has disputed and has filed appeal before the Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT).

 d. Excise Duty demand of ` NIL (P.Y. ` 13.99 lakh) raised on account of Cenvat credit availed has been disputed 
before Commissioner (Appeals), Raipur.

 e. Excise Duty demand of ` 7.62 Lakh (P.Y. ` 7.62 lakh) raised on account of Cenvat credit availed has been 
disputed before Commissioner (Appeals), Raipur.

 f. Service Tax demand of ` 1,616.70 lakh (P.Y. ` 1,616.70) raised on account of Service Tax on amount received 
in an internation arbitration case settled out of court, which the Company has disputed and has filed appeal 
before Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT).

iv) Value Added Tax/Central Sales Tax/Entry Tax   

 Value Added Tax/Central Sales Tax/ Entry Tax demands of ` 1,085.46 Lakh (P.Y. ` 724.42 Lakh) are pending in appeal 
against assessment of various years.

v) Income Tax

 a During  the financial  year 2014-15, Income tax department has conducted a search operation U/s 132 of 
Income Tax Act, 1961, covering the block periods from AY 2009-10 to 2014-15. The assessment has been 
completed by the tax authorities and a demand has been raised for the A.Y. 2012-13 for ` 86.57 lakh on 
account of disallowance of expedniture and addition of Forex gain. For Assessment year 2015-16 addition of 
` 796.95 Lakh has been made on account of discrepancies in stocks and demand has been rasied for ` 87.51 
Lakh after adjustment of advance tax. The Company has filed appeals with Commisioner Appeals for both the 
assessment years which is pending.

 b During the financial year 2018-19, income tax department raised demand of ` 2.50 Lakh u/s 143(3) (i.e. 
Scrutiny Assessment for the AY 2016-17) on account of additions made of ` 9.26 Lakh towards disallowance of 
expenditure. The Company has already filed rectification application under section 154 of the IT Act.

vi) Electricity Duty ` 883.73 Lakh (P.Y. ` 776.94 Lakh) for the period from January, 2013 to March, 2017 for sale 
of Electricity. The Company has sought legal opinion from experts and has been advised that the same is not 
applicable to the Company and hence no liability provided.

vii) Energy Development Cess of ` 6,079.20 lakh (P.Y. ` 5,543.80 lakh) net of amount deposited ` 294.34 lakh (P.Y. ` 
294.34 Lakh) demanded by the Chief Electrical Inspector, Govt. of Chhattisgarh for the period May 2006 to January 
2017. The Honorable High Court of Chhattisgarh has held the levy of Energy Development Cess as unconstitutional 
vide its Order dated 20th June, 2008. The State Govt. has filed a Special Leave Petition before the Honorable 
Supreme Court. 

viii) Bank Guarantee of ` 500.00 lakh (P.Y. ` 500.00 lakh) given as security deposit against contract for disposal of 
old power project awarded to the Company was invoked by Ms/. West Bengal Power Development Corporation 
Limited. The Company has challenged the wrongful invocation in the High court of Kolkata. WBPDCL has on the 
orders of the Hon’ble High Court deposited the amount of bank guarantee with the Court. The Company has been 
legally advised that it has a strong case in its favour, hence no liability provided. 

38 CONTINGENT ASSETS

i) Group has various pending insurance claims in lieu of machine break down adding up to ` 190.16 lakh as on 31st 
March, 2019.  

ii) Consequent to the deallocation of the coal block Gare Palma IV/7, the Company had filed a writ petition before 
the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi challenging the compensation amount and exclusion of washary from the mine 
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infrastructure.  Following the order of Hon’ble High Court of Delhi dated 09.03.2017, Ministry of Coal, Govt. of India 
had asked for resubmitting the compenasation claim. Accordingly the Company has resubmitted compensation 
claim of ` 17,651.85 lakh. This includes compensation of ` 2,641.44 lakh already received by the Company in FY 
2016-17. This matter is still pending with Ministry of Coal, Govt. of India.   

iii) Group has filed counter claims on the former E&M contractor and former civil contractor, for refund of advance 
and milestone payments of ` 2,200 and ` 1,354.48 lakh respectively, made to them due to non-performance of 
the contract Arbitration case in on-going with the civil contractor. The amount claimed from civil contractor is 
excluding interest @8% claimed from 11.12.2013 till the date of payment.

39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabiliƟes comprise of loans and borrowings in foreign as well as domesƟc currency, 
trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabiliƟes is to finance the Group’s operaƟons. 
The Group’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term 
deposits that derive directly from its operaƟons. The Group companies also enter into derivaƟve contracts.

The Group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
Market Risk-
- Interest rate risk
- Currency risk 
- Price risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. This note presents informaƟon about the risks associated with its financial instruments, the Group’s 
objecƟves, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital.
CREDIT RISK
The Group is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparƟes’ non performance or default on their 
obligaƟons. The Group’s exposure to credit risk primarily relates to investments, accounts receivable and cash and cash 
equivalents. The Group monitors and limits its exposure to credit risk on a conƟnuous basis. The Group’s credit risk 
associated with accounts receivable is primarily related to party not able to seƩle their obligaƟon as agreed. To manage 
this the Group periodically reviews the financial reliability of its customers, taking into account the financial condiƟon, 
current economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables.
Trade receivables 
Trade receivables represent the most significant exposure to credit risk and are stated aŌer an allowance for impairment 
and expected credit loss.
Loans and Advances
Financial assets in the form of loans and advances are wriƩen off when there is no reasonable expectaƟons of recovery. 
Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss. The Group measures 
the expected credit loss of dues based on historical trend, industry pracƟces and the business environment in which 
the enƟty operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on historical data, loss 
on collecƟon of dues is not material hence no addiƟonal provisions considered.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits which are readily converƟble to cash. These are subject 
to insignificant risk of change in value or credit risk.
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The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporƟng date was: 

(` in Lakh)

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Trade and other receivables  9,256  13,124 
Loans and advances  34,169  23,980 
Bank, cash and cash equivalents  4,349  6,764 

Impairment losses

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Trade and other receivables (measured under life Ɵme expected credit 
loss model)
Opening balance  288  309 
Provided during the year  (18)  (21)
Reversal of provision  -   
Unwinding of discount  -    -   
Closing balance  270  288 

Ageing analysis*

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Upto 3 months  8,634  10,902 
3-6 months  386  119 
More than 6 months  507  2,391 

 9,527  13,412 

*Gross trade receivables i.e. not including provision for doubƞul debts/impairment.

No significant changes in esƟmaƟon techniques or assumpƟons were made during the reporƟng period.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligaƟons as they become due. The Group monitors 
and manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operaƟonal and financial requirements. The 
Group has access to credit faciliƟes and debt capital markets and monitors cash balances daily. In relaƟon to the 
Group’s liquidity risk, the Group’s policy is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabiliƟes when due, under both normal and stressed condiƟons as they fall due while minimizing finance 
costs, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputaƟon.

Financing arrangements

The Group has access to following undrawn borrowing faciliƟes and liquid investments at the end of the reporƟng 
period:    

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Term Loan - Union Bank of India (UBI)  613  1,617 
Term Loan - PFC  5,186  12,341 
Term Loan - PTC  1,158  6,502 
Term Loan - IDBI  10,292  10,291 
Cash Credit facility  6,868  4,769 
Current investments  5,242  7,284 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
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Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting 
date based on contractual undiscounted payments    

As at 31st March, 2019 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings  32,937  56,178  50,416  1,39,531 
Trade payables  18,061  -    -    18,061 
Security deposits  415  1,214  210  1,839 
Other financial liabilities  8,916  -    -    8,916 

 60,329  57,392  50,626  1,68,347 

As at 31st March, 2018 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings  41,142  52,912  44,497  1,38,551 
Trade payables  13,079  -    -    13,079 
Security deposits  454  1,521  -    1,975 
Other financial liabilities  8,215  -    -    8,215 

 62,890  54,433  44,497  1,61,820 

INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversely effect the borrowing cost 
of the company. The Company is exposed to long term and short-term borrowings, Commercial Paper Program. The 
Company manages interest rate risk by monitoring its mix of fixed and floating rate instruments, and taking action as 
necessary to maintain an appropriate balance.
The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as 
follows: 
MARKET RISK
a) Interest rate risk exposure

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Variable rate borrowings  1,29,108  1,09,200 
Fixed rate borrowings  10,422  29,351 

b) Sensitivity analysis

 Profit or loss estimate to higher/lower interest rate expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest 
rates.

Impact on profit aŌer tax
2018-19 2017-18

Interest rates - increase by 70 basis points (896) (604)
Interest rates - decrease by 70 basis points 896 604

CURRENCY RISK

The Group operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently 
the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases from overseas suppliers in 
various foreign currencies. Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods in the 
respective currencies. 

The Group evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk 
management policies, including the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to 
foreign currency risk.    

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)
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Currency in Lakh

ParƟculars Currency 2018-19 2017-18
Bank Loans USD  (43.73)  (20.07)
Trade & Other Payables EURO  (52.08)  (74.11)
Trade & Other Payables USD  (230.80)  (498.06)
Trade & Other Payables AED  (0.48)  -   
Investment held for Trading USD  163.52  173.52 

AED  2.97  -   
Investment in associate USD  32.23  31.25 
Trade & Other Receivables USD  128.45  141.28 

AED  0.46  -   
Cash & Cash Equivalents USD  8.28  6.19 

AED  0.66  -   
Forward Contract to Sell/Receivable USD  9.07  13.00 

Profit or loss estimate to higher/lower as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates- (` in Lakh)

Impact on profit aŌer tax
2018-19 2017-18

Foreign exchange rates - increase by 1%  6.58  (159.52)
Foreign exchange rates - decrease by 1%  (6.58)  159.52 

PRICE RISK
The entity is exposed to equity price risk, which arised out from FVTPL quoted equity shares & mutual funds and FVTOCI 
unquoted equity shares. The management monitors the proportion of equity securities in its investment portfolio 
based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and 
sell decisions are approved by the management. The primary goal of the entity’s investment strategy is to maximize 
investments returns.     
Sensitivity Analysis for Price Risk
Equity Investments carried at FVTOCI are not listed on the stock exchange. For equity investments and mutual funds 
classified as at FVTPL, the impact of a 2% increase in the index at the reporting date on profit & loss would have been 
an increase of ̀  345.21 lakh  ( 2017-18: ` 465.90 lakh); an equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased 
profit and loss. For equity investments classified as at FVTOCI, the impact of a 2 % increase in the index at the reporting 
date on profit & loss would have been an increase of ` 33.69 lakh (2017-18: ` 51.57 lakh); an equal change in the 
opposite direction would have decreased profit and loss. 

40 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s main objectives when managing capital are to:
- ensure sufficient liquidity is available (either through cash and cash equivalents, investments or committed credit 
facilities) to meet the needs of the business;
- ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities and secured debentures;
- minimize finance costs while taking into consideration current and future industry, market and economic risks and 
conditions;
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern; and
- to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity funding thus achieving an optimal capital structure and cost of capital.
The Board has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through 
prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets 
so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
For the purpose of Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Group 
manages its capital structure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements of 
the financial covenants.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
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The Group manages its capital on the basis of net debt to equity ratio which is net debt (total borrowings net of cash 
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity.    

(` in Lakh)

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Total liabiliƟes  1,12,769.42  1,05,878.88 
Less : Cash and cash equivalent  4,349.38  6,763.85 
Net debt  1,08,420.04  99,115.03 
Total equity  1,85,956.73  1,66,494.39 
Net debt to equity raƟo  0.58  0.60 

The Company has complied with the covenants as per the terms of the major borrowing facilities throughout the 
reporting period.    

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A. Accounting classification and fair values

31st March, 2019 Carrying amount Total Fair value Total
FVTPL FVTOCI AmoƟzed 

Cost*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 
Bank, cash and cash 
equivalents

 -    -    4,498.96  4,498.96  -   

Non-current investments  -    -    -   
Unquoted Equity Investments 1,684.57 2,990.62 4,675.19 1,684.57 1,684.57
Quoted Mutual Funds 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40

Current investments  -    -    -   
Quoted Equity Investments  16,601.09  16,601.09  16,601.09  16,601.09 

Financial Asset: Loans  -    34,168.75  34,168.75  -   
Trade and other receivables  -    9,255.70  9,255.70  -   

16,617.49 1,684.57  50,914.03  69,216.09 16,617.49 1,684.57  -    18,302.06 
Financial LiabiliƟes

Long term borrowings  1,06,403.64  1,06,403.64 - -
Short term borrowings  26,762.29  26,762.29 - -
Trade and other payables  13,079.46  13,079.46  -   
Other financial liabiliƟes  -    17,213.35  17,213.35  -    -   

 -    -    1,63,458.74  1,63,458.74  -    -   - -

31st March, 2018 Carrying amount Total Fair value Total
FVTPL FVTOCI AmoƟzed 

Cost*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 
Bank, Cash and cash 
equivalents

 –    6,825.44  6,825.44  –   

Non-current investments  –    –    –   
Unquoted Equity Investments  –   2,578.49  2,859.65 5,438.14 2,578.49 2,578.49
Quoted Mutual Funds 40.92  –   40.92 40.92 40.92

Current investments  –    –    –    –   
Quoted Equity Investments  18,551.49  –    –    18,551.49  18,551.49  18,551.49 

Financial Asset: Loans  –    23,980.13  23,980.13  –    –   
Trade and other receivables  13,123.68  13,123.68  –   

18,592.41 2,578.49  46,788.90  67,959.80 18,592.41 2,578.49  –    21,170.90 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
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31st March, 2018 Carrying amount Total Fair value Total
FVTPL FVTOCI AmoƟzed 

Cost*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial liabiliƟes 
Long term borrowings  98,320.24  98,320.24 
Short term borrowings  32,672.36  32,672.36 
Trade and other payables  11,107.86  11,107.86  -   
Other financial liabiliƟes 2.55  17,513.03 17,515.58 2.55 2.55

2.55  -    1,59,613.49 1,59,616.04 2.55  -   - 2.55

* The carrying value and the fair value approximates.

B. Measurement of fair values

 The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different 
levels have been defined below:

-  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

-  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

-  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

C.  Valuation techniques

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

1)  Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities, 
short term borrowing from banks and other financial institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying 
value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

2)  Long-term receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, 
specific country risk factors, individual credit worthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the 
financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of 
these receivables.

3)  The fair values of the quoted instruments and mutual funds are based on price quotations at the reporting date. 
The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, obligations under finance 
leases, as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates 
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

4) The fair values of the unquoted equity shares designated at FVTOCI hase been estimated by using the most recent 
purchase price of such shares. (level 2)    

42 PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES HAVE BEEN REͳCASTED / REGROUPED / RESTATED WHEREVER NECESSARY TO 
MAKE THEM COMPARABLE.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Signatures to Notes 1 to 42
As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379  
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019
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Company Overview Statutory Report Financial Section

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 
Consolidated to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` in Lakh)

Statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 part B of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 in respect of the Subsidiary Companies / associates/ Joint venture

Summary of Financial Information of Joint Ventures As on 31.03.2019

S.No. ParƟculars/Name of the Joint Ventures RICL
India

MSCCL
India

1 Financial year of the Subsidiary Company/LLP ended on 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2019
2 Share of Joint Ventrues held by the Company on the year end

No.               1,30,800      1,30,742 
Amount of Investment           622.30 140.87 
Extend of Holding % 33.33% 20.13%

3 Networth   1,867.09 699.81 
4 Profit/(Loss) for the year

i. Considered in ConsolidaƟon  (123.45)   4.07 
ii. Not Considered in ConsolidaƟon                             -                                 -   

5 Whether commenced operaƟon  Yes  No 
Notes : 

1.RICL- Raipur Infrastructure Company Limited

2.MSCCL- Madanpur South Coal Company Limited

As per our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board
For O. P. Singhania & Co.
(ICAI FRN 002172C)
Chartered Accountants
Sanjay Singhania K. K. Sarda P. K. Jain Manish Sethi
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 076961 DIN: 00008170 DIN: 00008379   
Raipur Raipur
25th May, 2019 25th May, 2019



Notes 



Hydro power - 
the next growth trajectory

India's installed hydro capacity at the end 
o f  2 0 1 8  w a s  a r o u n d  4 5 , 4 0 0  M W, 
contributing to just 13% of country's total 
installed capacity. India is blessed with 
immense amount of hydro-electr ic 
potential and ranks 5th in terms of 
exploitable hydro-potential on global 
scenario. As per assessment made by CEA, 
India is endowed with economically 
exploitable hydro-power potential to the 
tune of 148,700 MW of installed capacity.

The industry potential – largely 
untapped

Ÿ With the completion of the 96 MW 
hydro power project in Sikkim, the 
Company will have a bouquet of 
sustainable cash generating hydro-
power assets with a total capacity of 
126 MW

Ÿ The commissioning of the Sikkim 
project will help the Company unlock 
capital for future value creation.

Ÿ Plans to have a total Hydropower 
portfolio in excess of 200 MW in the 
next 5 years. 

How SEML is geared up to utilise 
the hydro power potential 

Ÿ Hydropower helps in diversifying 
revenue stream further and also 
provides more sustainability to Profit 
margins 

8
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Notice 2018-19

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617

Registered Office
73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.) 440018

Ph: +91-712-2722407; Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in

NoƟce is hereby given that the 46th Annual General MeeƟng of the members of Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited will 
be held on Saturday, 21st September, 2019 at 11.00 a.m. at Radisson Blu Hotel, 7 Wardha Road, Nagpur 440015 to 
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To consider and adopt:

 a) the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, 
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

 b) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Uma Sarda (DIN: 00009783), who reƟres by rotaƟon at this Annual General 
MeeƟng and being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment.

Special Business

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 139 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) 
or re-enactment thereof, for the Ɵme being in force), and pursuant to the recommendaƟons of the Audit CommiƩee 
and the Board of Directors, M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm RegistraƟon No.002172C), who 
have provided their wriƩen consent for appointment as auditors, and also provided their eligibility cerƟficate as 
per Rule 4 of the Auditor Rules be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold 
office from the conclusion of this 46th Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) Ɵll the conclusion of the 51st AGM of the 
Company to be held in the year 2024 on the terms and condiƟons as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors of the Company and the Auditors plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, as 
may be incurred by the Auditors in connecƟon with the audit of financial statements of the Company during their 
tenure as the Auditors. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which includes any CommiƩee of the Board) be 
and is hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds, things and maƩers, and execute all such documents, as 
may be necessary in this regard from Ɵme to Ɵme to give effect to this resoluƟon.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or 
re-enactment thereof, for the Ɵme being in force), the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2020, be 
paid a remuneraƟon as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the noƟce of this Annual General MeeƟng. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resoluƟon.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and any other applicable laws and regulaƟons from Ɵme to Ɵme 
(including any statutory modificaƟons or re-enactments thereof for the Ɵme being in force), and other applicable 
provisions; subject to necessary approvals from the Stock Exchanges and other statutory authoriƟes, as may be 
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necessary; the approval of the Members, be and is hereby accorded to reclassify the following persons/enƟƟes 
(hereinaŌer individually & jointly referred to as the “Applicants”) and currently forming part of the “Promoter and 
Promoter Group” holding 25,467 Equity Shares aggregaƟng to 0.07% of the paid up capital of the Company, from 
“Promoter & Promoter Group” shareholding of the Company to the “Public” shareholding of the Company:

Name Number of Equity Shares Percentage
Promoter and Promoter Group
Mrs. Shashi Rathi 19,467 0.05
Dr. K.K. Rathi 6,000 0.02
Total 25,467 0.07

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT on approval of the Stock Exchange(s) upon applicaƟon for reclassificaƟon of the 
aforemenƟoned applicants, the Company shall effect such re-classificaƟon in the Statement of Shareholding paƩern 
from immediate succeeding quarter under RegulaƟon 31 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons & Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 and shall also comply with other applicable RegulaƟons/provisions, if any. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper 
and expedient to give effect to this resoluƟon.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on 
it by or under this ResoluƟon to any CommiƩee of Directors of the Company or to any Director of the Company or 
any other officer(s) or employee(s) of the Company as it may consider appropriate in order to give effect to this 
ResoluƟon including filing of necessary forms and returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Stock Exchanges 
and other concerned authoriƟes.

7.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of SecuriƟes) Rules, 2014 and 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, including any amendment, modificaƟon or variaƟon 
thereof for the Ɵme being in force, and subject to all other applicable regulaƟons, rules, noƟficaƟons, circulars 
and guidelines prescribed by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), as amended, and subject to the 
applicable regulaƟons, rules, noƟficaƟons, circulars and guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), 
the Memorandum of AssociaƟon and the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company, and subject to such approvals, 
consents, permissions and sancƟons as may be required and subject to such condiƟons and/ or modificaƟons as 
may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while granƟng such approvals, consents, permissions 
and sancƟons, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinaŌer referred to as the 
“Board” which term shall be deemed to include any CommiƩee(s) consƟtuted/to be consƟtuted by the Board 
to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this ResoluƟon), subject to the total borrowings of the 
Company not exceeding the borrowing limits approved by the Members from Ɵme to Ɵme under SecƟon 180(1)
(c) of the Act, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board and the Board 
be and is hereby authorized to create, offer, invite for subscripƟon, issue and allot, from Ɵme to Ɵme, in one or 
more tranches and/ or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulaƟve or non-cumulaƟve, listed or unlisted, 
redeemable non-converƟble debentures and/or other debt securiƟes, denominated in Indian rupees or any 
foreign currency (“NCDs”), aggregaƟng to an amount not exceeding ₹500 crore (Rupees five hundred crore only) 
or its equivalent in one or more currencies, at par or at premium or at a discount, either at issue or at redempƟon, 
on a private placement basis or through a public issue, during the period of one year from the date of this Annual 
General MeeƟng or such other period as may be permiƩed under the Act and other applicable laws, as the Board 
in its absolute discreƟon deems fit and on such terms and condiƟons as may be decided by the Board.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this ResoluƟon, the Board be and is hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Company to determine the terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to 
be issued, Ɵme, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate, premium/ discount, lisƟng (in India 
or overseas) and to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers and things and deal with all such maƩers and take all such steps 
as may be necessary and to sign and execute any deeds/ documents/undertakings/ agreements/ papers/ wriƟngs, 
as may be required in this regard and to resolve and seƩle all quesƟons and difficulƟes that may arise at any stage 
from Ɵme to Ɵme.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred 
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herein to any CommiƩee of Directors or any Director(s) or execuƟve(s)/ officer(s) of the Company to do all such 
acts, deeds, maƩers and things as also to execute such documents, wriƟngs etc. as may be necessary to give effect 
to this ResoluƟon.”

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 42, 62, 71 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulaƟons made thereunder (including any amendments, statutory 
modificaƟon(s) and/ or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme being in force) (‘Companies Act’), the relevant provisions 
of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2018 
(including any amendment, modificaƟon, variaƟon or re-enactment thereof) (‘ICDR RegulaƟons’) and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Memorandum and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company, the SecuriƟes and Exchange 
Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, the provisions of the Foreign 
Exchange Management Act, 1999, including any amendments, statutory modificaƟon(s) and/ or re-enactment 
thereof (‘FEMA’) and the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of SecuriƟes by a Person Resident 
outside India) RegulaƟons, 2017, as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Any Foreign 
Security) RegulaƟons, 2004, as amended, the Issue of Foreign Currency ConverƟble Bonds and Ordinary Shares 
(Through Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993, as amended, the Depository Receipts Scheme, 2014, 
as amended, the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008, 
as amended, (the “Debt LisƟng RegulaƟons”) including any amendments, statutory modificaƟon(s) and/ or re-
enactment thereof and all other applicable statutes, rules, regulaƟons, guidelines, noƟficaƟons, circulars and 
clarificaƟons as may be applicable, as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme, issued by the Government of India (‘GOI’), 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’), the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’), BSE Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (‘Stock Exchanges’), the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), Foreign Investment 
PromoƟon Board (“FIPB”), Department of Industrial Policy & PromoƟon (“DIPP”) and/ or any other regulatory/ 
statutory authoriƟes, in India or abroad from Ɵme to Ɵme, to the extent applicable and subject to the approvals, 
permits, consents and sancƟons of any regulatory/ statutory authoriƟes and guidelines and clarificaƟons issued 
thereon from Ɵme to Ɵme and subject to such condiƟons and modificaƟons as may be prescribed by any of them 
while granƟng such approvals, permissions, consents and sancƟons, which may be agreed to by the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinaŌer referred to as the ‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include any 
CommiƩee of the Board of Directors of the Company consƟtuted by the Board to exercise its powers including 
powers conferred by this resoluƟon), the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board to offer, 
issue and allot (including with provisions for reservaƟons on firm and/ or compeƟƟve basis, for such part of issue 
and for such categories of persons as may be permiƩed) such number of equity shares of the Company of face 
value of ̀ 10/- each (‘Equity Shares’), Global Depository Receipts (“GDRs”), American Depository Receipts (“ADRs”), 
Foreign Currency ConverƟble Bonds (“FCCBs”), Preference Shares converƟble into equity shares, Fully ConverƟble 
Debentures/Partly ConverƟble Debentures, Non- ConverƟble Debentures (“NCDs”) along with warrants, with a 
right exercisable by the warrant holder to exchange the said warrants with Equity Shares and/or any other financial 
instruments converƟble into Equity Shares (including warrants, or otherwise) and/or other securiƟes converƟble 
into Equity Shares (including warrants, or otherwise), fully converƟble debentures, partly converƟble debentures, 
non-converƟble debentures with warrants and/ or converƟble preference shares or any security converƟble 
into Equity Shares (hereinaŌer referred to as ‘SecuriƟes’), or any combinaƟon thereof, in one or more tranches, 
whether Rupee denominated or denominated in foreign currency, in the course of Indian and / or InternaƟonal 
offering(s) in one or more foreign markets and /or domesƟc market, for cash, at such price or prices, in terms of 
the applicable regulaƟons and as permiƩed under the applicable laws, in such manner, in consultaƟon with the 
Merchant Banker(s) and/or other Advisor(s) or otherwise, for an aggregate amount not exceeding ` 1000 crore 
(Rupees one thousand crore only) by way of one or more public and/or private offerings and/or preferenƟal issue 
and/or by way of qualified insƟtuƟons placement in accordance with the provisions of the ICDR RegulaƟons, or 
any combinaƟon thereof, to such investors that may be permiƩed to invest in such issuance of SecuriƟes, including 
eligible qualified insƟtuƟonal buyers (‘QIBs’) (as defined in the ICDR RegulaƟons), foreign/resident investors 
(whether insƟtuƟons, incorporated bodies, mutual funds, individuals or otherwise), venture capital funds (foreign 
or Indian), alternate investment funds, foreign insƟtuƟonal investors, foreign porƞolio investors, Indian and/or 
mulƟlateral financial insƟtuƟons, mutual funds, insurance companies, non-resident Indians, pension funds and/
or any other categories of investors, whether or not such investors are members of the Company, to all or any of 
them, jointly or severally through an offer/placement document and/or other leƩer or circular (‘Offering Circular’) 
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as may be deemed appropriate, in the sole discreƟon by the Board in such manner and on terms and condiƟons, 
including the terms of the issuance, security, fixing of record date, and at such price, whether at a premium or 
discount to market price as may permiƩed under applicable law and/or as may be permiƩed by the relevant 
regulatory / statutory authority, in such manner and on such terms as may be deemed appropriate by the Board at 
its absolute discreƟon (the ‘Issue’) and without requiring any further approval or consent from the shareholders.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event the proposed issuance of SecuriƟes is undertaken by way of a QIP in terms of 
the ICDR RegulaƟons (hereinaŌer referred to as “Eligible SecuriƟes” within the meaning of the ICDR RegulaƟons): 

 a) the allotment of Eligible SecuriƟes (or any combinaƟon of Eligible SecuriƟes as may be decided by the Board) 
shall be completed within 365 days from the date of passing of this resoluƟon or such other Ɵme as may be 
allowed under the ICDR RegulaƟons from Ɵme to Ɵme.

 b) the relevant date for the purpose of pricing of the Equity Shares shall be the date of the meeƟng in which the 
Board decides to open the proposed issue of Equity Shares as Eligible SecuriƟes and in case Eligible SecuriƟes 
are eligible converƟble securiƟes, then either the date of the meeƟng in which the Board decides to open the 
proposed issue or the date on which holder of Eligible SecuriƟes become eligible to apply for Equity Shares, as 
may be determined by the Board or such date as may be permiƩed under ICDR RegulaƟons, as amended.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any issue of Eligible SecuriƟes made by way of a QIP under of ICDR RegulaƟons shall be 
at such price which is not less than the price determined in accordance with the pricing formula provided under 
of the ICDR RegulaƟons (‘QIP Floor Price’) and shall be subject to appropriate adjustments as per the provisions of 
of the ICDR RegulaƟons, as may be applicable. Furthermore, the Board may, at its absolute discreƟon, also offer a 
discount of not exceeding 5% (five per cent) or such other percentage as may be permiƩed under applicable law 
to the QIP Floor Price.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event the SecuriƟes are proposed to be issued as FCCBs, the relevant date for the 
purpose of pricing the SecuriƟes shall be the date of the meeƟng in which the Board decides to open the issue of 
such SecuriƟes in accordance with the Issue of Foreign Currency ConverƟble Bonds and Ordinary Shares (through 
the Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993 or such other date as may be prescribed under applicable law.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the above menƟoned resoluƟons:

 (a) the SecuriƟes proposed to be issued, offered and alloƩed shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum 
and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company, the Companies Act and other applicable laws;

 (b) the Equity Shares that may be issued by the Company shall rank pari passu with the exisƟng Equity Shares of 
the Company in all respects; and

 (c) Equity Shares to be issued on conversion of SecuriƟes converƟble into Equity Shares shall be appropriately 
adjusted for corporate acƟons such as bonus issue, rights issue, stock split, consolidaƟon of stock, merger, 
demerger, transfer of undertaking, sale of division or any such capital or corporate re-organizaƟon or 
restructuring.

 RESOLVD FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to enter into any arrangement with any agencies 
or bodies for the issue of GDRs and /or ADRs represented by underlying equity shares in the share capital of 
the Company with such features and aƩributes as are prevalent in internaƟonal / domesƟc capital markets for 
instruments of this nature and to provide for the tradability and free transferability thereof in accordance with 
market pracƟces as per the domesƟc and / or internaƟonal pracƟce and regulaƟons and under the norms and 
pracƟces prevalent in the domesƟc/internaƟonal capital markets and subject to applicable laws and regulaƟons 
and the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to any offer, issue or allotment of SecuriƟes or Equity 
Shares on conversion of SecuriƟes, the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to seek lisƟng 
of any or all of such SecuriƟes or Equity Shares as the case may be, on the Stock Exchanges in India.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Board be and is hereby authorized 
in its absolute discreƟon, in such manner as it may deem fit, to dispose of such of the SecuriƟes that are not 
subscribed in accordance with applicable law.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to appoint merchant bankers, lead manager(s), 
underwriters, depositories, custodians, registrars, bankers, lawyers, advisors, debenture trustees and all such 
agencies as are or may be required to be appointed, involved or concerned and to remunerate them by way of 
commission, brokerage, fees or the like and also to reimburse them out of pocket expenses incurred by them 
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and also to enter into and execute all such arrangements, agreements, memoranda, documents, etc. with such 
agencies.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby authorized, 
on behalf of the Company, to take all acƟons and do all such acts, deeds, acƟons and sign such documents as may 
be required in furtherance of, or in relaƟon to, or ancillary to, the Issue, including the finalizaƟon and approval 
of the draŌ as well as final offer document(s), determining the form and manner of the Issue, idenƟficaƟon and 
class of the investors to whom the SecuriƟes are to be offered, uƟlizaƟon of the issue proceeds, authorizing any 
Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company to sign offer documents, execute any necessary documents, agreements, 
forms, deeds, appointment of intermediaries, open and close the period of subscripƟon of the Issue, determine 
the issue price, premium amount on issue/conversion of the SecuriƟes, if any, rate of interest and all other terms 
and condiƟons of the SecuriƟes, uƟlizaƟon of the Issue proceeds, signing of declaraƟons, file any necessary forms 
with regulatory authoriƟes and allot the SecuriƟes and to amend, vary or modify any of the above as the Board 
may consider necessary, desirable or expedient and to take such steps and to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers 
and things as they may deem fit and proper for the purposes of the Issue and resolve and seƩle all quesƟons or 
difficulƟes that may arise in regard to such Issue without being required to seek any further consent or approval of 
the members or otherwise to the end and intent that the members shall be deemed to have given their approval 
thereto expressly by the authority of this resoluƟon.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein 
conferred to any commiƩee of directors or any director(s)/execuƟve of the Company, in such manner as they may 
deem fit in their absolute discreƟon with the power to take such steps and to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers and 
things as they may deem fit and proper for the purposes of the Issue and seƩle any quesƟons or difficulƟes that 
may arise in this regard to the Issue.”

 By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Sd/-
Raipur (Manish Sethi)
3rd August, 2019 Company Secretary

Registered Office
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617
73-A, Central Avenue
Nagpur (M.H.) 440018
Ph: +91-712-2722407
Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in
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Notes:

1. A member enƟtled to aƩend and vote at the Annual General MeeƟng (the “MeeƟng”) is enƟtled to appoint a 
proxy to aƩend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument 
appoinƟng the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-
eight hours before the commencement of the MeeƟng. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fiŌy and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voƟng rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voƟng rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other 
person or shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representaƟves to aƩend the MeeƟng are requested to 
send to the Company a cerƟfied copy of the Board ResoluƟon authorizing their representaƟve to aƩend and vote 
on their behalf at the MeeƟng.

3. Details under RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons) in respect of the Director seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the Annual General MeeƟng are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the 
Annual Report. The Director has furnished the requisite declaraƟons for her appointment/re-appointment.

4. A Statement pursuant to SecƟon 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relaƟng to the Special Business to be 
transacted at the MeeƟng is annexed hereto.

5. Members are requested to bring their aƩendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the MeeƟng.

6. In case of joint holders aƩending the MeeƟng, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
enƟtled to vote.

7. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying NoƟce and the Statements are open for inspecƟon by the 
members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, during business hours up 
to the date of the MeeƟng. 

8. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial year 2010-11, from 
Ɵme to Ɵme on due dates to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central 
Government. The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as 
on 21st September, 2018 (date of last Annual General MeeƟng) on the website of the Company (www.seml.co.in) 
and also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

9. Adhering to the various requirements set out in the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, the Company has, transferred to the IEPF Authority all shares 
in respect of which dividend had remained unpaid or unclaimed for seven consecuƟve years or more as on the due 
date of transfer. Details of shares transferred to the IEPF Authority are available on the website of the Company 
and the same can be accessed through the link: hƩp://www.seml.co.in/shares.php. The said details have also been 
uploaded on the website of the IEPF Authority and the same can be accessed through the link: www.iepf.gov.in. 

10. Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividends transferred to IEPF Authority can be claimed back 
from the IEPF Authority. Concerned members/investors are advised to visit the weblink: hƩp://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/
refund.html or contact Bigshare Services Private Limited for lodging claim for refund of shares and /or dividend 
from the IEPF Authority.  

11. Members who hold shares in physical form in mulƟple folios in idenƟcal names or joint holding in the same order 
of names are requested to send the share cerƟficates to Bigshare Services Private Limited, for consolidaƟon into a 
single folio.

12. SEBI has mandated that securiƟes of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form from 1st 
April, 2019 onwards. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerializaƟon, members are advised 
to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form.

13. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every parƟcipant in securiƟes market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their Depository ParƟcipants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / Bigshare Services 
Private Limited.  

Notice
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14. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address for 
receiving all communicaƟon including Annual Report, NoƟces, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically. 
Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to inform their email–ids to Bigshare Services 
Private Limited, the Registrar & Transfer Agent. However, members conƟnue to have the opƟon of receiving all 
communicaƟons in physical form free of cost, if they so elect.

15. The NoƟce of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2018-19 and e-voƟng instrucƟons is being sent through 
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless 
any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. To members who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permiƩed mode.

16. The voƟng rights of members shall be in proporƟon to their shares in the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 14th September, 2019. Any person, who is not a shareholder as on the cut-off 
date, must treat the receipt of the NoƟce of Annual General MeeƟng and other documents only for the purpose of 
informaƟon. 

InformaƟon and other instrucƟons relaƟng to e-voƟng 

1. In compliance with SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
administraƟon) Rules, 2014, as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme and RegulaƟon 44 of the SecuriƟes and Exchange 
Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard 
on General MeeƟngs (SS2) issued by The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to 
provide to its Members the facility to cast their votes electronically, through e-voƟng services provided by NaƟonal 
SecuriƟes Depository Limited (“NSDL”), on resoluƟons set forth in this NoƟce. The Members may cast their votes 
using an electronic voƟng system from a place other than the venue of the Annual General MeeƟng (“remote 
e-voƟng”). InstrucƟons for remote e-voƟng are given herein below. The ResoluƟons passed by remote e-voƟng are 
deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the Annual General MeeƟng.

2. The facility for voƟng through electronic voƟng system or ballot paper shall be made available at the Annual 
General MeeƟng and the Members aƩending the meeƟng who have not cast their vote by remote e-voƟng shall 
be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeƟng. 

3. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voƟng prior to the Annual General MeeƟng may also aƩend 
the meeƟng but shall not be enƟtled to cast their vote again.

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-VoƟng system consists of “Two Steps” which are menƟoned below:

Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-VoƟng system at hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-VoƟng system.

Details on Step 1 is menƟoned below:

How to Log-into NSDL e-VoƟng website?

1. Visit the e-VoƟng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.
com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-VoƟng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ 
secƟon.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a VerificaƟon Code as shown on the 
screen.

 AlternaƟvely, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your exisƟng IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices aŌer using your log-in credenƟals, click on  e-VoƟng 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Notice
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4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who holdshares in 
demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***

5. Your password details are given below:

 a) If you are already registered for e-VoƟng, then you can user your exisƟng password to login and cast your vote.

 b) If you are using NSDL e-VoƟng system for the first Ɵme, you will need to retrieve the ‘iniƟal password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘iniƟal password’, you need to enter the ‘iniƟal password’ 
and the system will force you to change your password.

 c) How to retrieve your ‘iniƟal password’?

  (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘iniƟal password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the aƩachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is 
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘iniƟal password’. 

  (ii) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘iniƟal password’ is communicated to you on your postal address.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ IniƟal password” or have forgoƩen your password:

 a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) opƟon available on www.evoƟng.nsdl.com.

 b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) opƟon available on www.evoƟng.
nsdl.com.

 c) If you are sƟll unable to get the password by aforesaid two opƟons, you can send a request at evoƟng@
nsdl.co.in menƟoning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered 
address.

 d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casƟng the votes on the e-VoƟng system 
of NSDL.

7. AŌer entering your password, Ɵck on Agree to “Terms and CondiƟons” by selecƟng on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” buƩon.

9. AŌer you click on the “Login” buƩon, Home page of e-VoƟng will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-VoƟng system?

1. AŌer successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-VoƟng. Click on e-VoƟng. Then, click on 
AcƟve VoƟng Cycles.

2. AŌer click on AcƟve VoƟng Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voƟng cycle is in acƟve status.

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4. Now you are ready for e-VoƟng as the VoƟng page opens.

Notice
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5. Cast your vote by selecƟng appropriate opƟons i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmaƟon, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print opƟon on the confirmaƟon page.

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resoluƟon, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 InsƟtuƟonal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board ResoluƟon/ Authority leƩer etc. with aƩested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the ScruƟnizer by e-mail to kamal@sgkindia.net with a 
copy marked to evoƟng@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidenƟal. Login to the e-voƟng website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful aƩempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” opƟon available on www.evoƟng.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked QuesƟons (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voƟng user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download secƟon of www.evoƟng.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-
222-990 or send a request atevoƟng@nsdl.co.in

Other InstrucƟons:

i.  The remote e-voƟng period commences on Wednesday, 18th September, 2019 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Friday, 
20th September, 2019 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Saturday, 14th September, 2019, may cast their 
vote by remote e-voƟng. The remote e-voƟng module shall be disabled by NSDL for voƟng thereaŌer. Once the 
vote on a resoluƟon is cast by the Member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

ii.  You can also update your mobile number and e-mail address in the user profile details of the folio which may be 
used for sending future communicaƟon(s).

iii.  The voƟng rights of Members shall be in proporƟon to their share of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of Saturday, 14th September, 2019 and as per the Register of Members of the 
Company.

iv.  Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company aŌer dispatch of the 
NoƟce of Annual General MeeƟng and holding shares as of the cut-off date, i.e., 14th September, 2019, may obtain 
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoƟng@nsdl.co.in. However, if you are already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-voƟng then you can use your exisƟng user ID and password for casƟng your vote. If you forgot 
your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” opƟon available on www.
evoƟng.nsdl.com.

v.  Please note, only a person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 
Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date shall be enƟtled to avail the facility of voƟng, either 
through remote e-voƟng or voƟng at the Annual General MeeƟng through e-voƟng or ballot paper.

vi.  The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Kamlesh Ojha or failing him Mr. S.G. Kankani of S.G. Kankani & Associates, 
PracƟcing Company Secretaries, as the ScruƟnizer to scruƟnize the remote e-voƟng process as well as voƟng at the 
Annual General MeeƟng in a fair and transparent manner.

vii.  At the Annual General MeeƟng, at the end of the discussion of the resoluƟons on which voƟng is to be held, the 
Chairman shall with the assistance of the ScruƟnizer allow voƟng for all those Members who are present but have 
not cast their vote electronically using the remote e-voƟng facility.

viii.  The ScruƟnizer shall immediately aŌer the conclusion of voƟng at the Annual General MeeƟng, first count the 
votes at the Annual General MeeƟng, thereaŌer unblock the votes cast through remote e-voƟng in the presence 
of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make not later than 48 hours of conclusion of 
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relaƟng to Item Nos. 4 to 8 menƟoned in the accompanying NoƟce.

Item No.4

In the 41st AGM held on 29th September, 2014, the members had approved the appointment of M/s. O.P. Singhania & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors for a first term of 5 years (F.Y. 2014-15 to F.Y. 2018-19 /from the 
conclusion of 41st AGM Ɵll the conclusion of 46th AGM). 

The first term of M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors shall expire in the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟng. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeƟng held on 25th May, 2019, on 
the recommendaƟon of Audit CommiƩee, has, subject to the approval of the members in the general meeƟng re-
appointed M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors for a second term of 5 years. 

The details, terms and condiƟons of appointment (including remuneraƟon) of the Auditor proposed to be appointed, 
pursuant to RegulaƟon 36 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, as amended, 
are as follows: 

Name of the Auditor M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., Chartered Accountants 
Brief Profile M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co. is one of the leading firms of Chartered 

Accountants in the central India. Established in 1983 by Mr. O.P. 
Singhania, former Chairman of the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, Raipur Branch. The firm offers mulƟ-disciplinary services to its 
clients.
The Firm is managed by 3 Partners having varied Experience in the field 
of Audit, TaxaƟon and Management Audit and is assisted by qualified 
professionals, ArƟcles & Audit Assistants.

the meeƟng, a consolidated ScruƟnizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in wriƟng who shall countersign the same.

ix.  The Chairman or a person authorized by him in wriƟng shall declare the result of voƟng forthwith.

x.  The results declared along with the ScruƟnizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.seml.co.in 
and on the website of NSDL www.evoƟng.nsdl.com, immediately aŌer the result is declared by the Chairman or 
any other person authorized by the Chairman and the same shall be communicated to BSE Limited and NaƟonal 
Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. The results shall also be displayed on 
the noƟce board at the Registered Office of the Company.

xi. In case of any grievances with respect to the facility for voƟng by electronic means, Members are requested to 
contact: evoƟng@nsdl.co.in or on +91 22 2499 4360 / 1800 222 990 or at NSDL, Trade World, ‘A’ wing, 4th Floor, 
Kamala Mills Compound, SenapaƟ Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013.

 By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Sd/-
Raipur (Manish Sethi)
3rd August, 2019 Company Secretary

Registered Office
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617
73-A, Central Avenue
Nagpur (M.H.) 440018
Ph: +91-712-2722407
Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in
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Notice
The Firm is Peer Reviewed by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of 
India three Ɵmes Ɵll date and got cerƟficate of Peer Review.
The firm is empanelled with C & AG, Reserve Bank of India, Govt. of 
Chhaƫsgarh, Chief Commissioner of Income Tax for Special Audits. 
Further, the firm is also doing audits of Public Sector Undertakings and 
Banks for more than 25 years.

CredenƟals M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co. (Firm RegistraƟon No. 002172C) is firm of 
Chartered Accountants. A brief profile is stated above. 

Basis of recommendaƟon for appointment The Board of directors, on the recommendaƟons of the Audit 
CommiƩee is seeking approval of the shareholders of the Company 
for re-appoinƟng M/s O.P. Singhania & Co., as the statutory auditors 
of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the 46th AGM of the 
Company, for a period of five years. 

Terms of appointment M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co., is proposed to be re-appointed as the 
statutory auditors of the Company with effect from the conclusion 
of the 46th AGM of the Company, for a period of five years i.e. Ɵll the 
conclusion of 51st AGM of the Company on such terms as may be 
mutually determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in 
consultaƟon with the Auditors. 

Proposed fee payable Not exceeding ` 25,00,000/- (Rupees twenty five lakh) payable to the 
Auditors for the financial year 2019-20 plus applicable taxes and out of 
pocket expenses, as may be incurred, in connecƟon with the statutory 
audit of financial statements of the Company. 

The fees payable for statutory audit per financial year to the Auditors 
for the financial year 2020-21 and onwards Ɵll the remainder of their 
tenure, will be mutually determined by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in consultaƟon with the Auditors. 

Material change in the fee payable to the 
auditor from that paid to the outgoing 
auditor 

Not applicable

RaƟonale for such change in remuneraƟon Not applicable. 
None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon set out at Item No. 4 of the NoƟce.

The Board recommends the Ordinary ResoluƟon set out at Item No. 4 of the NoƟce for approval by the shareholders.

Item No.5

The Board, on the recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee, has in its meeƟng held on 25th May, 2019, approved the 
appointment of M/s. S.N. & Co., Cost & Management Accountants, as the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost 
records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2020 at a remuneraƟon of ` 1,75,000/- (Rupee one 
lakh seventy five thousand only) plus applicable tax plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
the remuneraƟon payable to the Cost Auditors has to be raƟfied by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought by way of an Ordinary ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 5 of the NoƟce 
for raƟficaƟon of the remuneraƟon payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2020.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon set out at Item No. 5 of the NoƟce.

The Board recommends the Ordinary ResoluƟon set out at Item No. 5 of the NoƟce for approval by the shareholders.

Item No.6

RegulaƟon 31A of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (hereinaŌer referred as 
“LisƟng RegulaƟons”) has provided a regulatory mechanism for classificaƟon of Promoters & Promoter group as Public 
Shareholders subject to fulfillment of condiƟons as provided therein. 
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In this regard, the Company received applicaƟons from the persons (as set out below):

Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares held % of the Paid Up Capital
Shashi Rathi 19,467 0.05%
Kamal Kishore Rathi 6,000 0.02%

TOTAL 25,467 0.07%
for classifying them under the Public Category since their names have been included as a part of the Promoter and 
Promoter group. Shashi Rathi is sister of Chairman & Managing Director and Dr. KK Rathi is brother-in-law of Chairman 
& Managing Director. Their name was included in past in the prospectuses issued by the Company. Post marriage of 
Mrs. Shashi Rathi, she or her husband Dr. KK Rathi are not involved in management or control of the company and 
as such they are not connected persons of promoters. They are not controlled by the remaining Promoters of the 
Company and they are financially independent persons, who take independent investment decisions and are no way 
related to any of the business carried out by the Company. 

Further they have undertaken that, they themselves are /do not:

i) together, hold more than ten percent of the total voƟng rights in the Company;

ii) exercise control over the affairs of the Company directly or indirectly;

iii) have any special rights with respect to the Company through formal or informal arrangements including through 
any shareholder agreements;

iv) represented on the board of directors (including not having a nominee director) of the Company;

v) act as a key managerial person in the Company;

vi) wilful defaulter(s)’ as per the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines;

vii) fugiƟve economic offender(s).

They have further undertaken that:

 they shall conƟnue to comply with condiƟons menƟoned at sub-clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of clause (b) of regulaƟon 
31A(3) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 at all Ɵmes from the date of such re-classificaƟon failing which, they shall automaƟcally be reclassified as 
persons belonging to promoter group;

 they shall comply with condiƟons menƟoned at sub-clauses (iv) and (v) of clause (b) of regulaƟon 31A(3) of the 
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 for a 
period of not less than three years from the date of such re-classificaƟon failing which, they shall automaƟcally be 
reclassified as persons belonging to promoter group.

In view of the undertakings given by the Applicants as detailed above and in consideraƟon of the condiƟons as 
sƟpulated in RegulaƟon 31A of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeƟng held on 
25th May, 2019 have approved the requests for reclassificaƟon received by the Company as above from Promoter and 
Promoter Group category to Public category subject to approval by the members and relevant regulatory authoriƟes. 
As required, inƟmaƟon has been sent to Stock Exchanges based on declaraƟon received from the aforesaid persons. 

As per requirements of RegulaƟon 31A(3) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons & Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015, approval of the shareholders by way of ordinary resoluƟon is required to be obtained for reclassificaƟon of the 
members of promoter group to public category.

The Board recommends the passing of the resoluƟon as set out under item no.6 for approval of the Members as an 
Ordinary ResoluƟon. 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel and relaƟves thereof other than Mr. Kamal Kishore Sarda, Mrs. Uma 
Sarda and Mr. Pankaj Sarda and their relaƟves, has any concern or interest, financial or otherwise, in the resoluƟon at 
Item No. 6 of this NoƟce.

As per the requirements of RegulaƟon 31A(3)(iii) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons & 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, the members of promoter group seeking re-classificaƟon as aforesaid and 
persons related to them shall not vote to approve such re-classificaƟon request.

Notice
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Item No.7

The members of the Company, at the 45th Annual General MeeƟng held on 21st September, 2018, had passed a 
special resoluƟon authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company to offer or invite subscripƟons for redeemable 
non-converƟble debentures, in one or more series / tranches, on private placement. The said resoluƟon is valid and 
effecƟve for 1 (one) year from September 21, 2018. The members may note that the Company has not made any 
private placement of redeemable non-converƟble debentures pursuant to the said authorizaƟon. 

The Board may, at an appropriate Ɵme, consider offering or inviƟng subscripƟons for secured/ unsecured redeemable 
non-converƟble debentures, in one or more series / tranches on private placement, issuable / redeemable at par, 
in order to augment long-term resources for opƟmizing the borrowing cost and for financing inter alia the capital 
expenditure and for general corporate purposes. The flexibility to raise capital through issue of market instruments 
becomes more important in view of the changing regulatory landscape.  

The provisions of SecƟons 23, 42 and 71 of the Act read with Rule 14(2)(a) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment 
of SecuriƟes) Rules, 2014 (the ‘PAS Rules’), provide that a company shall not make a private placement of its securiƟes 
unless the proposed offer of securiƟes or invitaƟon to subscribe to the securiƟes has been previously approved by the 
Members of the Company by a special resoluƟon. The second proviso to Rule 14(2)(a) of the PAS Rules provides that 
in case of an offer or invitaƟon to subscribe to Non-ConverƟble Debentures (‘NCDs’) on private placement basis, the 
Company can obtain prior approval by means of a special resoluƟon once a year for all offers or invitaƟons for such 
NCDs during the year. 

Accordingly, the Company is seeking approval from its Members under SecƟons 23, 42, 71 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, read together with the PAS Rules and Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014, as amended, to issue securiƟes, as set out in the Special ResoluƟon at Item No. 7 of the NoƟce, not exceeding 
` 500 crore through issuance of NCDs in the internaƟonal and/or domesƟc capital markets, within a period of one year 
from the date of the 46th Annual General MeeƟng. 

The Board recommends the Special ResoluƟon set forth in Item No. 7 for the approval of the Members.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon set out at Item No. 7 of the NoƟce. 

Item No.8

The members of the Company, at the 45th Annual General MeeƟng held on September 21, 2018, had passed a special 
resoluƟon authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company to issue securiƟes, in one or more series / tranches, on 
QIP basis. The said resoluƟon is valid and effecƟve for 1 (one) year from September 21, 2018. The members may note 
that the Company has not made any QIP of securiƟes pursuant to the said authorisaƟon. 

In order to enable the Company to access the capital market at the appropriate Ɵme, it is recommended to obtain the 
shareholder’s approval for the proposal to create, offer, issue and allot Equity Shares and/or such other securiƟes as 
stated in the resoluƟon (the “SecuriƟes”) at such price or prices, at a discount or premium to market price or prices in 
such manner and on such terms and condiƟons including security, rate of interest, etc. as may be deemed appropriate 
by the Board at its absolute discreƟon including the discreƟon to determine the categories of Investors to whom the 
offer, issue and allotment shall be made at the Ɵme of such offer, issue and allotment, considering the prevailing 
market condiƟons and other relevant factors and wherever necessary in consultaƟon with lead managers or advisors, 
either in foreign currency or equivalent Indian Rupees inclusive of such premium as may be determined by the Board, 
in any converƟble foreign currency, as the Board at its absolute discreƟon may deem fit and appropriate in accordance 
with applicable law. The Company intends to issue SecuriƟes for a value not exceeding ` 1000 crore (Rupees one 
thousand crore only) or its equivalent in any foreign currency.

The Special ResoluƟon seeks to give the Board powers to issue SecuriƟes in one or more tranche or tranches, by 
way of one or more public and/or private offerings, and/ or including Qualified InsƟtuƟons Placement (‘QIP’) or 
any combinaƟon thereof at such Ɵme or Ɵmes, at such price or prices and to eligible person(s) including Qualified 
InsƟtuƟonal Buyers (‘QIBs’) as defined under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2018 (‘ICDR RegulaƟons’) in accordance with of the ICDR RegulaƟons, or otherwise, 
foreign/resident investors (whether insƟtuƟons, incorporated bodies, mutual funds, individuals or otherwise), venture 
capital funds (foreign or Indian), alternate investment funds, foreign insƟtuƟonal investors, foreign porƞolio investors, 
qualified foreign investors, Indian and/or mulƟlateral financial insƟtuƟons, mutual funds, insurance companies, non-
resident Indians, stabilizing agents, pension funds and/or any other categories of investors, whether they be holders 

Notice
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of equity shares of the Company or not as the Board in its absolute discreƟon may deem fit. The detailed terms and 
condiƟons for the offer will be determined by the Board in consultaƟon with the Merchant Bankers, Advisors, Lead 
Managers, and such other authority or authoriƟes as may be required to be consulted by the Company considering 
the prevailing market condiƟons and in accordance with the applicable provisions of law and other relevant factors.

The Board shall issue SecuriƟes pursuant to this Special ResoluƟon and uƟlize the proceeds for business purposes, 
including but not limited to support to subsidiaries for business acƟviƟes and general corporate purposes.  

The pricing of the SecuriƟes to be issued to Qualified InsƟtuƟonal Buyers pursuant to the ICDR RegulaƟons shall be 
freely determined subject to such price not being less than the floor price calculated in accordance with of the ICDR 
RegulaƟons. Further, ICDR RegulaƟons permit issuer companies to offer a maximum discount of 5% (five per cent) to 
the Floor Price determined in accordance with the ICDR RegulaƟons. The Board may, at its absolute discreƟon, decide 
the pricing (either at a discount or premium to the floor price) for the shares to be offered, issued and alloƩed in the 
QIP. The relevant date for the purpose of pricing the SecuriƟes shall be the meeƟng in which the Board (including 
Capital Raising CommiƩee of the Board) decides to open the proposed issue of Equity Shares as Eligible SecuriƟes. 
In the event that Eligible SecuriƟes are converƟble securiƟes then the relevant date shall be either the date of the 
meeƟng in which the Board (including Capital Raising CommiƩee of the Board) decides to open the issue or the date 
on which the holders of such Eligible SecuriƟes becomes enƟtled to apply for the Equity Shares, as may be determined 
by the Board.

The issue/ allotment/ conversion would be subject to the applicable regulatory approvals, if any. The issuance and 
allotment of Equity Shares including Equity Shares to be alloƩed on conversion of SecuriƟes to foreign/non-resident 
investors would be subject to the applicable foreign investment cap. 

SecƟon 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides, inter alia, that where it is proposed to increase the subscribed 
share capital of the Company by the issue of further shares, such further shares shall be offered to the persons who at 
the date of the offer are holders of equity shares of the Company, in proporƟon to the capital paid up on those shares 
as of that date unless shareholders decide otherwise by way of passing Special ResoluƟon. The Special ResoluƟon will 
be enabling resoluƟon authorizing the Board to decide as and when it thinks it is appropriate to raise the funds.

The Special ResoluƟon, if passed, will have the effect of allowing the Board to issue and allot SecuriƟes to the investors 
who may or may not be the exisƟng shareholders of the Company. The Company with this resoluƟon seeks the approval 
of the shareholders to undertake fund raising acƟvity, through one or mulƟple modes including through an issue of 
QIP. The Company will make requisite disclosures to the stock exchanges under the provisions of the SecuriƟes and 
Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing the Special ResoluƟon as set out in the said item of the 
NoƟce.

In view of this, the Board of Directors recommends the resoluƟon as set out in Item 8 of the NoƟce for approval by the 
shareholders of the Company by way of a Special ResoluƟon.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in this resoluƟon.

 By Order of the Board of Directors
For Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited

Sd/-
Raipur (Manish Sethi)
3rd August, 2019 Company Secretary

Registered Office
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617
73-A, Central Avenue
Nagpur (M.H.) 440018
Ph: +91-712-2722407
Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in

Notice
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form
[Pursuant to secƟon 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)

of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014, as amended]

CIN : L27100MH1973PLC016617 
Name of the company : Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
Registered office : 73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.) 440018

Name of Shareholder(s) :
Registered Address :
E-mail id :
Folio No. / Client ID :
DP ID :

I/We, being the member (s) of Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited, holding shares of the above named Company, hereby 
appoint: 

1. Name : _________________________________________________________________________________

 Address : ________________________________________________________________________________

 E-mail id : _________________________________________________________________________________

 Signature : _____________________________________________________________________, or failing him

2. Name : _________________________________________________________________________________

 Address : _________________________________________________________________________________

 E-mail id : ________________________________________________________________________________

 Signature : _____________________________________________________________________, or failing him

3. Name : _________________________________________________________________________________

 Address : _________________________________________________________________________________

 E-mail id : _________________________________________________________________________________

 Signature : _________________________________________________________________________________

as my/our proxy to aƩend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 46th Annual General MeeƟng of 
the Company, to be held on Saturday, the 21st day of September, 2019 at 11.00 a.m. at Radisson Blu Hotel, 7 Wardha 
Road, Nagpur 440015 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resoluƟons as are indicated below:

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617

Registered Office
73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.) 440018

Ph: +91-712-2722407
Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in
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Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp

S.No. ResoluƟon FOR AGAINST
1 AdopƟon of Audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company 

including Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the F.Y. 2018-19
2 DeclaraƟon of dividend on Equity Shares for the F.Y. 2018-19
3. Re-appointment of Mrs. Uma Sarda as Director
4. Re-appointed of M/s. O.P. Singhania & Co. as Statutory Auditors of the Company 

to hold office from the conclusion of the 46th Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) Ɵll 
the conclusion of the 51st AGM of the Company

5. RaƟficaƟon of payment of remuneraƟon to M/s. S.N. & Co., Cost & Management 
Accountants, as cost auditors of the Company for F.Y. 2019-20

6. Approval to re-classificaƟon of promoters
7. Approval of offer or invitaƟon to subscribe to Redeemable Non-ConverƟble 

Debentures on private placement
8. Further Issue of SecuriƟes

Signed this ...................................... day of …..............…… 2019

____________________________________________
Signature of shareholder/ Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes
1. This form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company.
2. This form of Proxy in order to be effecƟve should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Company, 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeƟng.
3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
4. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fiŌy and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total 

share capital of the Company carrying voƟng rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voƟng rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder.

5. Please put a (X) in the appropriate column against the resoluƟons indicated in the box.  
6. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.
7. If Company receives mulƟple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered valid; 

if they are not dated or bear the same date without specific menƟon of Ɵme, all such mulƟple proxies will be treated as invalid.

Venue 46th AGM



ATTENDANCE SLIP
 (To be handed over at the entrance of the MeeƟng hall)

Registered Folio No. / DP ID-Client ID

Name of Shareholder

Address

I cerƟfy that I am a registered Shareholder of the Company and hold _____________ shares.

I hereby record my presence at the 46th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, at Radisson Blu Hotel, 7, Wardha 
Road, Nagpur (M.H.) to be held on Saturday, 21st September, 2019 at 11.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

_______________________
Member's/Proxy's signature

NOTES :
1. A member/proxy wishing to aƩend the meeƟng must complete this AƩendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance 

duly signed.

2. If you intend to appoint a proxy, please complete the proxy form and deposit it at the Company’s Registered Office 
at least 48 hours before the meeƟng.

3. If you are aƩending the meeƟng in person or by proxy please bring copy of noƟce and annual report for reference 
at the meeƟng.

--------------------------------------------------------------------- Cut here -------------------------------------------------------------------------

E-VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN
(E VoƟng Event Number)

USER ID PASSWORD

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617

Registered Office
73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.) 440018

Ph: +91-712-2722407
Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in





Bigshare Services Private Limited
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building
Opp. Vasant Oasis 
Makwana Road
Marol, Andheri East 
Mumbai - 400059 (M.H.)

Dear Sirs,
UPDATION OF SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Please fill-in the informaƟon in CAPITAL LETTERS in ENGLISH ONLY. Please TICK whichever is applicable
General InformaƟon

Folio no. / DP ID-Client ID :

Name of first named shareholder :

Address# :

PAN* :

CIN/RegistraƟon No.*                         :
(for corporate shareholders only)

Telephone No. (with STD Code) :

Mobile No. :

Email Id :

* Self aƩested copy of the document is enclosed
# Self cerƟfied of address proof (Voter Id/ Telephone Bill/ Electricity Bill/ Bank Statement. Telephone bill/Bank 
Statement/Electricity should be of a latest date and in any even must not be older than 3 months) 

Bank Details

Bank Name :

Branch Address :

Branch Code :

Account type (Savings/Current/Cash Credit) :

Account No.* :

MICR Code (9 digit) :

IFSC (11 digit) :

* Please enclose a blank cancelled cheque to enable verificaƟon of bank details
I/We hereby declare that the parƟculars given above are correct and complete. If any transacƟon is delayed or not 
effected at all for reasons of incompleteness or incorrectness of informaƟon supplied as above/any other reason 
beyond the control of the Company/R & T Agent, Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited and /or Bigshare Services Private     
Limited will not be held responsible. I/We undertake to inform any subsequent changes in the above parƟculars as and 
when changes take place.

Place :

Date : Signature of Sole/First shareholder

Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited 
CIN: L27100MH1973PLC016617

Registered Office
73-A, Central Avenue, Nagpur (M.H.) 440018

Ph: +91-712-2722407
Email: cs@seml.co.in; URL: www.seml.co.in
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